
 

Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 
address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 

attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 417-732-3101 at least three days prior to 
the scheduled meeting. All meetings are recorded for public viewing. 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

June 20, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve June 6, 2023 City Council Minutes. 

2. Approve June 6, 2023 City Council Work Session Minutes. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting-Cancelled  July 6, 2023 
Planning & Zoning Meeting   July 10, 2023 
City Council Meeting    July 18, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Meeting   August 3, 2023 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

3. 23-17 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of an Amendment to The Developer 

Agreement with Republic 63, LLC for the Continued Development of the Hankins Farm Planned 

Development District. 

4. 23-18 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Cooperation Agreement with the Republic R-III School District to Share the Cost of Professional 

Emergency Operations Services Provided by AARC Consultants, LLC. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

5. 23-19 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 
Approximately Seventeen Point One-Nine (17.19) Acres of Real Property Located at 3020 North 
York Avenue, from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2). 

6. 23-20 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Stone Creek Falls Phase 
One Subdivision. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

7. 23-R-36 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Negotiate and Enter 

into an Agreement with Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance & Business Advisors for Provision of 

Insurance Brokerage and Consultant Services. 

8. 23-R-37 A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal 

Year Ending December 31, 2022. 

9. 23-R-38 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Enter into an Agreement with 

Midwest Public Risk for Property and Liability Insurance for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 

1



 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

1. RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

2. RSMo 610.021.2 Real estate acquisition. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

3. RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. Closed session. Closed vote. 
Closed record. 

4. RSMo 610.021.13 Individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records 
pertaining to employees. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

Adjournment 
 
 

2



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J u n e  0 6 ,  2 0 2 3  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

June 06, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 6:00 p.m. Council Members present included Eric Franklin, Garry 
Wilson, Eric Gerke, Chris Updike, Brandon Self, and Clint Gerlek. Others in attendance were: City 
Administrator David Cameron, Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson, City Attorney Megan 
McCullough, BUILDS Administrator Karen Haynes, Police Major Jamie Burks, Principal Planner Chris Tabor, 
Assistant Parks and Recreation Director Jennafer Mayfield, Athletics Administrator Garrett Cline, Assistant 
BUILDS Administrator Garrett Brickner, Fire Chief Duane Compton, Chief of Staff Lisa Addington, Assistant 
City Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared Keeling, HR Coordinator Rachel Reich-Graef, Data 
and Security Supervisor Michael Sallee, Executive Assistant Jordan Furnas, City Clerk Laura Burbridge, 
Finance Director Bob Ford, and IT Director Chris Crosby.  

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Matt Russell. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Russell opened citizen participation at 6:00 p.m. Mayor Russell closed citizen participation at 6:01 
p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Self to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion 
Carried. 

1. Approve May 16, 2023 City Council Minutes. 

2. Approve May Vendor List. 

3. Approve Utility Billing Adjustments. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Planning & Zoning Meeting   June 12, 2023 
City Council Meeting   June 20, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  July 6, 2023 
Planning & Zoning Meeting  July 10, 2023 
City Council Meeting   July 18, 2023 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

4. 23-16 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 

Approximately One Point Two Eight (1.28) Acres of Real Property Located at 1358 E. U.S. 

Highway 60, from Local Commercial District (C-1) and General Commercial District (C-2) to 

General Commercial District (C-2). 

3

Item 1.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J u n e  0 6 ,  2 0 2 3  

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 23-16 by title only. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, 
Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Chris Tabor was available to answer 
questions.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 23-16. Council Member 
Franklin seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

5. 23-17 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of an Amendment to The Developer 

Agreement with Republic 63, LLC for the Continued Development of the Hankins Farm Planned 

Development District. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the first reading of Bill 23-17 by title only. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, 
and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Garrett Brickner provided an overview of the bill.  Mayor 
Russell reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting 
with any questions. 

6. 23-18 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Cooperation Agreement with the Republic R-III School District to Share the Cost of Professional 

Emergency Operations Services Provided by AARC Consultants, LLC. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Self to have the 
first reading of Bill 23-18 by title only. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, 
and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Andrew Nelson provided an overview of the bill.  Mayor 
Russell reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting 
with any questions. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

7. 23-R-33 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of Memorandum of 

Understanding with Republic R-III School District for the City’s Use of a District Bus to 

Accommodate Parks and Recreation Summer Events. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Updike to 
approve Resolution 23-R-33. Jennafer Mayfield provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote 
was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

8. 23-R-34 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of an Agreement with AARC 

Consultants, LLC for Professional Services to Assess the City’s Emergency Preparedness and 

Assist with Implementation of a Comprehensive Emergency Operations Plan. 

Motion was made by Council Member Self and seconded by Council Member Updike to approve 
Resolution 23-R-34. Duane Compton provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 6 Aye-
Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

9. 23-R-35 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Negotiation and Execution of an 

Agreement with Questica at Carahsoft for Compatible Data Processing Software to Assist the 

Finance Department with Budgeting and Forecasting. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Franklin to 
approve Resolution 23-R-35. Bob Ford provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 6 
Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

4

Item 1.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J u n e  0 6 ,  2 0 2 3  

Presentation and Discussion of Sustainability Initiative 

10. Council Member Updike's Sustainability Initiative. 

Council Member Updike presented his initiative on sustainability.  Council Members asked 
questions of the initiative.  The Mayor and Council requested Council Member Updike gauge 
citizen interest and return to the Mayor to request a committee once interest is 
confirmed.  Mayor Russell noted he would have it added to the agenda for a vote after 
confirmation of interest. 

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked Bob Ford for the great job in the budget software selection, 
noting we have been talking about a financial dashboard for several years.  Mr. Cameron mentioned the 
transparency portal we used to have on the website but reported it didn't get updated.  Mr. Cameron 
emphasized that just because an item is not budgeted doesn't mean you have to wait until January to 
pursue it.  Mr. Cameron added he loves that Bob went to Christian County to vet their software and that 
this software updates every night while providing real time answers to questions.  Mr. Cameron shared 
his appreciation for the work done. 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked Jennafer Mayfield, Jared Keeling, Andrew Nelson, Chief 
Compton, Major Burks, Chief Sells, and Mayor Russell for the work done with the School District.  Mr. 
Cameron reported he has asked three times for a tabletop train derailment scenario.  Mr. Cameron noted 
our EOC is top notch but hasn't been updated in years.  While staff could have done an update, the school 
and city got together after recent school shootings across the country to collaborate and make an action 
plan.  Mr. Cameron noted that handling a scene like that with all the emotions involved requires a good 
plan.  Mr. Cameron added he loves that the Mayor's passion led us to this tonight.   

City Administrator David Cameron encouraged everyone to take a drive down Highway 174 to see the 
sandblasting and painting of the water tower near Animal Control.  Mr. Cameron shared his appreciation 
for the staff pursuing this project with ARPA funds.  Mr. Cameron also reported we closed the property 
on Mill Street, adding after the $11,000 of work we did to clean it up, we were able to sell it for 
$27,005.  We also closed on the new Fire Station #3 property near the BUILDS building.   

City Administrator David Cameron reported the RBI board gave their final presentation, noting James 
Strathdee has been our representation since it turned technical.  He will likely be coming to present that 
information to the community in the future as we continue to evaluate the project.   Mr. Cameron noted 
we have had several people approaching us recently, wanting to install internet into our community.  Mr. 
Cameron added they have access to our right of way and there is potential for multiple companies to 
install fiber in town, causing more disruption to numerous properties.   

City Administrator David Cameron mentioned the recent workshop about GIS and commended Josh Jones 
and Chris Tabor for the work on it, noting Chris created Permitron.  Mr. Cameron also acknowledged Chris 
Crosby for creating a city calendar  for staff to utilize for standard procedure timeline documentation on 
our SharePoint, as well as a digital directory of every staff member with photos.  Mr. Cameron noted these 
are great resources and he loves how staff utilizes technology to make us faster, better, and stronger. 

Council Member Self thanked Karen Haynes for taking his calls, Andrew Nelson for making a couple 
outbound calls, and Garrett Brickner for the email reply. 

Council Member Franklin thanked Council Member Updike for presenting his Sustainability Initiative.  Mr. 
Franklin reported this morning he got to visit the Priebe family's house and write inspirational messages 
on his walls.  The Priebe family has been an inspiration in Republic with their strength.  Mr. Franklin 

5

Item 1.



 

 
 4 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J u n e  0 6 ,  2 0 2 3  

reported he got to see every player and hear from the source himself.  Mr. Franklin thanked everyone 
that rises to the challenges as they have done. 

Council Member Gerke thanked Mr. Ford for the time spent on the budgeting software.  Mr. Gerke noted 
the project trackers on the website are great as well. 

City Administrator David Cameron notified everyone that on Thursday June 15th from 5:30-7:30, we are 
having our first neighboring pop up.  People from the city will be present and getting connected with the 
community more.   

Mayor Russell noted it is amazing what is going on at the Aquatics Center.  Mayor Russell noted he drives 
by every day, and it is going quickly.  He asked Jared Keeling how it is going with the construction.  Mr. 
Keeling reported Branco is doing a great job.  Mayor Russell asked Garrett Brickner how the roundabout 
was going.  Mr. Brickner reported it is going well and the road was torn up on the first day.  Mayor Russell 
asked how things were going with the neighbors.  Mr. Brickner reported only a couple calls about people 
turning around in driveways, which led to some changes to correct it.  Mr. Brickner added the Police 
Department got the speed trailer out along with our slow signs.  Mayor Russell noted David Cameron 
presenting about the April election in the workshop preceding the regular meeting and noted we are 
planning now as it is not as easy as it looks.  Mayor Russell noted for anyone that didn't watch it, the video 
is on You Tube showing what you can run for and how you can run.  Mayor Russell encouraged those 
interested to run for office. 

Adjournment 

Mayor Russell adjourned the meeting at 7:08 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

6

Item 1.



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  W o r k  S e s s i o n ,  J u n e  0 6 ,  2 0 2 3  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Work Session 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

June 06, 2023 at 5:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The work session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was called 
to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 5:00 p.m. Council Members present included Eric Franklin, Garry Wilson, 
Eric Gerke, Chris Updike, Brandon Self, and Clint Gerlek. Others in attendance were: City Administrator 
David Cameron, Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson, City Attorney Megan McCullough, BUILDS 
Administrator Karen Haynes, Police Major Jamie Burks, Principal Planner Chris Tabor, Assistant Parks and 
Recreation Director Jennafer Mayfield, Athletics Administrator Garrett Cline, Assistant BUILDS 
Administrator Garrett Brickner, Fire Chief Duane Compton, Chief of Staff Lisa Addington, Assistant City 
Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared Keeling, HR Coordinator Rachel Reich-Graef, Data and 
Security Supervisor Michael Sallee, Executive Assistant Jordan Furnas, City Clerk Laura Burbridge, Finance 
Director Bob Ford, and IT Director Chris Crosby.  

Municipal Election Presentation 

David Cameron presented information regarding the 2024 Election Schedule and procedure and answered 
questions from Council. 

Adjournment 

Mayor Russell adjourned the meeting at 5:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

7

Item 2.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-17 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of an 
Amendment to The Developer Agreement with Republic 63, LLC for the 
Continued Development of the Hankins Farm Planned Development 
District. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: June 20, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Authorizing Amendment 1 of the Hankins Development Agreement.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The original developer agreement included reimbursement for installation of sanitary sewer 
infrastructure.  As the lift station improvement was part of the City of Republic’s Master Plan CIP #8, the 
city would be responsible for relocating the lift station and all sanitary improvements involved in the 
relocation. Because the city would be doing most of the work through our contractor, it was decided to 
have this contractor do all the sanitary sewer upgrades at Hankins at one time.  
 
Because these improvements were already part of the city’s master plan, it is appropriate for the cost of 
those expenses to be funded by the city and not billed to the developer.  This amendment removes the 
cost of the additional contracted work for CIP #8 from the developer agreement. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

 

8

Item 3.



BILL NO. 23-17  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-17 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING EXECUTION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
DEVELOPER AGREEMENT WITH REPUBLIC 63, LLC FOR THE CONTINUED DEVELOPMENT OF THE 

HANKINS FARM PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, Republic 63, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner and developer of real property located at 
2561 South State Highway MM in Republic, Missouri, known as the Hankins Farm Business Park 
(“Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PDD Development Plan for the Property, previously approved by City 
Council via Ordinance 22-07, Developer is currently developing the Property for future industrial purposes 
and use; and  
 

WHEREAS, in or around November 2021, the City entered into a developer agreement with 
Developer, which the Council approved by Ordinance No. 21-68; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon expiration of the initial agreement, the City entered into a new developer 

agreement with Developer, which the Council approved by Ordinance No. 22-47; and 
 

WHEREAS, the current developer agreement (“Developer Agreement”) specifies that the City will 
pay for sanitary sewer improvements on the Property and be reimbursed for the same by the Developer; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Developer Agreement, the City completed the sanitary sewer 

improvement infrastructure on the Property and received reimbursement from Developer for the same; 
and   

 
WHEREAS, in the course of performing its obligations under the Developer Agreement, the City 

determined that the sanitary sewer improvements made to the Property fell within the scope of Capital 
Improvement Project (CIP) #8 (the relocation of the Brookline Lift Station), for which the City had already 
budgeted using the City’s funds, and for which ARPA funds were additionally available; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties mutually agree that the City (as opposed to Developer) is the appropriate 
party to bear the cost of the sanitary sewer improvements as they were part and parcel of the City’s own 
budgeted and approved capital improvement plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend the Developer Agreement to reflect the changes described 

herein above as to the City being the responsible party for costs of the sanitary sewer improvements, 
which, with approval from Council via this Ordinance, will authorize the City to return the funds previously 
paid to the City as reimbursement by Developer for the sanitary sewer improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council finds the First Amendment to the Developer Agreement is appropriate and 
necessary to reflect the terms of the agreement between the City and Developer as to payment for the 
sanitary sewer improvements. 
 

9

Item 3.



BILL NO. 23-17  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-17 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
execute an Amendment to the Developer Agreement with Republic 63, LLC for 
the public improvements referenced herein, in substantially the same form as  
“Attachment 1” to this Ordinance. 

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 

 

 

 

10

Item 3.



Page 1 of 2 
Republic 63, LLC – First Amendment to Developer Agreement 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPER AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is entered into 
by and between the City of Republic Missouri (“City”) and Republic 63, LLC (“Developer”) as of the 
latest date shown with the signatures affixed hereto below.  City and Developer are sometimes 
referred to herein individually as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, City is a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, 
Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer is a Missouri Limited Liability Company; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of real property in the City of Republic located at 2561 
South State Highway MM, legally described in Exhibit A to the Agreement (“Property”), and is in the 
process of developing the Property to accommodate commercial use and operations; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Developer Agreement (“Agreement”) pursuant to 

which the City agreed to install certain public improvements upon the Property in exchange for 
agreed upon consideration from Developer; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties now execute this Amendment to update the terms of payment for 
the City’s installation of specified public improvements under the Agreement, to be consistent with 
the Parties’ mutual understandings and agreement.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:  
 

1. Amendments to Agreement:  The Parties mutually consent to amending the 
Agreement in the following particulars:  

 
Paragraph 3(c)(ii) of the Agreement is amended to read as shown below:  

3. Costs of the Public Improvements: 
 

[ . . . ] 
 

c. Utility Public Improvements: 
 

   [. . . ] 
 

ii. Sanitary Sewer Public Improvements: The City will be solely 

responsible for payment of costs associated with the Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements subject to this Agreement, includes the actual costs 

incurred by the City for the material expenses of the Sanitary Sewer 

Public Improvements, the actual expenses incurred by the City for the 

labor of non-City employees including contractors and subcontractors, 

the actual expenses incurred by the City for use of non-City owned 

equipment and non-City owned tools, and costs associated with 

utilities, transportation, taxes owed by the (including local, state and 

11

Item 3.



Page 2 of 2 
Republic 63, LLC – First Amendment to Developer Agreement 

 

federal), compliance with public works laws and regulations, and all 

other services and facilities used to complete the Sanitary Sewer 

Public Improvements pursuant to this Agreement.  Any funds 

previously remitted by Developer to City for payment of the costs 

associated with the Sanitary Sewer Public Improvements subject to 

this Agreement shall be returned by City to Developer within a 

reasonable time following execution of this Amendment, but in no 

event later than ten (10) days from such execution. 

 
[ . . . ] 

 
2. No Other Modification:  Except as expressly modified as set forth in Paragraph 1 of 

this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in 
full force and effect without modification. 

 
3. Whereas Clauses:  The “Whereas” clauses stated above are expressly incorporated 

herein by reference as though fully set forth at length. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 
last date shown for the Parties’ signatures below. 
 
REPUBLIC 63, LLC 
 
 
_______________________________________________________ 
 
Name/Title: ________________________________________ 
 
Date:  ___________________________ 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 David Cameron, City Administrator 
 
 
Date:  ___________________________ 
 

  
Attest:  
 
__________________________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  

  
Date:  ___________________________ 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney 
 
Date:  __________________________ 

 

12

Item 3.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-18 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Execution of an 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with the Republic R-III 
School District to Share the Cost of Professional Emergency Operations 
Services Provided by AARC Consultants, LLC. 

Submitted By: Duane Compton/Megan McCullough 

Date: June 20, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Authorization for the City Administrator to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Republic 

Schools for a cost share to develop an Emergency Preparedness Assessment, an Emergency Operations 

Plan (EOP) Update, and training the staff. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The Republic School District has agreed to pay 50% of the expenses for the AARC services to develop a 

city-wide emergency operations plan. 

The AARC Team will provide an array of services that meet the City’s needs for enhancing the existing 

base EOP with the most current and innovative practices.  Overall assessment of the City’s preparedness 

for emergencies will cost $30,250. Evaluation and Update of City’s current EOP will cost $49,500.  The 

subsequent training program will cost $24,050.  The total cost is $103,800, with the City’s share totaling 

$51,900.00. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

13

Item 4.



BILL NO. 23-18  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-18 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH THE REPUBLIC R-III SCHOOL DISTRICT TO SHARE THE COST OF 

PROFESSIONAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS SERVICES PROVIDED BY AARC CONSULTANTS, LLC  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Republic R-III School District (“School District”) desire to partner with 
each other on obtaining professional services to evaluate and improve the emergency preparedness of 
the City and School District, both individually and together as a whole, by, among other things, developing 
a cohesive, comprehensive emergency operations plan (“EOP”) (collectively, “the Services”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) for the Services in November of 

2022, and received  three responses to the RFQ; and 
 
WHEREAS, of the three submissions in response to the RFQ, AARC Consultants, LLC (“AARC”) was 

determined to be the most qualified respondent to provide the Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and School District wish to execute a contract with AARC for the Services, the 

cost of which they have agreed to share equally between them (50% of the total cost allocated to the City 
and 50% of the total cost allocated to the School District); and  

 
WHEREAS, the development and execution of a comprehensive EOP to be followed in the event 

of a public safety emergency at any one of the public facilities owned (or operated) by either the City or 
the School District will help to ensure the overall safety and wellness of the City’s residents, youth, 
students, and guests, in accordance with the provisions of § 70.220, RSMo. permitting cooperative 
agreements between governmental entities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with the School 
District to share the cost of the Services is in the City’s best interest as it will provide comprehensive, up-
to-date emergency response protocols with cohesion between the City and School District, designed to 
maximize the safety and security of the City’s residents, students and guests. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
enter into an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with the Republic R-III 
School District to share equally in the total cost of professional emergency 
operations services to be provided by AARC Consultants, LLC, said agreement to 
be in substantially the same form as that attached to this Ordinance as 
“Attachment 1.”   

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

14

Item 4.



BILL NO. 23-18  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-18 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

15

Item 4.



Page 1 of 5 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT –  
COST SHARING FOR SERVICES PROVIDED BY AARC CONSULTANTS, LLC 

  
 THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE Agreement (“Agreement”) is to facilitate 
cooperative action by and between the City of Republic, Missouri, a municipal corporation and home 
rule Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri (“Republic” and/or “City”), and the Green County 
Reorganized School District No. 3, also known as the Republic R-III School District (the “District”) 
regarding agreed upon cost apportionments for the services being provided by AARC Consultants, 
LLC to the City and District in connection with evaluation, development and improvement of the 
City’s and the District’s emergency preparedness.  The City and the District are referred to together 
herein as “the Parties.” 
 

WHEREAS, Section 70.220, RSMo., authorizes intergovernmental agreements between 
political subdivisions pursuant to which such entities may cooperate with each other regarding the 
planning, development, construction, acquisition, or operation of public improvements or facilities; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties are each political subdivisions in the State of Missouri who own 
and/or operate public facilities located in the City of Republic, Missouri; 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties are each responsible for ensuring the safety of patrons and other 
visitors in or around the public facilities they own and/or operate, which includes, among other 
things, executing a fast and effective response to public emergencies through proper execution of 
emergency operations plans and other emergency response protocols; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Parties have recognized the opportunity to partner on the development and 

execution of a comprehensive emergency operations plan (EOP) to be followed in the event of a  
public safety emergency at any one or more of the public facilities owned and/or operated by either 
of the Parties, benefiting the overall safety and wellness of the City’s residents, youth, students, and 
guests, in accordance with § 70.220, RSMo.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into an agreement (“AARC Services Agreement”) with 
AARC Consultants, LLC (“AARC” and/or “Service Provider”) for the provision of services relating to 
the Parties’ emergency response operations, specifically including the assessment of the Parties’ 
emergency preparedness, evaluation of the Parties’ current Emergency Operations Plan(s) (EOPs) or 
other adopted procedures, assistance with the development of a comprehensive EOP and assistance 
with training the Parties’ respective personnel who would be called upon to implement the EOP in 
the event of an emergency (“the Services”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to share the costs for the Services provided to the Parties under 
the AARC Services Agreement; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and representations in 
this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Ability to Contract.   City represents and warrants that it has the ability to enter into 
this Agreement and to fulfill all terms contained herein.  District represents and warrants that it has 
the ability to enter into this Agreement and to fulfill all terms contained herein. 

 
2. Termination of this Agreement.   The Parties have the right to cancel this 

Agreement at any time for breach of contractual obligations or for convenience by providing written 
notice.  

16

Item 4.



Page 2 of 5 
 

 
3. Allocation of Cost Sharing and Payments to AARC.  The Parties agree to share in 

the costs and expenses incurred under the AARC Services Agreement in the following percentage 
allocations:  

 
The City 50% of total incurred 
The District 50% of total incurred 

 
The above-identified shares shall apply to all fees, costs and expenses incurred for the AARC 

Services, as detailed in Sections 5, 6 and 9 of the AARC Services Agreement.  The Parties shall each, 
on its own, be responsible for ensuring timely payment per Section 7.1 of the AARC Services 
Agreement of its respective 50% share of each invoice provided by AARC by making payment directly 
to AARC in an accepted form of payment and otherwise in accord with all other terms of the invoice 
and the AARC Services Agreement.  Payments of invoices submitted by AARC shall become due in 
thirty (30) days pursuant to Section 7.1 of the AARC Services Agreement. In the event either the City 
or the District fails to make timely payment to AARC under the AARC Services Agreement and AARC 
imposes a penalty or other fee for such failure, the Party who failed to make payment shall bear the 
full cost of such penalty or other fee without regard for the division of responsibility set forth herein 
above.   
 

4. Tax Consequences.   No warranty or representation of any kind as to the tax 
consequences, potential or actual, if any, is made by or between the Parties under this Agreement or 
in connection with this Agreement. 

 
5. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall endure for the entire time period 

during which services are being provided under the AARC Services Agreement and through final 
payment of any and all amounts due and owing under the AARC Services Agreement.  Once final 
payment is made under the AARC Services Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate as completed. 

  
6. Parties are Separate Entities.  The Parties to this Agreement are each separate and 

independent political subdivisions of the State of Missouri, and as such, each retain their own identity 
and each is responsible for its own policies and activities. This Agreement shall not be construed as 
creating a joint venture between the Parties. 

 
7. Public Entity Immunity.  The Parties both preserve all immunities, sovereign, 

governmental and otherwise, recognized by law.  Nothing in this Agreement or any transactions 
under this Agreement shall be construed or deemed in any way as a waiver of sovereign immunity 
or governmental immunity recognized under common law, state law, ordinances, regulations, the 
Missouri Constitution, or the United States Constitution, including but not limited to § 537.600 RSMo., 
et seq.  The provision of any insurance pursuant to this paragraph, whether such insurance does or 
does not afford coverage to City or to District for any claim arising from or out of this Agreement or 
performance thereunder, shall not constitute a waiver of any defense or immunity available to the 
District or the City. 

 
8. Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Missouri.  Any lawsuit, claim, or other action filed by or against one or both of the Parties to this 
Agreement relating in any way to the interpretation of this Agreement or to the exercise of rights 
and/or duties under this Agreement, shall have proper venue solely in the Circuit Court of Greene 
County, Missouri. 

  
9. Assignment.  Neither party may assign their rights or obligations under this 

Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. 

17

Item 4.



Page 3 of 5 
 

  
10. Severability.  A determination by a court of competent jurisdiction or other 

authoritative decision-making body that any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part of this 
Agreement is unconstitutional, invalid or otherwise unenforceable shall not affect in any way the 
validity or enforceability of the remaining clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this 
Agreement. 

  
11. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

Parties hereto and there are no other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject matter 
hereof, and may not be changed, modified or amended, in whole or in part, except in writing signed 
by the Parties. 

 
12. Headings.  The headings formatted in bold herein are merely for purposes of 

convenience and reference only, and do not constitute material terms of this Agreement. 
  
13. Incorporation of Whereas Clauses.  The “WHEREAS” clauses in this Agreement 

above are incorporated into this paragraph by reference as though fully set forth at length herein and 
form a material part of this Agreement.  
 

14. No Employment Relationship.  This Agreement shall not be construed to create any 
employment or agent relationship of any kind, nor shall it be construed as an agreement for the 
benefit of any third party, and no individual shall be entitled by virtue of this Agreement to any wages 
or employment benefits or compensation of any kind, including any pursuant to any employment law 
liability theory, such as, but not limited to: the Fair Wage and Labor Standards Act of 1938, and as 
subsequently amended, all Missouri statutory laws, including Workers’ Compensation, or common 
law. 

  
15. No Discrimination.  The Parties shall not discriminate against any employee or 

participant in the performance of the duties, responsibilities, and obligations under this Agreement 
because of race, color, religion, gender, age, marital status, disability, political or religious beliefs, 
national or ethnic origin.  

  
16. Execution.  The Parties agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or scanned and 

emailed shall have the legal effect of original signatures. In addition to facsimile or scanned and email 
signatures, this Agreement may be executed by the Parties in accordance with the applicable version 
of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act ("UETA") and the Electronic Signatures in Global and 
National Commerce Act (" ESIGN"). The Parties hereto consent to conduct transactions by electronic 
means to the extent practicable and hereby affirmatively consent to use electronic records to 
memorialize and execute this Agreement and any alterations thereto. At the request of any party, the 
Parties shall promptly exchange executed original counterparts of this Agreement or any 
amendment. Regardless of the method of delivery of executed documents, the County and the City 
can only execute such to the extent authorized by law, and regardless of any expressed opinion, 
representation, writing, or signature, by any individual or entity purporting to act on behalf of the 
County or the City, execution of the Agreement and any addendum can only be done as authorized by 
each Party’s respective governing body, either directly or through their duly authorized agent of 
record.     

   
17. No Assignments Without Consent.  This Agreement may not be assigned by any 

Party without the prior written consent of the other Party.  
 
18.  Public Entity and Officer Immunity and Defenses.  In no event shall the language 

or requirements of this Agreement constitute or be construed as a waiver or limitation of any rights 

18

Item 4.



Page 4 of 5 
 

or defenses with regard to applicable sovereign, governmental, official, or any individual immunities 
and any other protections or defenses as provided by federal and state constitutions, statutes, and 
laws. The procurement and maintenance of insurance shall not be construed as waiving any such 
defense otherwise available. 

  
19. Limitation of Damages.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any 

liability on behalf of the City or the District for any direct, special, indirect, liquidated, consequential 
damages, or attorney fees.  

  
20. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval.  This Agreement is expressly contingent and 

conditioned upon the following: (1) the allocation of sufficient funds for City to use toward its 
obligations under this Agreement, (2) the allocation of sufficient funds for District to use toward its 
obligations under this Agreement, (3) the express approval of the City Council for the City of Republic, 
Missouri, demonstrable by adopted Resolution, and (4) the express approval of the Board of 
Education for the District.  The Parties agree to obtain approval(s) of their respective governing 
bodies referenced herein for the allocation of estimated funds for the sharing of costs under this 
Agreement, as well as any other contingencies necessary to fulfill their obligations under this 
Agreement, prior to or concurrent with execution of this Agreement.  The Parties mutually 
acknowledge and agree that they have no standing or right of action against the other in the event 
the City or the District is unable to perform its obligations under this Agreement as a result of 
insufficient funds or disapproval by the Parties’ respective governing bodies. 

  
21. Notices.  Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following 
offices or when notice is received after being deposited in the United States Mail, Registered or 
Certified, with postage thereon prepaid as follows: 
 

To City:   
 
City of Republic, Missouri 
Attn:  City Administrator 
213 North Main Street 
Republic, Missouri 65738 

 

To Developer:  
 
Republic R-III School District 
Attn:  Dr. Matt Pearce 
636 North Main Street 
Republic, MO 65738 

 
[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.  Signatures follow on Page 5 of 5]  

19

Item 4.



Page 5 of 5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day 
and year first above written. 
 

Republic R-III School District 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
(Signature) 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
(Printed Name) 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
(Title) 
 
______________________ 
(Date) 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator 
 
___________________ 
(Date)  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Attest:  Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
___________________ 
(Date)  
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney 
 
___________________ 
(Date) 
 

 

20

Item 4.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-19 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the 
Zoning Classification of Approximately Seventeen Point One-Nine 
(17.19) Acres of Real Property Located at 3020 North York Avenue, from 
Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2). 

Submitted By: Patrick Ruiz, Associate Planner of the BUILDS Department 

Date: June 20, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

James Wade has applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately 17.19 acres of property 

located at 3020 N York Ave from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2).   

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application consists of approximately 17.19 acres of land located 

at 3020 N York Ave; the property currently has two single-family dwelling units.   

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of commercial and industrial 

development through proactive Rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are 

described generally throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations 

to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

 Goal:  Support market conditions to develop a greater variety of commercial options. 

 Goal:  Support new development that is well-connected to the existing community 

o Objective:  Encourage development that improves and expands upon existing infrastructure 

o Objective:  Promote development aligning with current adopted plans of the City 

 Goal: Encourage the redevelopment and integration of the former Brookline area. 

o Objective: Support the development of an industrial/commercial center where 

transportation and infrastructure exist.  

The Rezoning of this parcel is consistent with City’s Adopted Plans.   

The general trend in the vicinity of the subject property consists of commercial and industrial uses of 
varying intensities along State Highway MM and Sawyer Road. 

 

21

Item 5.



 

 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

The subject property is adjacent to General Commercial (C-2) to the South and surrounded by Medium 

Density Single-Family (R1-M) and Agricultural (AG) to the West along York Avenue; Light Industrial (M-1) 

and General Commercial (C-2) to the North along Sawyer Road. 

The Heavy Industrial (M-2) Zoning District is intended to allow a wide range of commercial and industrial 

uses.  

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:   

Development of the property will require connecting to existing municipal water and sewer mains 

located near the property.  Both an 8-inch water main and an 8-inch gravity sewer main are located on, 

or in adjacent right-of-way of the subject parcel.  The sanitary sewer will flow from the site to the 

Brookline South Lift Station, McElhaney Lift Station, and Shuyler Creek Lift Station respectively before 

being pumped to the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

The water system, named Lift Stations, and Wastewater Treatment Facility currently have capacity to 

serve the intended use. 

Transportation:   

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was required for the Rezoning Application.  Development of the property will 

require adherence to the City’s Transportation Plan, Adopted Transportation Map, and improvements 

required by the TIS for buildout.   

The TIS concludes that the highest intense use of such zoning would not cause a significant impact on 

the study area roadway network. In addition, public improvements are planned for York Avenue along 

the frontage of the site and the intersection of York Avenue and Farm Road 156 (Sawyer Road) that will 

allow for accommodation of trucks and transport vehicles.   

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain any areas of Special Flood Hazard Area (Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject property does not contain any identified sinkholes.  

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of development in the 

vicinity of the site, compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by 

municipal facilities.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony 

of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

22

Item 5.



BILL NO. 23-19  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23- 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AMENDMENT OF THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 
APPROXIMATELY SEVENTEEN POINT ONE-NINE (17.19) ACRES OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3020 

NORTH YORK AVENUE, FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO HEAVY INDUSTRIAL (M-2) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s BUILDS Department received an Application for an amendment to the Zoning 
Code and Official Zoning Map by rezoning certain real property consisting of approximately 17.19 acres, 
located at 3020 North York Avenue in Republic, Missouri (“the Property”), from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy 
Industrial (M-2); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City submitted the Application to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
(“Commission”) and set a public hearing before the Commission for June 12, 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City published notice of the time and date of the public hearing at least fifteen (15) 
days in advance, on May 24, 2023, in the Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City gave notice of the Application and public hearing to the record owners of all 
real properties within 185 feet of the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission conducted the public hearing on June 12, 2023, at which all interested 
persons and entities were afforded the opportunity to present evidence or statement, and after which 
the Commission rendered written findings of fact and submitted those along with its recommendations 
to the Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission, by a vote of 0 Ayes to 5 Nays, did not recommend the approval of 
the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application was submitted to the Council for first read at its regular meeting on 
June 20, 2023, and submitted for second read at its regular meeting on July 18, 2023, after which the 
Council voted to approve the Application and amend the Zoning Code accordingly. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended to reflect the 
rezoning of the real property consisting of approximately 17.19 acres located at 
3020 North York Avenue in Republic, Missouri, more fully identified in the legal 
description below, from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2): 

 
A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼) OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (NW¼) OF SECTION TWO (2), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-EIGHT (28) NORTH, RANGE 
TWENTY-THREE (23) WEST, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

23

Item 5.



BILL NO. 23-19  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23- 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, WITH 
THE WEST LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼, A DISTANCE OF 628.06 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; 
THENCE S875̊2'24"E, A DISTANCE OF 466.69 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, 
A DISTANCE OF 466.75 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N875̊2'24"W, A DISTANCE OF 
466.69 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID WEST LINE FOR CORNER; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, WITH SAID 
WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 319.21 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE 
NW¼ FOR CORNER; THENCE S880̊7'10"E, WITH SAID NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 459.76 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MISSOURI STATE HIGHWAY 360 FOR 
CORNER; THENCE S015̊2'50"W, WITH SAID HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 
FEET TO AN EXISTING 100-D NAIL FOR CORNER; THENCE S735̊3'39"E, A DISTANCE OF 67.59 FEET 
TO AN EXISTING 100-D NAIL FOR CORNER; THENCE S855̊3'19"E, A DISTANCE OF 212.55 FEET TO 
AN EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY MARKER FOR CORNER; THENCE S431̊4'07"E, A DISTANCE OF 130.11 
FEET TO AN EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY MARKER FOR CORNER, SAID MARKER BEING ON THE 
WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE RAILWAY; THENCE 
S225̊3'05"W, WITH SAID RAILWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 1,361.00 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼ FOR CORNER; THENCE N882̊9'44"W, A DISTANCE 
OF 348.10 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND CONTAINING 14.42 ACRES OF LAND, MORE 
OR LESS, SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 
AND ALSO, 

 
A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(NW¼) OF SECTION TWO (2), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-EIGHT (28) NORTH, RANGE TWENTY-THREE 
(23) WEST, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼; THENCE N020̊7'35"E, 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼, A DISTANCE OF 628.06 FEET TO A CORNER 
FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE TRACT HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE S875̊2'24"E, A DISTANCE 
OF 466.69 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, A DISTANCE OF 466.75 FEET TO 
A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N875̊2'24"W, A DISTANCE OF 466.69 FEET TO A POINT FOR 
CORNER, SAID POINT BEING ON SAID WEST LINE; THENCE S020̊7'36"W, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 
A DISTANCE OF 466.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 5.00 ACRES, MORE OR 
LESS, SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 
Section 2: In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, the 

Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and continue in full 
force and effect. 

 
Section 3: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to  

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance. 
 

Section 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 5:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

24

Item 5.



BILL NO. 23-19  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23- 3 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 
Final Passage and Vote: 

25

Item 5.



Site Extent 

CJ Floodplain

ic1 11 
i l -- V 

Project 
Rezone 

Address 
3020 N York Ave 

Zoning 

AG 

Requested Zoning 
M-2

Acreage 

17.19 

Ward 

2 • 

Ir � D ;P

I � 
L _'v ,;-
� o D oo 

0 

l o O o 
,. Farm R 11,8 15

JI c'.J 

o � ! I

oRd---
T 

D 

Sinkholes 

Parcels Greene 

County 

/t@J 
290 

I 
580 Feet 

26

Item 5.



Site Extent 

c=J Floodplain

Project 
Rezone 

Address 
3020 N York Ave 

Zoning 

AG 

Requested Zoning 
M-2

Acreage 

17.19 

Ward 

2 • 

Cl I 11

�lJ 
u 

oRd--- -

Sinkholes 

D 
Parcels Greene

County 

j 
290 

I 
580 Feet 

27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



29

Item 5.



30

Item 5.



31

Item 5.



32

Item 5.



33

Item 5.



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-20 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Stone 
Creek Falls Phase One Subdivision. 

 
Submitted By: Chris Tabor, BUILDS Department Principal Planner 
 
Date: June 20, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 
 
The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department received an Application for Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 Final Plat on 
May 15, 2023. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 
 
The Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 will legally divide approximately sixty-four point three seven 
(64.37) acres of land into eleven (11) lots and includes the dedication of Right-of-Way, Utility, and 
Stormwater Easements.  The Final Plat includes approximately 3,572 linear feet of street and 7,144 linear 
feet of sidewalk. 
  
The Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 conforms to the Development Plan for Stone Creek Falls Planned 
Development District approved by City Council on August 3, 2021.  The Final Plat for Stone Creek Falls Phase 
1 also conforms to the amended Development Plan approved by City Council on April 11, 2023, which 
increased the building height allowance for multi-family structures on the site from 3 to 4 stories.   
 
City Staff has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it substantially conforms to the requirements 
of the Approved Development Plan, in addition to the requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 
Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 
 

Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends approval of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 Final Plat. 

34

Item 6.



BILL NO. 23-20  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-20 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF  
THE STONE CREEK FALLS PHASE ONE SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 3, 2021, the City Council approved of the Planned Development District for 
the Stone Creek Falls Planned Development District (PDD) in Ordinance 21-54; and 

 
WHEREAS, following passage of Bill No. 21-54, the City received an application from the property 

owner, Stone Creek Development LLC (“Owner”), to modify the maximum building height allowed under 
the Development Plan from three (3) stories to four (4) stories; and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2023, following review of the application and a public hearing, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the Owner’s requested amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS, a on April 11, 2023, the City Council approved of the amended Planned Development 

District for the Stone Creek Falls Planned Development District (PDD) in Ordinance 23-13; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023, the BUILDS Department received an application for review and 
approval of the Final Plat of Phase 1 of the amended Stone Creek Falls Planned Development District 
(“Stone Creek Falls Phase 1”); and  
  
 WHEREAS, the BUILDS Department has reviewed the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 and 
has determined it substantially conforms to the requirements of the Development Plan, the requirements 
of the City Code Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That all conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City 
Council relating to the acceptance and approval of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 have 
been met. 

 
Section 2: That the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1, attached and incorporated herein 

as “Attachment 1”, is hereby approved in all respects. 
 

Section 3: That the approval of the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 is contingent upon 
the same being recorded within sixty (60) days after the approval certificate is 
signed and sealed under the hand of the City Clerk. 

 
Section 4: That neither the construction of structures nor the sale of lots in the Stone Creek 

Falls Phase 1 shall commence until the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 has 
been approved and recorded. 

  
 Section 5:  The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  

35

Item 6.



BILL NO. 23-20  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-20 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

Section 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is 
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 7: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

36

Item 6.



37

Item 6.



W  U
.S. H

IGHWAY 60BNSF RAILROAD

BN
SF

 R
AI

LR
OA

D
W FARM ROAD 164

N
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L
   

 A
VE

N
U

E

S 
FA

R
M

 R
O

AD
 1

01

(STATE HIGHWAY 413)

LOT 9

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

6.35 ACRES
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

COMMON AREA

3.49 ACRES

5.00 ACRES

6.76 ACRES

5.02 ACRES

5.12 ACRES

POINT OF BEGINNING

LOT 6
5.00 ACRES

LOT 1
2.36 ACRES

LOT 7

LOT 8

2.65 ACRES

LOT 10
4.07 ACRES

2.76 ACRES5.00 ACRES
LOT 11

3.64 ACRES

COMMON
  AREA

ST
ON

E 
FA

LL
S 

RO
AD

RIVER RUN

S
TO

N
E

CREEK

DRIVE

STONE

FALLS

ROAD

SCALE 1" = 120'

CURVE DATA

PRECISION SURVEYING, L.L.C.
BALGL

P.O. BOX 790, REPUBLIC, MO 65738

PHONE (417) 883-0300    FAX (417) 883-0335

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

NUMBER  LS-2010000563

FINAL PLAT
STONE CREEK FALLS PHASE ONE

CITY OF REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI

      A PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 11
A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2

TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST

SITE

VICINITY MAP

      A PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 11
A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2
                                        TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST

BASIS OF BEARINGS

BENCHMARK

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

COURSE TABLE

DEVELOPER

OWNER

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE CITY COUNCIL

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS

DEVELOPMENT NOTES

DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

STATE PLANE COORDINATES

A

B

C

D

E
F

G H

I

JK

L

FA
R

M
 R

O
AD

 1
03

38

Item 6.



 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-36 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City 
Administrator to Negotiate and Enter into an Agreement with 
Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance & Business Advisors for Provision of 
Insurance Brokerage and Consultant Services. 

Submitted By: Lisa Addington, Chief of Staff 

Date: 6/20/2023 
 

Issue Statement 

Entering into an insurance brokerage and consultant services agreement with Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance 

and Business Advisors regarding medical, health, dental and life insurance coverage for City employees. 

 
Discussion and/or Analysis 

 
In May, the City issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for insurance brokerage and consultant services 
for all of the City’s insurance needs.  The City received six (6) responses expressing interest in Health and 
Benefit insurance services which were: 
 

Barker, Phillips, Jackson 
Gallagher Benefit Services 
Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance and Business Advisors 
CBIZ Employee Benefits Consulting Services 
Bukaty Companies 
Nevont Benefit Advisors 
 

A review committee consisting of BUILDS Director Karen Haynes, Assistant BUILDS Administrator Garrett 
Brickner, Finance Director Bob Ford, Payroll and Benefits Specialist Melissa Wallen, and Chief of Staff Lisa 
Addington screened all and met with each provider to discuss expectations as outlined within the RFQ.  At 
the conclusion of the presentations, the review committee met and discussed each broker presentation 
and ranked each firm accordingly. 
 
The committee selected Ollis/Akers/Arney for pricing negotiations based on the needs of the City’s 
employees, demonstrated quality customer service protocols, out of the box initiatives and offered quick 
response time.   
 
Due to the timing of City insurance policies, staff is recommending that the City enter into a professional 
services agreement for a three (3) year period (2024-2026) with payment beginning January 1, 2024; 
although the broker will start work immediately to obtain carrier quotes for 2024 benefits as well as 
prepare and administer open enrollment for staff, which is scheduled to occur in November 2023.  The 

39

Item 7.



 

pricing is quoted at $25/per full-time insured employee/month.  This cost includes a robust open 
enrollment software program and on-line training options for staff, which minimizes the impact on the 
budget. 
 

Recommended Action 
 
It is recommended the City enter into an agreement with Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance and Business 
Advisors for medical, health, dental and life insurance broker and consultant services.    
 

40

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-36 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-36 1  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO NEGOTIATE 
AND ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH OLLIS/AKERS/ARNEY INSURANCE & BUSINESS 
ADVISORS FOR PROVISION OF INSURANCE BROKERAGE AND CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, in May 2023, the City published a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the purpose of 

identifying qualified professional insurance brokerage and consulting providers to meet the City’s 
insurance and employment benefits needs beginning in November 2023 until December 31, 2026; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City received a total of six (6) responses to its RFQ; and  

 
WHEREAS, after evaluating each written response and meeting with each submitter, a review 

committee of five City staff members ranked the submitting entities using defined scoring criteria, 
determining Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance & Business Advisors (“Ollis”) to be the most qualified to provide 
the requested services; and  

 
WHEREAS, based upon staff recommendations, the City Council finds it is in the City’s best interest 

to select Ollis as the provider to meet the City’s needs defined in its RFQ, for a three (3) year period 
beginning in November 2023 until December 31, 2026. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City Administrator and/or his designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
negotiate and enter into an agreement with Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance & 
Business Advisors for the provision of insurance brokerage and consulting services 
from November 2023 through December 31, 2026, under terms consistent with 
the City’s Request for Qualifications attached hereto as “Attachment 1”. 

  
Section 2. The City Administrator, or his designee(s), on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take other reasonable, necessary steps to implement this Resolution. 
 
Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
 

41

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-36 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-36 2  
 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 
 

42

Item 7.



1 of 9 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

Title:  Insurance Brokerage and Advisory Services  

RFQ Number: RFQ 23-02 

Request Date:  April 4, 2023 

Deadline for Responses:   

April 21, 2023 

Contact Person:  Melissa Wallen  
Phone:  417-732-3133 
Email: mwallen@republicmo.com  

 

About the City 
 
The City of Republic, Missouri, (“City”) was incorporated in 1871 and became a chartered city in 2007.  
The estimated population is approximately 19,136.  The City’s governing body consists of one (1) elected 
Mayor and eight (8) elected Council-members, each elected for a four (4) year term.  The City has a full-
time City Administrator who reports to the Mayor and City Council and oversees daily operations. 
 
The City has the following departments:  Fire, Police, Parks and Recreation, Administration, Finance, 
Legal, IT, Human Resources, Municipal Court and BUILDS, which includes Planning, Animal Control, 
Street, Utility and Wastewater.  The City employs approximately 150 full-time personnel plus regular part 
time and temporary/seasonal personnel. 
 
The City covers an area of approximately 13.5 square miles and has over 150 acres of park land. The City 
has multiple facilities located within City limits including two (2) fire stations, one (1) police department, 
two (2) park gymnasiums (community center), one (1) aquatic center, one (1) city hall, one (1) planning 
and economic development building, one (1) public works building, and various other buildings/facilities 
that support City services.  
 
 

Background and RFQ Summary 
 
The City’s Administration Office manages the insurance program and is seeking the professional services 
of a licensed insurance broker, consultant, and/or firm(s) able to provide (1) brokerage and consulting 
services for accessing insurance markets, (2) brokerage and insurance advisory services, and (3) direct 
support in the area of insurance and other related contracts.   
 
The City currently utilizes three (3) insurance brokerages for their insurance needs:  One (1) for general 
liability, property casualty, and fire insurance, one (1) for health, major medical, prescriptions, dental, 
vision, and life, as well as additional insurance services related to individual employee benefits, including 
long/short term disability policies, supplemental plans, and flexible spending accounts, and one (1) for 
workers’ compensation insurance.   
 
 
 
 
 

43

Item 7.



2 of 9 

 

 

The following is a general overview of the City’s current employee benefits programs. This information is 
provided solely for the purpose of assisting in the preparation of responses to this RFQ: 
 

Type of Coverage Funding Type Carrier Plan Type Employees Enrolled 

Medical Fully Insured Anthem PPO/EPO 150 
Dental Fully Insured Guardian  151 

Vision Fully Insured Anthem Full Service/Material Only 117 

Basic Life / AD&D Fully Insured Guardian Basic 154 
Optional Life: Fully Insured Guardian Short Term Dis.  

Long Term Dis.  
Vol. Life-Self  

Vol Life-Spouse 
Vol Life-Child 

63 
60 
54 
26 
18 

Supplemental Plans Fully Insured Guardian Accident  
Critical Illness Hospital 

Indemnity 

28 
16 
10 

GAP Fully Insured TransAmerica GAP 62 

EAP Fully Insured PAS  154 

FSA  CAS FSA-Medical  
FSA-Dep Care 

47 
1 

 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

a. The Services to be Provided: The City is seeking qualifications from licensed insurance brokerage 
firms (or their authorized agents) and licensed insurance brokers to:  (1) provide annual support 
and advisory services to City Council and City staff members; (2) represent the City in acquiring 
insurance that meets the needs of the City and its employees; and (3) ensure access to insurance 
markets for obtaining and securing the most competitive qualifications and affordable options.  The 
City desires to contract with a brokerage firm and/or broker to provide the professional services 
for a three (3) year period.  It is the City’s intent to receive statements of qualifications from eligible 
and licensed insurance brokerage firms, brokers, and/or consultants engaged in the business of 
Health, Major Medical, Prescription Drug, Dental, Vision and Life Insurance, Long/Short Term 
Disability benefits, Supplemental coverages and Employee Assistance Programs.   
 
The selected firm/broker will be expected to provide the following Scope of Services, as directed 
by the Republic City Council and/or authorized City staff: 

 
i. Review City policies, resolutions, and ordinances to ensure conformance with negotiated 

insurance coverage and to ensure the timely issuance of policies and endorsements to the 
City. 

ii. Review each insurance policy, binder, certificate, endorsement, or other insuring document 
issued to the City to ensure coverage conformance with specifications. 

iii. Structure insurance programs to eliminate gaps and overlaps in coverage and to provide 
the limits/amounts requested by the City and/or as required by law.     

iv. Act as liaison between the City and its insurers, and in doing so, provide top-quality 
customer service with the ability to be reached after business hours and on weekends. 

44

Item 7.



3 of 9 

 

 

v. Annually market the City’s insurance policies in the open market to capture the best and 
most comprehensive insurance coverage at the best possible premium to the City. 

vi. Annually disclose all financial contract terms with each insurance carrier to provide 
transparent disclosure of all commissions, rebates, reimbursements, and/or discounts 
earned by the broker, consultant, and/or firm for insurance coverage provided to the City. 

vii. Provide the City with an early warning of pending rate, coverage, or renewal problems, 
including significant changes in the financial status of insurers.  

viii. Inform the City of any significant changes in market conditions and/or significant 
variations with the City’s claim experience(s) that may affect the City’s insurance program 
and/or its premiums. 

ix. Work in conjunction with the Human Resources Department by assisting City employees 
in settling claims or grievances relating to insurance benefits issues. (The proposer that is 
awarded the Insurance Broker and Advisory Services contract shall have a staff member 
dedicated to resolving claims, both pending and denied.) 

x. Assist with health benefit administration, wellness and preventive insurance management 
and provide advice and guidance on new laws, regulations, and, if applicable, advise on 
procedures in the area of health benefit administration. 

xi. Provide and maintain an electronic system for employees to enroll in coverage and will 
assist the Human Resources Department by processing enrollments, terminations, changes, 
COBRA notification processes and applications, and other forms for administration and 
claims.  

xii. Provide advisory services and professional opinions on Health Care Reform, COBRA, 
HIPPA, Section #125 plans, and other similar programs. 

xiii. Upon request, attend meetings with City Council and/or City staff. 
xiv. Upon request, provide the City with written reports designed to assist with the development 

and planning of long-range insurance strategies for meeting the City’s future/forecast 
needs. 

 
b. Professional Services Agreement and Term:  The selected broker(s) will be required to execute a 

Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with the City for provision of the services specified 
under this RFQ.  The term will endure for a total of three (3) years beginning on the date of 
execution of the Agreement and ending at the conclusion of the third calendar year following the 
commencement date.  The services provided under this RFQ will be on an as-needed basis, to be 
determined solely by the City.  The term will not provide renewal options.  The broker/firm 
selected is expected to be involved with the City’s 2024 open enrollment process, which occurs 
in the fall of 2023.     

  
c. Professional Qualifications:  All work or services pursuant to award under this RFQ shall be 

performed solely by duly licensed insurance brokerage firms (or their authorized agents), or duly 
licensed insurance brokers with a minimum of three (3) years’ experience in the general regional 
area of southwest Missouri. 
 

 
  

45

Item 7.



4 of 9 

 

 

II. SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS AND PROCEDURES 
 

RFQ Schedule / Timeline ** 
 

Activity Date 
RFQ Distribution April 4, 2023 
RFQ Responses Due (“Response Deadline”) April 21, 2023 
Qualification Review begins April 24, 2023 
Presentations with Selected Finalists begins Week of May 15, 2023 
Council approval of selected broker June 2023 

 
**The above schedule may be changed at the City’s discretion 

 

1. Timeliness and Rejection of Late Submissions:   

1.1. It is the sole responsibility of the submitting entity to see that submittals are received by 
the Response Deadline.  The submitting entity shall bear any and all risks for any delays 
associated with their selected method of delivery or that are misdirected due to improper 
identification.   

1.2. Any submission received by the City after the Response Deadline will be rejected by the 
City as non-responsive.   

1.3. In the event of a late submission, the City will leave the response unopened and provide 
notice to the submitting party of the following: “The submitted qualification was received 
after the delivery time designated for the receipt of responses and therefore considered non-
responsive.” 

 
2. Withdrawal: Any submittal may be withdrawn prior to the Response Deadline. Any 

submittal not withdrawn prior to the Response Deadline shall constitute an irrevocable offer to 
the City for a period of sixty (60) days following the Response Deadline. 
 

3. Addenda:  The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby 
interpretation, clarification, or additional information as to a submission can be given. If any 
addenda are issued to the RFQ, the City will attempt to notify all prospective brokers, 
consultants, and/or firms who have secured the same. However, it shall be the responsibility 
of each broker, consultant, and/or firm, prior to submitting their qualification, to contact the 
City of Republic’s Human Resources Director’s office (417-732-3112) to determine if the 
addenda were issued and to make such addenda a part of the competitive qualification. 

3.1. Notwithstanding the above, the City reserves the right to request clarification of 
information submitted and to request additional information of one or more applicants. 

 
4. Modifications/Corrections:  Submitted  qualifications may be corrected or modified, 

provided that the correction or modification is made in writing, and is received by the City 
prior to the date and time designated in the RFP as the Response Deadline.  After such date 
and time, the submitter may not modify or correct its submission in a manner prejudicial to the 
notions of fair competition or to the City. 

4.1. Notwithstanding the above, the City reserves the right to request clarification of 
information submitted and to request additional information of one or more applicants. 

46

Item 7.



5 of 9 

 

 

5. Submitter’s Responsibility to Ensure Completeness and Compliance:  

5.1. Each broker, consultant, and/or firm shall examine all RFQ documents and shall judge 
all matters relating to the adequacy and accuracy of such documents.  

5.2. Any inquiries, suggestions, or requests concerning interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information pertaining to the RFQ shall be made in writing and directed to the 
City of Republic, Human Resources Director, in advance of the Response Deadline.   

5.3. Generally, responses that do not include all required information will be deemed non-
responsive and disqualified accordingly.   

5.4. Notwithstanding the above, the City reserves the right to waive any informalities, 
irregularities, or variances, whether technical or substantive in nature, or reject any and all 
responses at its sole discretion.  

 
6. Oral/Verbal Interpretations.  The City shall not be responsible for verbal/oral interpretation 

given by any City employee, representative, or others.  
 

7. Preparation Expenses.  Each broker, consultant, and/or firm preparing a response to the RFQ 
shall bear all expenses associated with its preparation and any subsequent and related expenses, 
and no claims for reimbursement shall be submitted to the City for the expense of preparation 
or presentation. 
 

8. Format of Submissions.  Two (2) originals and six (6) copies for a total of eight (8) responses must 
be submitted. The envelope or package containing the responses must be clearly 
marked/labeled as follows: 
 

City of Republic 
Attn: Melissa Wallen, Benefits & Payroll Specialist 

213 North Main Street 
Republic, MO 65738 

RFQ – Insurance Brokerage and Advisory Services 
 

9. Minority and Women-Owned Businesses. The City expressly encourages responses to this 
RFQ from disadvantaged, minority and women-owned businesses. 
 

10. Openness of Procurement Process.   

10.1. Written responses, other discussions, correspondence, and all other pertinent records 
shall be handled as public records in compliance with State and Federal open records 
statutes and regulations.  

10.2. Other than the initial period wherein the responses are being evaluated, the City gives no 
assurance as to the confidentiality of any portion of any document once submitted.  

10.3. All documents relating to this RFQ, subsequent submittals and meetings with the City 
Council are subject to statutory requirements of the Missouri Sunshine Law. 

 
11. Errors and Omissions.  Once a qualification is submitted, the City may consider requests by 

any broker, consultant, and/or firm to correct errors or omissions, but shall retain sole 
discretionary authority to determine the outcome of such a request. 

 

47

Item 7.



6 of 9 

 

 

12. Retention and Disposal of Statements of Qualifications.  The City reserves the right to retain 
all submitted statements for public record keeping purposes. No copies of any material will be 
returned to the broker, consultant, and/or firm. The City reserves the right, and the 
Administration/Human Resource Department has absolute and sole discretion, to cancel this 
solicitation at any time prior to the execution of a formal contract. 

 
13. Collusion.   

13.1. By offering a response to this RFQ, the broker, consultant, and/or firm certifies that they 
have not divulged to or discussed or compared its submittal with any competitors, and 
have not colluded with any other broker, consultant, and/or firm or parties to this process 
whatsoever.  

13.2. By submitting a response to this RFQ, the submitting entity certifies that:  

13.2.1. No attempt has been made or will be made by the broker, consultant, and/or firm 
to induce any other person or firm to submit or not to submit a Statement of 
Qualification for the purpose of restricting competition. 

13.2.2. All persons interested in this service, principal, or principals being named therein 
and no other person have an interest in this service or in the Agreement to be 
entered into. 

13.2.3. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this 
Agreement upon an agreement or understating for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, accepting bona fide employees or established 
commercial agencies maintained by the consultant for the purpose of doing 
business. 

 
14. Conferences.   

14.1. Conferences for prospective brokers, consultants, and/or firms will be scheduled upon 
request, and as time allows, providing for interviews with key City staff.   

14.2. These sessions can provide an opportunity for the City to respond to questions about the 
requested work.  

14.3. Conferences are not mandatory but are highly recommended.  

14.4. Due to the desire to complete the selection process quickly, only substantive issues 
discovered in individual conferences will be formalized and distributed in an RFQ 
Addendum.  

14.5. Substantive issues should be generally limited to correcting errors or omissions in the 
RFQ, alterations or modification to the scope of services or the proposed contract for 
services, however, the City retains sole discretion to determine the content or need for a 
formal Addendum. 

 
15. Rejection of Responses.  The City may reject responses if: 

15.1. The consultant misstates or conceals any material fact in the qualifications. 

15.2. The rejection of all responses is deemed to be in the best interest of the City. 
 

 

48

Item 7.



7 of 9 

 

 

III. SUBMISSION CONTENTS REQUIREMENTS  

Any documents submitted in response to this RFQ must provide sufficient detail and 
information so as to allow a complete evaluation of its merit. The instructions contained herein 
must be followed in order for competitive responses to be considered responsive to this RFQ. The 
City reserves the right to cancel this solicitation at any time. 

All brokers, consultants, and/or firms responding to this RFQ shall provide sufficient 
information and data to fully allow a complete evaluation of their qualifications. Information and 
data submitted by each broker, consultant, and/or firm with the qualification shall become part of 
the contract documents. 

Responses must generally conform to the following format: 

1. Cover Letter 
2. Table of Contents 
3. Sections 

(1) Introduction and Execution 
(2) Qualifications of Firm (if applicable) 
(3) Qualifications of Staff 
(4) References 
(5) Technical Approach 
(6) Timetable 
(7) E-verify and Other Information 
(8) Sample Documents 

 

1. Section 1 – Introduction and Executed Signature Page: 

1.1. The introduction section must contain an overview of the broker, consultant, and/or firm 
and any sub-consultants.  

1.2. The introduction must clearly indicate the legal name, address, telephone number, and 
local contact information (if available) of the submitter. 

1.3. The introduction must indicate whether the submitter is a corporation, general 
partnership, individual or other business entity.  

1.4. The introduction must include a statement to the effect that:  “The Submission of this 
Statement of Qualifications indicates acceptance by the broker, consultant, and/or firm of 
the stipulations contained in the Request for Qualifications and the terms and conditions 
of the Professional Services Agreement included therein.” 

1.5. The statement must be signed above the typed or printed name and title of the signer. The 
signer must have the authority to bind the broker, consultant, and/or firm to the submitted 
response. 

2. Section 2 – Qualifications of Firm: 

2.1. Provide a description and history of the firm (if applicable).  

2.2. Provide recent experience demonstrating current capacity, familiarity and expertise in 
insurance advisory services as they relate to municipal or local government.  

2.3. Specific experience in government regulations and law, including (but not limited to) 
health care reform, will be considered most valuable. 

49

Item 7.



8 of 9 

 

 

2.4. Provide an organizational chart and summary of staff qualifications.  

2.5. State the number and nature of the staff employed with the firm and the office in which 
the bulk of the work engagements will be performed. 

3. Section 3 – Qualifications of Staff: 

3.1. Provide resumes (or equivalent information) specifying relevant background, education 
and experience, for all service staff likely to be utilized in performing the Scope of Services.  

3.2. Include years of experience with the firm (if applicable), years of experience as a licensed 
insurance broker/consultant in Missouri, number of municipal/government clients 
represented, and expertise or specialty training in insurance platforms.  

3.3. Include notice of any investigations or disciplinary action taken or pending by national or 
state regulatory bodies against the firm or individuals employed by the firm. 

4. Section 4 – Familiarity/History within the Service Limits: 

4.1. Provide a list of all relevant engagements the broker, consultant, and/or firm completed 
for local government entities within the last ten (10) years.  

4.2. Illustrate how previous experience within the area may be of benefit in the execution of 
the present Scope of Services. 

5. Section 5 – References: 

5.1. Provide at least five (5) references for which the broker, consultant, and/or firm has 
performed services within the past two (2) years that are similar to the requirements in the 
Scope of Services.  

5.1.1. At least three of the references should be from government entities for work 
performed that is similar to that specified in this RFQ.  

5.2. Provide the reference contact name, address, e-mail address, telephone numbers and a 
summary and date of the services provided. 

6. Section 6 – Technical Approach: 

6.1. Provide a general description of the submitter’s approach to providing the Scope of 
Services.  

6.2. Include, for example, an explanation of the submitter’s process of presenting the City’s 
insurance needs to the open market.  

6.3. Describe the submitter’s capabilities and the ability to comply with deadlines and timelines 
identified in the Scope of Services. 

7. Section 7 – E-Verify and Other Information: 

7.1. For any contract for services greater than $5,000, the successful bidder shall comply with 
§ 285.530, RSMo, as amended, and: 

7.1.1. Provide by sworn affidavit affirmation that it does not knowingly employ any 
person who is an unauthorized alien and  

7.1.2. Provide documentation affirming its enrollment and participation in a federal 
work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection 
with this contract.   

50

Item 7.



9 of 9 

 

 

7.2. The required documentation affirming enrollment must be from the federal work 
authorization program provider.   

7.3. Responses must include the signed and notarized Work Authorization Affidavit and the 
electronic signature page from the E-Verify program.  A letter from the bidder or 
respondent reciting compliance is not sufficient.   

8. Section 8 – Sample Documents: 

8.1. The Broker, Consultant, and/or Firm are encouraged to provide examples of documents, 
reports, reviews, correspondence or other records used for similar engagements with other 
municipal/government agencies. 

 
IV. EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 

1. Overview:  All responses will be evaluated by a selection committee comprised of City staff 
members.  Responses will be evaluated with respect to the completeness of the information 
provided, support for all claims made, and the overall approach taken. 
 

2. Specific Criteria Considered: The following criteria will be utilized in the technical evaluation 
of qualifications: 

2.1. Firm, Broker, and/or Consultant Experience and Qualifications 

2.2. Experience with similar engagements involving local government and/or other 
governmental agencies. 

2.3. Key Staff, Insurance Industry Knowledge, and Understanding/Approach to competitive 
bidding. 

2.4. Projected timeframe and ability to provide services throughout duration of the period 
desired. 

2.5. Thoroughness of material submitted, including the qualified work plan and the quality, 
amount and type of service provided. 

2.6. Reports from references. 
 

3. Required Licensure/Certification.  Award under this RFP will only be given to an entity or 
entities possessing all required registrations, certifications and/or licenses from the Missouri 
Department of Insurance and Secretary of State, as required by Missouri Law.  
 

4. Other reservations / terms:  

4.1. The City will select and negotiate with those broker(s), consultant(s), and/or firm(s) whose 
submittals are responsive to this RFQ and are in the best interest of the City.  

4.2. The City reserves the right to contract with one or more brokers, consultants, and/or firms 
for any of the insurance services as listed above. 

4.3. The City reserves the right to contract with one (1) entity to meet all of its insurance service 
needs, or, alternatively, to contract with multiple different entities or individual brokers to 
provide the same services. All submitters under this RFQ should indicate their preference, 
if any, of the type of insurance services they can, or will, perform for the City. 

 

51

Item 7.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Insurance Brokerage and Advisory Services 

RFQ 23-02 

Respectfully submitted by Ollis/Akers/Arney 

Primary Contact – Ryan Allison 

April 21, 2023 

 

52

Item 7.



Dear City of Republic RFQ Committee, 

The team at Ollis/Akers/Arney is truly excited by the opportunity to respond to your REQUEST FOR 

QUALIFICATIONS: INSURANCE BROKERAGE AND ADVISORY SERVICES (RFQ 23-02). 

After reviewing the information sent and building off the responses and concerns conveyed by staff in our RFQ 

conference, the following are our answers, observations, and initial strategic solutions.  In addition, we understand 

the importance the below Mission, Vision and Values have to the City of Republic and the cultural impact it has 

on your team.  We believe our model and strategic program development is tightly connected to this focus.   

We heard from the team the desire to have a partner that: 

1. Is creative and uses “out of the box” solutions

2. Provides elite concierge service to staff and employees

3. Communicates and educates your staff and employees on the program and resources, bringing more

value to them and their families

4. Makes it easy

Our fit for these needs is showcased in section 4.2. As evidenced in our complete response, we believe our 

strengths in the values of Regional, Ethical, Professional, Urgent, Bold, Leaders, Insightful, and Caring make us the 

perfect partner for your employee benefits program. 

Sincerely, 

Ryan Allison 
Advisor 
Ollis/Akers/Arney 

53

Item 7.



1. Cover Letter

2. Table of Contents

3. Sections

(1) Introduction and Executed Signature Page

(2) Qualifications of Firm

(3) Qualifications of Staff

(4) References

(5) Technical Approach

(6) Timetable

(7) E-Verify and Other Information

(8) Sample Documents

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

54

Item 7.



1.1. The introduction section must contain an overview of the broker, consultant, and/or firm and 

any sub-consultants. 

Section 1 – Introduction & Executed Signature Page

55

Item 7.



56

Item 7.



57

Item 7.



1.2. The introduction must clearly indicate the legal name, address, telephone number, and local 

contact information (if available) of the submitter. 

Ollis & Company dba Ollis/Akers/Arney 

2274 E. Sunshine St. 

Springfield, MO  65804 

417-881-8333

Ryan Allison (ext. 102) 

Ryan.Allison@ollisaa.com 

1.3. The introduction must indicate whether the submitter is a corporation, general partnership, 

individual, or other business entity. 

Ollis/Akers/Arney is a corporation and 100% employee owned through an ESOP (Employee Stock 

Ownership Plan) 

1.4. The introduction must include a statement to the effect that: “The submission of this Statement 

of Qualifications indicates acceptance by the broker, consultant, and/or firm of the stipulation 

contained in the Request for Qualifications and the terms and conditions of the Professional Services 

Agreement included therein.” 

Included on signed statement on next page. 

1.5. The statement must be signed above the typed or printed name and title of the signer. The signer 

must have the authority to bind the broker, consultant, and/or firm to the submitted response. 

Included on signed statement on next page. 

58

Item 7.

mailto:Ryan.Allison@ollisaa.com


59

Item 7.



 

2.1. Provide a description and history of the firm (if applicable). 

Established in 1885 to provide much needed fire, property and liability coverage for homeowners, 
businesses, and farmers, we have continued our tradition as an industry leader in innovative solutions 
to help our clients reduce risk and control costs long term for more than 135 years.   
 
In 2020 we joined the Beyond Insurance Global Network of Independent Agencies (BIGN).  The BIGN is a 
National Network of over 75 Independently Owned insurance, employee benefits, risk consulting 
agencies with over 1500 employees, over $2 Billion in written premium and is the 4th largest insurance 
network in the U.S.  This partnership expanded Ollis/Akers/Arney’s resources, increased our ability to 
innovate for our clients and elevated our unique model nationally. 
 
Today, Ollis/Akers/Arney is headquartered at 2274 E. Sunshine Street Springfield MO. As a 100% 
employee-owned company, our 64 employee-owners have a vested interest in our clients’ growth and 
success. Fifty-five of our employees are licensed agents. With over $124 million in managed premium, 
our clients range from private enterprises to public entities in the form of small local offices to large 
national corporations. We’ve had an emphasis through our public entity department on the challenges 
and risks facing municipalities, counties, and various other publicly funded organizations for over 30 
years.  
 
Our philosophy is simple; we strive to understand your business and your team at every level of the 
organization. This complete understanding allows us to proactively develop customized strategic plans 
that address current risks, emerging risks and deliver the most of your human capital.  
 
This philosophy and proactive process for our clients has earned us various awards of national 
recognition as a national leader in the risk and insurance industry. Among those: recognition as a Best 
Practices Agency in the United States designation by the Independent Insurance Agents & Brokers of 
America, Inc. and Reagan Consulting and recognized as a 4-time winner of Top Insurance Employer by 
Insurance Business America.  For the second year in a row, we have been recognized in the Top 3 of Best 
Places to Work by Biz 417 and Best Companies Group.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 2 – Qualifications of Firm 

60

Item 7.



 

61

Item 7.



 

2.2. Provide recent experience demonstrating current capacity, familiarity, and expertise in the 

insurance advisory services as they relate to municipal or local government. 

Ollis/Akers/Arney formed a Public Entity Department, which includes over 50% of our staff focusing in this area. 

The team currently represents numerous public entity clients across the State of Missouri, including 26 local 

governments.  

Ollis/Akers/Arney has multiple team members who are serving or have served on local city councils and school 

boards throughout Southwest Missouri.  

We are active members in the Missouri Municipal League (MML), Missouri Association of Counties (MAC), 

Missouri Association of School Administrators (MASA), Missouri Rural Health Association (MRHA), and the 

Missouri Chamber of Commerce.  Ollis/Akers/Arney not only sponsors these organizations, but provides 

educational seminars for their conferences, meetings, and conventions. 

As an industry leader in public entity risk management, the Ollis/Akers/Arney Public Entity Department 

understands the unique risks facing municipal/local governments. Public entities face the struggle of adhering to 

a strict budget without the ability to easily increase funding. The cost of insuring governmental bodies continues 

to increase; from health insurance to building replacement. Talent attraction and retention is heavily influenced 

by the scope of the benefits program as salaries are typically not as competitive as private business.  

62

Item 7.



Ollis/Akers/Arney focuses on providing the most value for the dollars spent on the benefits program. We work to 

communicate the value to the employees at a higher level, helping them understand the program better and 

becoming better stewards of the plan.  

While most of the examples of expertise provided in this RFQ response center around the employee benefits 

program, Ollis/Akers/Arney understands that public entities face unique property & casualty risks. The topic of 

preserving Sovereign Immunity is one that without a complete understanding of the laws, may put the entity at 

greater risk of waiving their sovereign immunity. 

We have invested in tools and resources that can be tailored to the individual needs of the City. From training 

modules to compliance updates and guidance. We are experts in this field and have chosen to devote our time 

and resources to improving the Risk Profile of our public entity clients. 

Our process is unique in the marketplace and has proven to be a huge benefit to City Managers and Administrators 

by controlling their cost and budget. It also frees up time they previously spent on risk management tasks, so they 

can focus on other areas such as economic development and revenue growth! 

 

63

Item 7.



2.3. Specific experience in government regulations and law, including (but not limited to) health care 

reform, will be considered most valuable. 

Ollis/Akers/Arney is committed to keeping our clients updated with changes in federal, state, and local laws 

that would impact them. This process also includes recommendations on addressing the issue. We use the 

following methods of communication including, although not limited to email, phone calls, virtual meetings 

and in-person consultation.  

Ollis/Akers/Arney has invested heavily to provide 
our clients relevant information regarding changes 
in legal compliance requirements. We have 
multiple conduits available to provide this 
information to our clients based on specific needs.  
 
We belong to Missouri Association of Insurance 
Advisors, as well as the Independent Insurance 
Agents of America on a national level.  We leverage 
these resources, along with numerous industry 
newsletters, blogs, breaking news alerts, etc. to 
stay up to date in the tumultuous health care and 
insurance marketplace.  We pride ourselves on 
being continual students of the industry to keep our 
clients up to date on matters that impact their 
benefits programs.    
 
Karen Shannon (human resources) and Brian 
Johnston (legal/regulation) are members of local 
and national organizations in their respective fields.  
They stay informed on emerging trends through 
continuing education and provide valuable insight 
to our staff and clients on legislative developments.   
 

Brian Johnston, Partner, Jackson 

Lewis 

913-981-1018 

Brian.Johnston@jacksonlewis.com 

Brian Johnston leads the Employee Benefits and Executive Compensation practice group for the 

Jackson Lewis law firm in Kansas City. With more than twenty years of representing public and 

private businesses, Brian has unique knowledge and experience with the design, implementation, 

and administration of health plans. In each of these areas, Brian advises clients concerning 

fiduciary responsibilities in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements applicable to 

employee benefit plans.   

 

64

Item 7.

mailto:Brian.Johnston@jacksonlewis.com


Ollis/Akers/Arney has always believed in and provides a documented transparent compensation arrangement 

where all remuneration is fully disclosed and agreed upon as part of our service agreement.   

We are excited to communicate that this transparency is now a law for the entire employee benefits insurance 

industry.  The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (CAA) contained many policy provisions, including a 

transparency provision, that requires brokers and consultants to disclose to their group health clients the 

compensation they expect to receive and describe the services they provide in return prior to each plan year.  This 

law was effective as of 12/27/2021 and is a requirement.   

The introduction of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021 (CAA) has requirements that impact you, the 

City of Republic, as you are the fiduciary of your benefits plan.  

With that responsibility, you must be able to provide evidence of your effort to help improve the cost of health 

care for your employees.  This includes having a copy of the compensation paid to your broker on file.  It also 

requires your broker and carrier to provide you the compensation they receive for the servicing of your program.   

A recent article from BenefitsPro.com states, the CAA will “soon begin holding employers accountable for 

upholding their fiduciary responsibility and exploring insurance options that lower the cost of the employee health 

care.”  

Below is a compliance overview of the law and the form we use to communicate our compensation 

transparency to our clients: 

 

  

65

Item 7.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66

Item 7.



2.4. Provide an organizational chart and summary of staff qualifications. 

 

 

 

Summary of staff qualifications on following page. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

67

Item 7.



Primary Account Team 

 
Ryan Allison – Employee Benefits Advisor, Benefit Advisor, Licensed in Life & Health, 3 Years of 
Employment, 3 Years of Insurance Industry Experience. Ryan is the Primary Account Advisor responsible 
for strategic plan design, program measurement/improvements, customer satisfaction, and 
development of insurance programs. 

 
 

John Akers – Vice President, Employee Benefits, Benefits & Commercial Advisor, Licensed in Property 
& Casualty and Life & Health, 31 Years of Employment, 31 Years of Insurance Industry Experience. John 
is responsible for strategic planning, DATA analysis of program components, partner/vendor 
negotiations and development of insurance programs. 

 
 

Erica Gaynor – Employee Benefits Advisor & Account Executive, Licensed in Life & Health, 17 Years of 
Employment, 17 Years of Insurance Industry Experience. Erica is responsible for strategic plan 
coordination and implementation through the exclusive Ollis Edge 360 process. 

 
 

Pamela Hamilton – Employee Benefits Account Manager, Licensed in Life & Health and Property & 
Casualty, 6 Years of Employment, 24 Years Insurance Industry Experience. Pamela is the Primary 
Account Manager responsible for the day-to-day implementation and service of the employee benefits 
program. 

 
Myleah Shrimpton – Director of Claims, Licensed in Property & Casualty and Life & Health, 12 Years of 
Employment, 19 Years Insurance Industry Experience. Myleah works closely with clients as a claim 
arises. The claims are prioritized based on level of severity and complexity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68

Item 7.



Additional Resource Account Team 

Hailie Woodruff – Employee Benefits Account Manager, Licensed in Life & Health, 2 Years of 
Employment, 2 Years Insurance Industry Experience. Hailie assists Pamela with the responsibility for the 
day-to-day implementation and service of the employee benefits program. 

 
Rachel Rumker – Claims Coordinator, Licensed in Property & Casualty and Life & Health, 5 Years of 
Employment, 5 Years Insurance Industry Experience. Rachel works closely with clients as a claim arises. 
The claims are prioritized based on level of severity and complexity. 

 
Cameron Black – Wellness Director & Employee Benefits Advisor, Licensed in Life & Health, 13 Years of 
Employment, 13 Years of Insurance Industry Experience. Cameron is responsible for strategic planning, 
development and implementation of wellness programs and the impact on the employee benefits plans. 

 
Karen Shannon – Vice President of Business Consulting/Chief Human Resources Officer, 9 Years of 
Employment, 30 Years HR Industry Experience. Karen and her team assist clients with Human Resources 
and Compliance issues. 

 
 

Peggy Gawley – Senior Products Advisor, Licensed in Life & Health, 8 Years of Employment, 23 Years of 
Insurance Industry Experience. Peggy is an advocate for clients nearing Medicare eligibility age or those 
currently enrolled who are looking to choose the plan that best meets their current and evolving 
healthcare needs. 
 
Pam Klein – Product and Client Technology Specialist, Licensed in Property & Casualty, 12 Years of 
Employment, 32 Years of Insurance Industry Experience. Pam is committed to providing training, 
education and troubleshooting responses to all internal and client facing technology offered by 
Ollis/Akers/Arney. 

 
Kevin Robbins – Chief Sales Officer, Licensed in Property & Casualty, 11 Years of Employment, 11 Years 
Insurance Industry Experience. Kevin leads the Ollis/Akers/Arney Advisors in proactively protecting 
clients’ employees, assets, and income through a proven documented approach. 

 
 

Joe Gaunt – Director of Operations, Licensed in Property & Casualty, 4 Years of Employment, 14 Years 
Insurance Industry Experience. Joe’s role is to improve the client experience by optimizing internal 
software, ensuring high quality client service across all departments, and oversees personal and 
commercial lines support teams. 

 

Richard Ollis – CEO, Commercial & Benefit Advisor, Licensed in Property & Casualty and Life & Health, 
38 Years of Employment, 38 Years of Insurance Industry Experience. Richard is responsible for 
coordinating the property and casualty program and acting as a liaison for the employee benefits 
program. 

69

Item 7.



2.5. State the number and nature of the staff employed with the firm and the office in which the 

bulk of work engagements will be performed. 

Today, Ollis/Akers/Arney is headquartered at 2274 E. Sunshine Street Springfield MO.  This office 
location will perform the bulk of work engagements for your account.   
 
As a 100% employee-owned company, our 64 employee-owners have a vested interest in our clients’ 
growth and success. Fifty-five of our employees are licensed agents. With over $124 million in managed 
premium, our clients range from private enterprises to public entities in the form of small local offices 
to large national corporations. We’ve had an emphasis through our public entity department on the 
challenges and risks facing municipalities, counties, and various other publicly funded organizations for 
over 30 years.  
 
Our philosophy is simple; we strive to understand your business and your team at every level of the 
organization. This complete understanding allows us to proactively develop customized strategic plans 
that address current risks, emerging risks and deliver the most of your human capital.  
 
This philosophy and proactive process for our clients has earned us various awards of national 
recognition as a national leader in the risk and insurance industry. Among those: recognition as a Best 
Practices Agency in the United States designation by the Independent Insurance Agents & Brokers of 
America, Inc. and Reagan Consulting and recognized as a 4-time winner of Top Insurance Employer by 
Insurance Business America.  For the second year in a row, we have been recognized in the Top 3 of Best 
Places to Work by Biz 417 and Best Companies Group.   
 

 

 

  

70

Item 7.



 

3.1. Provide resumes (or equivalent information) specifying relevant background, education, and 

experience, for all service staff likely to be utilized in performing the Scope of Services. 

 

Ryan Allison: Advisor (Primary Advisor)    

2 Years Insurance Industry Experience 

417.881.8333 | Ryan.Allison@ollisaa.com  

 
Ryan joined us in June of 2020 and assists 
clients as an advisor in our employee benefits 
department. He is an Advisor licensed in Life 
and Health. Ryan has served in roles outside 
the insurance industry specializing in 
employer health services, business 
development, and relationship management. 
Ryan is the original founder of the Springfield 
Work Comp Task Force formed in 2015, now 
called the Springfield Work Comp Coalition. 
Ryan is also an active member of The Network, 
the young professional division of the 
Springfield Chamber. 

 

John E. Akers, CIC: Vice President - Employee Benefits (Secondary Advisor)  

31 Years Insurance Industry Experience 

417.334.5115 | John.Akers@ollisaa.com 

 

John Akers received his Business Degree in 

1990 from the University of Missouri. John 

currently leads the Benefits Department for 

the agency and serves on the Board of 

Directors.  He is an Advisor licensed in Life and 

Health as well as Property and Casualty and 

has earned the Certified Insurance Counselor 

(CIC) designation. John has been voted 

Outstanding Young Agent of Missouri by the 

Missouri Association of Independent Agents 

and was honored as a 2018 Trusted Advisor by 

the Springfield Business Journal.  John uses his 

vast experience to monitor ongoing claims, 

plan performance forecasting, claims experience analysis and data mining to benchmark and 

negotiate the best possible outcome for the client. 

 

Section 3 – Qualifications of Staff 

71

Item 7.

mailto:Ryan.Allison@ollisaa.com
mailto:John.Akers@ollisaa.com


Erica Gaynor, REBC, CHRS: Advisor/Account Executive (Secondary Advisor)   

20 Years Insurance Industry Experience 

417.881.8333 | Erica.Gaynor@ollisaa.com  

 

Erica has worked in the insurance industry 

since 2002 and joined the Ollis/Akers/Arney 

Benefits team in 2005.  She holds agent 

licenses for Life and Health as well as Property 

and Casualty. She is a member of The National 

Association of Health Underwriters (NAHU), is 

a Certified Healthcare Reform Specialist 

(CHRS) and has received her Registered 

Employee Benefits Consultant (REBC) 

designation. Erica was honored as a 

2017 Trusted Adviser by the Springfield 

Business Journal and chosen as one of 

Springfield Business Journal’s 2020 40 Under 

40 honorees. Erica was chosen as one of twenty women recognized at a national level as the Top 

Women in Benefits Advising for 2020. Erica serves on the Board of Directors for the Victim Center, 

Developmental Center of the Ozarks and Hamels Foundation and is also a member of Junior 

League of Springfield. Erica works with employee benefits clients in developing and implementing 

a customized plan to meet their specific needs. She ensures that all plan components are 

communicated effectively, measured, and delivered in coordination with the plan timeline. 

 

Pamela Hamilton: Employee Benefits Supervisor 

25 Years Insurance Industry Experience  

417.881.8333 | Pamela.Hamilton@ollisaa.com 

 

Pamela joined the Ollis/Akers/Arney team in 
2016. Pamela is licensed in Life and Health as 
well as Property and Casualty.  Pamela’s 
experience as a former Group Administrator 
with a private client and an Account Executive 
on the carrier side offers a unique skill set to 
the Account Manager role.  Pamela currently 
serves as the Employee Benefits Supervisor 
over the Benefits Account Management and 
Support Staff. Pamela is responsible for the 
day-to-day implementation and service of the 
employee benefits program.  Pam is the 
Missouri Association of Independent Agents 
Customer Service Representative of the year 
for 2023. 

 

72

Item 7.

mailto:Erica.Gaynor@ollisaa.com
mailto:Pamela.Hamilton@ollisaa.com


 
Hailie Woodruff: Employee Benefits Account Manager 
3 Years Industry Experience  
417.881.8333 | Hailie.Woodruff@ollisaa.com 
 

Hailie joined the Ollis/Akers/Arney team in 
2021 and is a graduate of Missouri State 
University. Hailie is licensed in Life and Health. 
Hailie is responsible for supporting the day-to-
day implementation and service of the 
employee benefits program. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Myleah Shrimpton, AIC: Director of Claims 
19 Years Insurance Industry Experience  

417.881.8333 | Myleah.Shrimpton@ollisaa.com 

 

Myleah is the Director of Claims for 

Ollis/Akers/Arney. She entered the insurance 

industry in 2003 and is a graduate of Drury 

University. Myleah holds licenses in Life, 

Health, Property & Casualty Insurance and 

joined Ollis/Akers/Arney in 2010. As a former 

underwriter she is dedicated to working with 

clients to help ensure proper mitigation, 

management, and resolution of claims. 

Myleah served on the Missouri Hospital 

Association Statewide Patient and Family 

Advisory Council. Her influence and 

knowledge of regional health systems, 

carriers and her interaction with clients was key in this appointment.  Myleah works closely with 

clients as a claim arises.  The claims are prioritized based on level of severity and complexity. 

 

 

 

 

73

Item 7.

mailto:Hailie.Woodruff@ollisaa.com
mailto:Myleah.Shrimpton@ollisaa.com


 

Rachel Rumker: Claims Coordinator   
6 Years Insurance Industry Experience 
All Lines 
417.881.8333 | Rachel.Rumker@ollisaa.com 
 
Rachel joined Ollis/Akers/Arney in an 
administrative position, moved to the role of 
Personal Lines Account Manager and was 
then promoted to Claims Coordinator. Rachel 
is licensed in Property and Casualty as well as 
Life and Health. She has 6 years of experience 
in the insurance field. She graduated from 
Southwest Baptist University in 2012 with a 
bachelor’s degree in psychology and sociology 
and earned her Property and Casualty and Life 
and Health Insurance licenses in 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

Peggy Gawley: Advisor – Senior Products 

24 Years Insurance Industry Experience 

417.881.8333 | Peggy.Gawley@ollisaa.com  

 

Peggy Gawley joined Ollis/Akers/Arney in 2014 

as an Advisor focusing on Medicare and Long-

Term Care. She has more than 24 years of 

experience in the healthcare industry and has 

enrolled more than 5,000 Medicare members 

in southwest Missouri and northern Arkansas. 

Peggy is an advocate for clients who are looking 

to choose the plan that best meets their current 

and evolving healthcare needs. Peggy is 

licensed in Life and Health and certified in Long 

Term Care, Medicare Part D, AHIP, Healthcare 

Marketplace, Medicare Fraud, Waste and 

Abuse programs. She advises her clients on all 

Medicare plan types including Long-Term Care plans. Peggy was named 2016 Trusted Adviser for 

Insurance in the Springfield Business Journal and was a guest speaker at the 2016 National 

Medicare Summit in Kansas City. 

 

 

74

Item 7.

mailto:Rachel.Rumker@ollisaa.com
mailto:Peggy.Gawley@ollisaa.com


Pam Klein, CISR-Elite: Product and Client Technology Specialist 

32 Years Insurance Industry Experience 

417.881.8333 | Pam.Klein@ollisaa.com 

 

Pam joined Ollis/Akers/Arney in September of 

2010 as an Account Manager in our Property 

& Casualty Department. Pam is licensed in 

Property and Casualty and holds a CISR-Elite 

designation and comes to our company with 

more than two decades of insurance 

experience. Pam now holds a role as 

an internal resource specialist for IT, product, 

and client technology. Pam is committed to 

providing training, education and 

troubleshooting responses to all internal and 

client facing technology offered by 

Ollis/Akers/Arney. 

 

 

Kevin Robbins: Chief Sales Officer 

11 Years Insurance Industry Experience 

417.881.8333 | Kevin.Robbins@ollisaa.com  

 

Kevin Robbins serves as the Chief Sales 

Officer for Ollis/Akers/Arney. He graduated 

Magna Cum Laude with a Business 

Administration degree from AIU and is 

licensed in Property & Casualty, Life and 

Health. With over twenty years in business 

consulting and strategic resource 

development, Kevin works with clients to 

provide simple solutions to complex business 

challenges.  He leads the Ollis/Akers/Arney 

Advisors in proactively protecting clients’ 

employees, assets and income through a 

proven documented approach. 

 

 

 

 

75

Item 7.

mailto:Pam.Klein@ollisaa.com
mailto:Kevin.Robbins@ollisaa.com


Joe Gaunt: Chief Operating Officer 

16 Years Insurance Industry Experience / partners with account managers on all clients 

417.881.8333 | Joe.Gaunt@ollisaa.com  

 

Joe joined Ollis/Akers/Arney in 2017 as the 

Client Service Specialist and is now the Director 

of Operations. Joe is licensed in Property and 

Casualty as well as Life and Health. He 

graduated from Missouri State University with 

a bachelor’s degree in administrative 

management. Previously an employee of 

ANPAC and Philadelphia Insurance Company, 

Joe brings with him over ten years of experience 

as an underwriting supervisor and 16 years in 

the insurance industry as a whole. In Joe’s 

current role, he improves the client experience 

by optimizing internal software, ensuring high 

quality client service across all departments, 

and oversees benefits, commercial and private client support teams. 

 

As a Human Resource specialist and is not an insurance advisor, Karen is not required to obtain a 

Missouri license. 

  Karen Shannon: Vice President of Business Consulting / CHRO 
30 Years HR Industry Experience 
417.881.8333 | Karen.Shannon@ollisaa.com  
 

Karen received her MBA and BA in Business Administration and Economics from Drury 

University.  She is a graduate of Leadership Missouri, past president of the Junior League, and is a 

member of the Local Issues Public Policy Task Force for the Springfield Area Chamber of 

Commerce. She has served on the Board of Directors for numerous organizations and is a regular 

presenter at national and regional conferences. Karen was recognized in 2000 by the Springfield 

Business Journal in its inaugural class of the Most Influential Women in Business.   

 

 

 

 

 

76

Item 7.

mailto:Joe.Gaunt@ollisaa.com
mailto:Karen.Shannon@ollisaa.com


3.2. Include years of experience with the firm (if applicable), years of experience as a licensed 

insurance broker/consultant in Missouri, number of municipal/government clients represented, and 

expertise or specialty training in insurance platforms. 

Operating within a High-Performing Team environment, our Advisors typically manage around 40 accounts each.   

 

Ryan Allison: Advisor (Primary Advisor)    

Years of Experience with Firm: 3 years 

Years Licensed in Missouri: 3 years 

Number of municipal/government clients: 5 

 

 
 

John E. Akers, CIC: Vice President - Employee Benefits (Secondary Advisor)  

Years of Experience with Firm: 31 years 

Years Licensed in Missouri: 31 years 

Number of municipal/government clients: 3 

Specialty training/Expertise: CIC (Certified Insurance Counselor), SBJ 2018 Trusted Adviser 

 

 

Erica Gaynor, REBC, CHRS: Advisor/Account Executive (Secondary Advisor)   

Years of Experience with Firm: 17 years 

Years Licensed in Missouri: 20 years 

Number of municipal/government clients: 2 

Specialty training/Expertise: CHRS (Certified Healthcare Reform Specialist), REBC (Registered 

Employee Benefits Consultant), SBJ 2017 Trusted Adviser, National top 20 Top Women in Benefits 

Advising for 2020, Member of NAHU (The National Association of Health Underwriters)  

  

Pamela Hamilton: Employee Benefits Supervisor 

Years of Experience with Firm: 6 years 

Years Licensed in Missouri: 6 years  

Number of municipal/government clients: 13 

Specialty training/Expertise: Missouri Association of Independent Agents Customer Service 

Representative of the year for 2023 

 
 

 

3.3. Include notice of any investigations or disciplinary action taken or pending by national or state 

regulatory bodies against the firm or individuals employed by the firm. 

There are no investigations or disciplinary actions being taken or pending by national or state 

regulatory bodies against Ollis/Akers/Arney or any individual employed by Ollis/Akers/Arney. 

77

Item 7.



 

4.1. Provide a list of all relevant engagements the broker, consultant, and/or firm completed for 

local government entities within the last ten (10) years. 

Ollis/Akers/Arney’s Public Entity Department develops innovative programs and provides guidance for 

municipalities and counties, many of which are the size of the City of Republic. Our municipality client’s range in 

residence sizes from 2,000 to well over 100,000. 

We work with multiple public entities throughout the State of Missouri. As an industry leader in public entity risk 

management, the Ollis/Akers/Arney Public Entity Department will develop a targeted plan specific to your unique 

risk.  

Risk management for public entities is unique as they have multiple exposures within the confines of their 

organization. Whereas private businesses usually have one or two specific risks they must oversee, cities often 

have various and complicated risks to consider and manage. 

We have invested in tools and resources that can be tailored to the individual needs of the city. From training 

modules to compliance updates and guidance. We are experts in this field and have chosen to devote our time 

and resources to improving the Risk Profile of our clients. 

Our process is unique in the marketplace and has proven to be a huge benefit to City Managers and Administrators 

by controlling their cost and budget. It also frees up time they previously spent on risk management tasks, so they 

can focus on other areas such as economic development and revenue growth! 

We are active members in the Missouri Municipal League (MML) and Missouri Association of Counties (MAC).  
Ollis/Akers/Arney not only sponsors these organizations but provides educational seminars for their conference 
meetings and conventions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A list of our unique and creative engagements with Public Entities over the past 10 years is on the next page: 
 

Section 4 – Familiarity/History within the Service Limits 

78

Item 7.



Due to our primary focus of Public Entity risk, providing all relevant engagements in the last ten years would be 
extensive.  In order to assist with evidence of our expertise and value in this area we have provided the below list 
of relevant engagements we have completed for local government entities.  Additional information can be 
provided upon request. 
 

1. Strategic Program structure and timeliness – An area city government was experiencing the traditional 

insurance model; misaligned renewal dates, late renewals, no long-term strategy, and late/sometimes non-

existent communications. Through our discovery phase it was evident that there was a need for structure, pre-

planned meetings and calendar coordination.  The Ollis EDGE 360 model is documented and calendared well in 

advance eliminating last-minute meetings and mitigating the stress of the renewal/open enrollment window.  We 

worked closely with them to develop a strategic plan that included a story to the insurance marketplace and a 

communication plan to improve the education of the employees around the benefits program.    

The Ollis EDGE 360 model is unique in our industry and exclusively offered to our clients.  This model has 

documented accountability measurements in place to ensure structure is at the front of each partnership.  The 

Ollis Edge 360 Model does three main things to ensure structure and timeliness:   

1. As We Agreed (AWA) – an email follow up after each meeting for to ensure clarity in the partnership 

2. Preferred Client Agreement (PCA) – the annual calendared timeline 

3. Risk Profile Assessment (RPA) – the long-term measurement of improvement towards the Risk Profile 

We follow up every meeting with a letter (The As We Agreed Letter “AWA”), identifying key areas discussed and 

next steps (Actions Items) with who is responsible for completing specific items and by when.  These letters serve 

as proof of our accountability to our clients, agreed upon activities to be completed by the client and a work order 

for both of us to follow to improve outcomes.  

The Preferred Client Agreement (PCA) is updated annually.  This document is a mutually agreed upon calendar 

that assists us in the implementation of these strategies in a documented timeline.  The structured process to our 

annual plan provides our clients and our team with expected implementation dates, resources, and analysis 

months in advance to eliminate the guess work or last-minute rush that many business leaders face today. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79

Item 7.



The Risk Profile Assessment provides an overview of key drivers of exposure to your organization, risk 

management strategies we have addressed together, along with plan performance and data analysis reviews.  We 

update the identified areas of focus to measure success and use the assessment (below) as a continuously evolving 

document over time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2. Employee Value Perception and Education – A public entity client was having issues engaging their employees 

on the value of their benefits program. The employees did not understand the full value the employer was paying 

for on their behalf. Part of the issue was the lack of education on how the program worked and what resources 

were being offered.   

We provided custom communication materials that helped staff and the employees better understand the plan 

and how to utilize it. Their current workforce is full of experienced workers along with workers new to the 

workforce. We came alongside the staff to help them better understand this unique age and experience gap, 

which leads to improved work environment and a better understanding of the benefits program. By utilizing 

multiple mediums, we helped employees gain understanding by viewing it in the way they prefer. We pushed out 

information via email, video, posting on the intranet and payroll portal, as well as traditional methods like print 

and in-person meetings. Other options available we didn’t implement were text and direct mail. 

 

80

Item 7.



3. Concierge customer service – Our model provides each client with a dedicated account manager and 

access to our in-house claims department to make sure our clients and their employees experience with 

the health plan leaves them with as little inconvenience as possible. One city government client was 

facing issues where their employees were being told they needed to provide upfront payment for COVID-

19 testing kits at the pharmacy. Their medical carrier was set up to reimburse these costs, however, this 

was a negative impact to their team and caused out of pocket expenses that did not need to occur.   

Our team worked directly with the carrier to build an option and an educational flyer to provide employees with 

information on how to access free kits through the carrier’s mobile application.   

4. Creativity, negotiation, plan design expertise – Building unique strategies and plan designs are key 

areas of focus within the Ollis EDGE 360 model. While our aim for innovation is important, we understand 

making the plan simple and straightforward alleviates confusion and stress. Each client faces distinct 

challenges and risks, making our approach tailored. Simply put – a “cookie cutter” mindset is not 

effective.  

 A. One municipality we work with has one of the most unique and robust programs due to their 

willingness to think outside of the box. Their program also allows them to plan for long-term success. 

The captive model granted them complete control over all aspects of their medical plan. They are paired 

with a transparent third-party administrator who works to provide simple and concise data. We utilize 

the data to make changes and provide education to employees on high-risk areas of the plan. Their 

pharmacy benefit manager program is carved out to allow for more transparency. There is also another 

cost savings program that is attached to the pharmacy benefit manager to assist with manufacturers 

assistance program and international sourcing lowering the cost of specialty medications for the 

employees. Finally, their plan includes a direct contract with a local healthcare organization; creating 

more savings when employees utilize these services. 

 B. Putting in a direct primary care strategy allowed us to impact a public entity client in multiple 

ways. They hired a physician to be on-site, dedicated to serving their employees. This model allowed 

them to control the smaller claims that would typically hit the plan while also serving as a method to 

screen for larger claim issues. The ease of access for the employees and their families helped improve 

presenteeism and by having an internal system to improve members health, we were able to use the 

date to negotiate rates with the medical carrier that lowered the premium due to this resource. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

81

Item 7.



4.2. Illustrate how previous experience within the area may be of benefit in the execution of the 

present Scope of Services. 

The C in REPUBLIC stands for Caring.  Your VALUES are key to the success of the City and the people you 

lead and serve.   As stated, “People are your greatest asset”.  

We heard from key members of the City that they want to live out the values of the City.  Implementing creative 

and innovative solutions focused on the positive impact to your employees is extremely important. Utilizing the 

Ollis/Akers/Arney EDGE 360 unique process, we are able to discover how best to address the needs of the City in 

a tailored, documented program.  

To fully understand our philosophy around employee benefits risk and evidence of our consulting expertise, it is 
important to understand Ollis/Akers/Arney’s exclusive and proprietary process, The Ollis Edge 360™.   
 
This process follows a four-step approach where we examine, design, go (implement), and evaluate plan 
performance.  This model documents the areas of focused improvement and provides evidence of results through 
measured outcomes.  The diagram below shows the impact of the Ollis Edge 360 on an annual basis.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As it relates specifically to employee benefits and the attraction, retention and engagement of employees, there 

are five areas of focus that must have a strategic plan designed around them to reduce risk in the long term.  These 

areas are COMPLIANCE, COMMUNICATION, TECHNOLOGY, DATA, and IMPLEMENTATION. 

Ollis/Akers/Arney employs our unique process surrounding each area to maximize the measured results for our 

client’s employee benefits program. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Standard Insurance Model 

82

Item 7.



Based on our brief discovery meeting with the City of Republic team, we identified the initial areas to focus on.   

You are looking for a partner that: 

1. Is creative and uses “out of the box” solutions 

2. Provides elite concierge service to staff and employees 

3. Communicates and educates your staff and employees on the program and resources, bringing more 

value to them 

4. Makes it easy  

 

Out of the Box Solutions:  As mentioned in Section 4.1, our creativity around tailored plan designs includes 

multiple approaches. We help our clients look at alternative funding options for their health plan. We use a walk, 

crawl, run approach from moving a client from fully insured to self-insured. We have coordinated and negotiated 

a direct primary care option to allow for more control over claims while providing employees with free visits and 

access to free prescription drugs. These types of solutions showcase that fiscal responsibility and employees are 

your central focus. 

Concierge Customer Service: Our rounded team model includes a dedicated account manager to assist the City’s 

staff and employees. The City of Republic would work directly with Pamela Hamilton. As our top Employee Benefits 

Team account manager, she is prepared to help when the “U” (Urgent) issues arise. Pam was named Outstanding 

Customer Service Representative of the Year for the State of Missouri in 2022. This award was presented by the 

Missouri Association of Insurance Agents. She is recognized for her personal connection and attention to follow 

through with client employees, carriers, pharmacies, and more to ensure everyone is treated as a top client. 

Communication and Education: Many employees don’t take full advantage of their benefits because they don’t 
understand them. We must educate employees about your benefits and how to best use their plan with a range 
of materials. Plus, we provide communications that can help employees understand how various laws impact 
them and their families, such as health care reform, COBRA and FMLA.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

83

Item 7.



Employee Engagement: Engaging with employees shows them you care, and you have their best interest at 

heart. An example of a cohesive engagement strategy comes from a client that has employees in multiple 

locations. They were struggling with consistency in communication and employee concerns at remote 

locations.  The employees at these locations have an increased need for assistance, repeated questions and 

communicated frustrations with the plan that did not match those of the main office.  The main office often 

had in-person meetings and there was no current strategy in place to engage with the employees outside of 

the manager at the location communicating and emailed details from the main office. 

 

We developed a strategy to use their payroll and benefits enrollment system, which had the ability to add 

the electronic files of the employee benefits guide.  This included communication through plan component 

video clips that educated on the different parts of the plan (i.e., medical, dental, vision, life, etc.), electronic 

delivery of specific flyers (timed and targeted) throughout the year and a mobile app option for easy access 

to their selected plan components. 

 

This use of technology improved remote employee satisfaction and decreased the time commitment impact 

on the HR team for repetitive questions. 

 
The Ollis Edge 360 model makes managing the employee benefits program easy.  Providing documented 
accountability measurements, it ensures customer satisfaction and ease of implementation.  The Ollis Edge 
360 Model does four main things to ensure customer satisfaction: 
 
1. We follow up every meeting with a letter (The As We Agreed Letter “AWA”), identifying key areas 

discussed and next steps (Actions Items) with who is responsible for completing specific items and by 
when.  These letters serve as proof of our accountability to our clients, agreed upon activities to be 
completed by the client and a work order for both of us to follow to improve outcomes.  
 

2. The Preferred Client Agreement (PCA) is updated annually.  This document is a mutually agreed upon 
calendar that assists us in the implementation of these risk management strategies.  The structured 
process to our annual plan provides our clients and our team with expected implementation dates, 
resources, and analysis months in advance to eliminate the guess work. 

 
3. Annual Strategic Assessment Review and Plan Improvement Meetings.  These meetings provide an 

overview of key drivers of exposure to your organization, risk management strategies we have 
addressed together, along with plan performance and data analysis reviews.  We update the identified 
areas of focus to measure success and use the assessment (below) as a continuously evolving 
document over time. 
 

These three items culminate to our Ollis Edge 360 Plan™ stewardship report.  This record serves as the 

documentation of improvement long term.  It includes services implemented, enhancements to the plan 

and the impact they had year over year on the program.  The stewardship report provides proof of our 

overall strategy, success against our measurements and reducing risk/controlling costs.  

84

Item 7.



 

5.1. Provide at least five (5) references for which the broker, consultant, and/or firm has performed 

services within the past two (2) years that are similar to the requirements in the Scope of Services. 

5.1.1. At least three of the references should be from government entities for work 

performed that is similar to that specified in this RFQ. 

 1.  City of Lebanon 

 2.  City of Cassville 

 3.  City of Bolivar 

 4.  Taney County 

 5.  Branson R-IV School District 

5.2. Provide the reference contact name, address, e-mail address, telephone numbers, and a 

summary and date of the services provided. 

 

 

 

  

Section 5 – References 

Taney County 

PO Box 703 

Forsyth, MO 65653 

 Dawn Muller     
 dawn.muller@taneycountymo.gov
 417-546-7285  
 Services Provided: 
 Employee Benefits: 2016 to present 
 Property & Casualty: 2016 to present
   

 

Branson R-IV School District 

1756 Bee Creek Road 

Branson, MO 65616 

Dr. Nathan Moore 

mooren@branson.k12.mo.us 

417-334-6541 Ext. 9003 

Services Provided: 

Employee Benefits: 2003 to present 

Property & Casualty: 2003 to present 

*Relationship exceeds records 

 

 

 

 

City of Lebanon 

401 S. Jefferson Ave. 

Lebanon, MO 65536 

Michael Schumacher 

mschumacher@lebanonmo.org 

417-532-2156 

Services Provided: 

Employee Benefits: 2023 to present 

 

City of Cassville 

300 Main St 

Cassville MO 65625 

Steve Walensky 

swalensky@cityofcassville.com 

417-847-4441 

Services Provided: 

Employee Benefits: 2017 to present 

Property & Casualty: 2022 to present 

 

City of Bolivar 

PO Box 9 

Bolivar, MO 65613 

Tracy Slagle 

cityadmin@bolivar.mo.us 

417-777-7943 

Services Provided: 

Employee Benefits: 2019 to present 

Property & Casualty: 2015 to present 

 

85

Item 7.

mailto:Jbutz@rollacity.org
mailto:Jbutz@rollacity.org
mailto:mooren@branson.k12.mo.us
mailto:cityadmin@bolivar.mo.us
mailto:swalensky@cityofcassville.com
mailto:cityadmin@bolivar.mo.us


 

We believe an employee benefits program is a continuous long-term plan that has great impact on the success of 

an organization.  From the initial renewal period, through the effective date of the new plan year and most 

importantly the time between those to dates, a measured plan with effective, targeted communication is the link 

to connect the employees to the plan long term.   

To ensure account support and administrative services are continuous and at the forefront of our plan, we have 

implemented Agency Wide Standards to focus on concierge response.   

A few core Items included in our standards are: 

1. Calls and emails answered as received is the priority.  Our goal is to make sure that if an administrator or 

employee contacts our office, we answer the call or acknowledge receipt of the email when received.   

2. There are instances where our team members are in trainings or other meetings and in those times where 

the call or email is unable to be addressed at the time of receipt, we have a maximum response time of 2 

hours following the receipt of the request.   

3. When in trainings/meetings, on PTO or out sick, all email and voicemail will include the name and contact 

information of the backup person to contact and our claims department as well. 

 

In addition to these standards, it is important to note that Ollis/Akers/Arney is 100% employee owned.  Everyone 

you or your employees will interact with is an employee owner.  Our culture is focused on the responsibility as an 

owner to ensure our customers are addressed in a way that demonstrates our urgency for their situation, our 

personal responsibility for their financial impact/situation and provide professional communication. 

Below are components of our account services and administrative support: 
 
Claims Management 
Ollis/Akers/Arney is unique in our marketplace in that we have an on-staff designated claims team to help with 
employer and employee claims resolution.  This added level of service allows for specialization and efficiency in 
the often confusing and time-consuming process of working through claims, procedure approvals and billing 
concerns. 
   
Network and Partner Analysis/Situation Analysis 
You face many employee benefit challenges, including internal resources, time management, employee 
education, compliance with federal and state legislation, trend increases, pharmacy costs and increased litigation 
activity. This demanding environment dictates a change in the way you purchase and manage your insurance 
programs. In order to compete in your marketplace, you must adopt a total-cost-of-employee-benefits 
management philosophy based on data-driven decisions and globally positioned communications. We specialize 
in evaluating, negotiating with, and recommending insurers and providers to our clients, and we employ rigorous 
selection criteria and performance objectives when considering a vendor. 

Plan Implementation 
Securing the best insurance package for your business begins with planning. Analyzing all your risks is critical to 
the successful implementation of your employer group benefits. Ollis/Akers/Arney will partner with you by 
providing ongoing assistance, consultation and service that will help you control your insurance expenses, choose 
the best plan to fit your company’s needs and promote health care consumerism. 

Section 6 – Technical Approach 

86

Item 7.

egaynor
Highlight



Data Analysis 
Data analysis allows you to manage and reduce your claims activity. By analyzing your losses with a sophisticated 
data analysis tool, we can help you develop cost containment strategies and employee communication campaigns 
that will target areas with the highest potential to reduce high dollar claims and high utilization. 

Communications 
Understanding the increased complexity of employee benefits is a challenge. Staying abreast of the issues you 
face and developing strategies to meet the constant demands of business can give you a competitive edge. 
Ollis/Akers/Arney’s communication programs will help you stay on top of the changes affecting the employee 
benefits industry. 

Compliance Resources 
Do you find it difficult to keep up with legislation affecting insurance, your industry, and your business? 
Ollis/Akers/Arney can provide Legislative Brief educational articles to help you understand important regulations 
and stay in compliance. Our materials cover health care reform, COBRA, HIPAA, FMLA, Medicare Part D, ADA, 
state-specific legislation and more. 

Employee Satisfaction 
Employee satisfaction is paramount to retaining top employees. Ollis/Akers/Arney can help you measure 
employee satisfaction and engagement, plus develop strategies to improve these areas. In addition, you’ll have 
access to fully customizable benefits statements to educate employees on the full value of their benefits and 
increase employee appreciation of their total compensation. 

Enrollment Tools 
Open enrollment is an overwhelming time for HR departments and employees alike. Our educational materials, 
online enrollment tools and communications can help streamline and simplify the process for your company and 
employees. 

Employee Benefit Communications 
Many employees don’t take full advantage of their benefits because they don’t understand them. Educate 
employees about your benefits and how to best use their plan with a range of materials from Ollis/Akers/Arney. 
Plus, our communications can help employees understand how various laws impact them and their families, such 
as health care reform, COBRA and FMLA. 

Managing Health Care Costs 
We all know that health care costs continue to be a serious problem; Ollis/Akers/Arney can help. If you have or 
plan to implement an HSA or HRA plan, we have the resources to support you every step of the way, from design 
to implementation to employee education. Plus, we offer materials to help employees become smarter health 
care consumers and to help promote consumerism strategies that can drive costs down. 

Plan Design Resources 
Choosing the right plan design is vital, both in terms of cost and in order to stay competitive with your recruiting 
and retention efforts. We offer a series of educational articles covering various plan design types and topics, 
including voluntary benefits. In addition, you’ll have access to valuable benchmarking information, so you can see 
how your plan offerings compare to other employers. 

Education & Training 
We provide exceptional service through our education and training opportunities. Our employee seminars are 
designed to help educate employees, promote health care consumerism and reduce high claim utilization and 
high dollar claim expenses. They also provide an atmosphere for team building. Together, we can determine the 

87

Item 7.



topics that best suit your needs. We also will provide you with educational articles and newsletters to keep you 
informed of hot benefits and HR-related topics. 

Ollis/Akers/Arney EDGETM Client Portal  
We offer our clients “EDGE”, a Web-based client portal that allows you to access information and resources from 
our agency online, participate in Employee Benefit surveys to find out how you compare to others from round the 
country, and easily access informative print ready electronic material.  These fliers/newsletters cover many 
different areas of employee benefits from compliance to wellness education. Some Examples are shown below: 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Know Your Employee Benefits 

Is Your Drug Plan Hard to Swallow?  

 

HR Tools 

HR Toolkit - Interviewing 

Legislative Briefs 

Employee Benefit Compliance Chart: 

Notice and Disclosure Rules 

Handbook & Policies 

Employee Handbook  

Employer Education Articles & Newsletters 

Benefits Bulletin 
Live Well, Work Well 

Healthy Portion Sizes 

88

Item 7.



6.2. Include, for example, an explanation of the submitter’s process of presenting the City’s 

insurance needs to the open market. 

As described in section 4.2, the Ollis EDGE 360 is a documented and measured program to improve your risk 
profile.  This information compiles a “STORY” for the City of Republic to be told to the insurance marketplace.   
 
As shown below, we work with you throughout the year to improve your program.  We then compile the 
results of your program and craft your “STORY” between 90 to 120 days prior to renewal.  This information 
allows for additional considerations, improves the underwriter’s knowledge of your organization and creates 
“out of the box” concepts to improve the overall options available for your organization.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
Focusing on topics and programs outside of the traditional model has provided our client partners with 
documented results in improving employee value perception around the program, identifying, and reducing 
controllable claims through education and innovative plan designs, and attraction, retention, and 
engagement of employees.   
 
Ollis/Akers/Arney’s Employee Benefits Department is sought out by the top industry carriers due to this 
philosophy and approach to benefits.  We have developed and negotiated program design and pricing 
improvements for the betterment of our community and business leaders.   

a. Negotiated the first rate cap lock with Cox Health Plans 
b. Selected by Anthem as one of only 11 agencies across the State for the initial Multi-

Employer Wellfare Arrangement offering  
c. Negotiated an Exclusive program for employers with more than 100 employee that 

provides budget stability through a multi-year rate guaranty with Mercy. 
d. Unique data analysis on cost of service vs. quality of care by Doctor, facility and health 

systems 
e. RX and Medical cost and reimbursement analysis with ability to provide budgetary impact 

recommendations 
f. Incorporated a direct primary care option into the fully insured carrier offering for 

additional discounts to provide a unique employee experience. 
 

 
 

89

Item 7.



Securing the best insurance package for your business begins with planning. Analyzing all your risks is critical 

to the successful implementation of your employer group benefits. Ollis/Akers/Arney will partner with you 

by providing ongoing assistance, consultation and service that will help you control your insurance expenses, 

choose the best plan to fit your company’s needs and promote health care consumerism.  

At each renewal, our marketing efforts are included on the renewal proposal. Along with the pricing and 

terms, the renewal proposal includes an analysis of carrier options, and a recommendation of carrier based 

on the coverage needs of the City.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

SAMPLE 

 

SAMPLE 

 

SAMPLE 

 

90

Item 7.



Carrier Analysis/Situation Effective Market Place and Program Analysis 

You face many employee benefit challenges, including internal resources, time management, employee 

education, compliance with federal and state legislation, trend increases, pharmacy costs and increased litigation 

activity. This demanding environment dictates a change in the way you purchase and manage your insurance 

programs.  

To compete in your marketplace, you must adopt a total-cost-of-employee-benefits management philosophy 

based on data-driven decisions and globally positioned communications. We specialize in evaluating, negotiating 

with, and recommending insurers and providers to our clients, and we employ rigorous selection criteria and 

performance objectives when considering a vendor. 

After each meeting, written correspondence is provided to recap the meeting objectives and outline any 

changes that will be implemented.   

As part of our review process, we analyze the ongoing plan performance and forecast plan impacts based on 

claims experience and benchmarking data.  Ollis/Aker/Arney supplies the client with a summary of the information 

and our analysis of the plan as part of this reporting within our exclusive program.   

In addition to standard carrier reporting and analysis, Ollis/Akers/Arney has access to proprietary analysis tools to 

perform predictive population management, prescription management, risk management, non-network 

management, platform quality review, and centers of excellence and national network management including 

smart interventions. This reporting provides an overview of specific data points that are tracked and measured 

over time and further compared to standard benchmarks to assess your unique risk profile compared to industry 

averages. 

Understanding your current plans performance and the value it is providing to your organization, as well as your 

staff, is critical to the success of the program.  Ollis/Akers/Arney has an in-depth reporting analysis designed 

exclusively for our clients.  This report provides valuable analysis of the performance of the program and identifies 

areas for improvement and employee education.   

Example pages from the reports are below: 

 

 

 

    

 

  

 

 

  

91

Item 7.



6.3. Describe the submitter’s capabilities and the ability to comply with deadlines and timelines 

identified in the Scope of Services. 

The Ollis Edge 360 model is unique in our industry and exclusively offered to our clients.  This model has 
documented accountability measurements in place to ensure customer satisfaction is at the front of each 
partnership and that deadlines/timelines are met.   
 
The Ollis Edge 360 Model does four main things to ensure customer satisfaction: 
 
1. We follow up every meeting with a letter (The As We Agreed Letter “AWA”), identifying key areas discussed 

and next steps (Actions Items) with who is responsible for completing specific items and by when.  These 
letters serve as proof of our accountability to our clients, agreed upon activities to be completed by the 
client and a work order for both of us to follow to improve outcomes.  

 
2. The Preferred Client Agreement (PCA) is updated annually.  This document is a mutually agreed upon 

calendar that assists us in the implementation of these risk management strategies in a documented 
timeline.  The structured process to our annual plan provides our clients and our team with expected 
implementation dates, resources, and analysis months in advance to eliminate the guess work or last-
minute rush that many business leaders face today. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

92

Item 7.



3. The Risk Profile Assessment is an annual strategic assessment review and plan improvement measurement.  
This document provides an overview of key drivers of exposure to your organization and employee 
engagement strategies, along with plan performance and data analysis reviews.  We update the identified 
areas of focus to measure success and use the assessment (below) as a continuously evolving document 
over time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. These three items culminate to our Ollis Edge 360 Plan™ stewardship report.  This record serves as 
documentation of improvement long term.  It includes services implemented, enhancements to the plan 
and the impact they had year over year on the program.  The stewardship report provides proof of our 
overall strategy, success against our measurements and reducing risk/controlling costs for your organization 
long term.   

 

 

 

 

  

93

Item 7.



 

7.1. For any contract for services greater than $5,000, the successful bidder shall comply with § 
285.530, RSMo, as amended, and:  
 

7.1.1. Provide by sworn affidavit affirmation that it does not knowingly employ any person 
which is an unauthorized alien and  
 
7.1.2. Provide documentation affirming its enrollment and participation in a federal work 
authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with this 
contract. 
 

7.2. The required documentation affirming enrollment must be from the federal work authorization 
program provider. 
 
7.3. Responses must include the signed and notarized Work Authorization Affidavit and the 
electronic signature page from the E-Verify program. A letter from the bidder or respondent reciting 
compliance is not sufficient. 
 
Affidavit and complete documentation of enrollment/participation in the federal work authorization 
program on the following pages. 

Section 7 – E-Verify & Other Information 

94

Item 7.



95

Item 7.



96

Item 7.



97

Item 7.



98

Item 7.



99

Item 7.



100

Item 7.



 

101

Item 7.



102

Item 7.



 

103

Item 7.



104

Item 7.



105

Item 7.



106

Item 7.



 

107

Item 7.



108

Item 7.



109

Item 7.



110

Item 7.



111

Item 7.



  

112

Item 7.



 

8.1. The Broker, Consultant, and/or Firm are encouraged to provide examples of documents, reports, 

reviews, correspondence, or other records used for similar engagements with other 

municipal/government agencies. 

Our communication is purposeful and is designed to coordinate and educate with clarity.  The Ollis Edge 360 model 
is exclusively offered to our clients.  This model has documented accountability measurements in place to ensure 
customer satisfaction is at the front of each partnership and that deadlines/timelines are met.   
 
As mentioned earlier in this RFQ, we have several proprietary documents for clarity within the partnership.   
 
These include:  
 
The follow up after every meeting with a letter (The As We Agreed Letter “AWA”), identifying key areas discussed 
and next steps (Actions Items) with who is responsible for completing specific items and by when.  These letters 
serve as proof of our accountability to our clients, agreed upon activities to be completed by the client and a work 
order for both of us to follow to improve outcomes.  
 
The Preferred Client Agreement (PCA) is updated annually.  This document is a mutually agreed upon calendar 
that assists us in the implementation of these risk management strategies in a documented timeline. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 8 – Sample Documents 

113

Item 7.



The Risk Profile Assessment is an annual strategic assessment review and plan improvement measurement.  This 
document provides an overview of key drivers of exposure to your organization and employee engagement 
strategies, along with plan performance and data analysis reviews.  We update the identified areas of focus to 
measure success and use the assessment (below) as a continuously evolving document over time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

We also provide options for quality and cost of care purposes with unique program designs.  This changes the 

game of health care from in-network/out of network to quality and cost of service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

114

Item 7.



Focusing on High-Risk Members and Implementing Proactive Cost-Containment Strategies 

 

 

High:  
44 
(6.08%) 
 
High Risk Members 
 

 
 

115

Item 7.



 

 
Using Data Analytics to Identify Care Gaps in Treating Costly Conditions: Chronic Kidney Disease 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116

Item 7.



Using Data Analytics to Identify Care Gaps in Treating Costly Conditions: Diabetes 

 
 

 

Tailored Communications - The Ollis/Akers/Arney team helps you tackle employee communication challenges. 
With strategic planning and a thorough understanding of your communication objectives, we provide custom 
communication materials that will help both you and your employees understand your plans and the issues 
influencing your benefits decisions. Due to the vast depth of knowledge, expertise, and experience present within 
our advisory and support team, we are able to put together a comprehensive yet simplistic communication 
strategy for your employees.    
 
We understand employees best receive information in a variety of ways. The current workforce is full of 
experienced workers along with workers new to the workforce. Our team works alongside your staff to help you 
better understand this unique age and experience gap, which leads to improved work environment and a better 
understanding of the benefits program. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

117

Item 7.



Benchmark detail - Another example of the use of benchmarking and analysis to elevate a client’s employee 

benefits program is with a complete review of their program including Medical, Dental, Vision, Retirement, Paid 

Time Off (PTO), Long-Term Disability (LTD), Short-Term Disability (STD), Life, and emerging trends in benefits, etc.  

Using the Ollis/Akers/Arney exclusive model and a combination of current industry reports, we identified for the 

client, program advantages and disadvantages to attracting and retaining employees.  The analysis reviewed the 

types of benefits offered, eligibility, vesting, accruals, plan limits and more.  A sample of the report is below with 

the positioning of their program against the competition and recommendations for improvement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

118

Item 7.



 

 

119

Item 7.



 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-37 A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Independent 

Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2022. 

Submitted By: Bob Ford Finance Director and presented by Jon Cummings, CPA, 

CGMA/KPM CPAs & Advisors  

Date: June 20, 2023 

 
Issue Statement 

 

The City of Republic is required to undergo an independent audit at least once per year. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 
 

KPM CPAs, PC, conducted two separate engagements for the City of Republic for the fiscal year ended December 31, 

2022 (“FY 2022”). 
1. The audit of the City’s financial accounting and reporting practices for FY 2022. 

2. The examination of the City’s compliance with regards to “Requirements That Would Otherwise be Required to 
Undergo a Single audit or Program-Specific audit as a Result of Receiving Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 

Recovery Funds.” 
Audit 

The audit report is designed to report on the financial condition of the City and demonstrates the city’s financial 

accountability to its citizens. Included in the document is the “Independent Auditor’s Report,” (the “Auditor’s Opinion”). 
The basic financial statements are presented through two views:   

1. Government-wide statements, which focus on the City of Republic as a whole entity; and 
2. Major individual funds, through the presentation of fund financial statements.  

Additionally, this report includes the Management Discussion & Analysis, which provides a preview of the FY 2023 Budget.  

 
Opinion - The auditor’s opinion is that the city’s financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 

financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Republic, 
Missouri as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, where applicable, cash flows thereof 

for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

CSLFRF Compliance Examination 

KPM also performed an examination of the compliance requirements “activities allowed or unallowed” and “allowable 
cost/cost principles” (the specified requirements) as described in Part IV “Requirements for an Alternative Compliance 

Examination Engagement for Recipients That Would Otherwise be Required to Undergo a Single Audit or Program-Specific 
Audit as a Result of Receiving Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds” of the CSLFRF section of the 2022 OMB 

Compliance Supplement, including Addendum 1 and Addendum 2 (referred to herein as “Requirements for an Alternative 

CSLFRF Compliance Examination Engagement”) as of December 31, 2022, for the purpose of expressing an opinion about 
whether the City of Republic, Missouri, complied with the above-mentioned compliance requirements, in all material 

respects.   
 

Opinion - KPM found that the City complied, in all material respects, with the specified requirements as outlined in the 

“Requirements That Would Otherwise be Required to Undergo a Single audit or Program-Specific audit as a Result of 
Receiving Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds.” 

  
Recommended Action 

 
City Staff recommends that City Council approve the Audit Report and the CSLFRF Compliance Examination for the fiscal 

year-end for December 31, 2022, as presented. 

120

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-37 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-37 1 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 

laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.9 of the City Charter, the City is required to submit to an 

independent annual financial audit (“Audit”); 
 

WHEREAS, the City selected the independent audit firm of KPM CPAs, PC (“KPM”), which meets 
the requirements set forth in the Charter, to perform the Audit for the fiscal year ending December 31, 
2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, KPM has completed the Audit for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2022 and ending 
December 31, 2022 and provided the report from such Audit to the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, in accord with City Charter, such report is maintained in the Office of the City Clerk 

and is available for public viewing. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The audit report prepared by the certified public accounting firm of KPM CPAs, 

PC, for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 2022, 

attached to this Resolution and labeled “Exhibit A,” is approved and accepted, and 

shall be made available for public viewing at the Office of the City Clerk.  

 

Section 2.  City Administrator, or his designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take the 
necessary steps to implement this Resolution.  

 

Section 3.  The WHEREAS clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided 

by law.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 

121

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-37 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-37 2 

 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 

122

Item 8.



DRAFT
 

 

 

 

 

 

Independent Accountants’ Report 

 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Republic 
Republic, Missouri 

 

 

We have examined the City of Republic’s compliance with the compliance requirements “activities 
allowed or unallowed” and “allowable cost/cost principles” (the specified requirements) as described in 
Part IV “Requirements for an Alternative Compliance Examination Engagement for Recipients That Would 
Otherwise be Required to Undergo a Single Audit or Program-Specific Audit as a Result of Receiving 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds” of the CSLFRF section of the 2022 OMB Compliance 
Supplement, including Addendum 1 and Addendum 2 (referred to herein as “Requirements for an 
Alternative CSLFRF Compliance Examination Engagement”) during the year ended December 31, 2022.  
Management of the City of Republic is responsible for City’s compliance with the specified requirements.  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Republic’s compliance with the specified 
requirements based on our examination.  

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the AICPA; the 
standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States; and in the “Requirements for an Alternative CSLFRF 
Compliance Examination Engagement.”  Those standards and requirements require that we plan and 
perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City of Republic complied, in 
all material respects, with the specified requirements referenced above.  An examination involves 
performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the City complied with the specified 
requirements.  The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, 
including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error.  We believe 
that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

We are required to be independent and meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with relevant 
ethical requirements relating to the engagement. 

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City of Republic’s compliance with 
specified requirements.  

In our opinion, the City of Republic complied, in all material respects, with the specified requirements 
referenced above during the year ended December 31, 2022.  

123

Item 8.



DRAFT
 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we are required to report all deficiencies that are 
considered to be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control; fraud, and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements that have a material 
effect on the City of Republic’s compliance with the specified requirements and any other instances that 
warrant the attention of those charged with governance.  We are also required to obtain and report the 
views of responsible officials concerning the findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as any 
planned corrective actions.  We performed our examination to express an opinion on the City of Republic’s 
compliance with the specified requirements and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
internal control over the specified requirements or on compliance and other matters; accordingly, we 
express no such opinions.  The results of our tests disclosed no matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards.  

Intended Purpose 

The purpose of this examination report is solely to express an opinion on whether the City of Republic 
complied, in all material respects, with the specified requirements referenced above during the year 
ended December 31, 2022.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 

 

 

KPM CPAs, PC 
Springfield, Missouri  
June 5, 2023 

124

Item 8.



City of Republic, Missouri

Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2022

125

Item 8.



Table of Contents

lndependent Auditors' Report.....

Management's Discussion and Analysis...

Basic Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position......................

Statement of Activities.....

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the

Statement of Net Position........

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds..........................

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund ..

Notes to the Financial Statements...

Required supplementary lnfoimation

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios ...........

Schedule of Contributions.......................

Notes to the Schedule of Contributions................

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Street Fund

Budgetary comparison 5chedule - Stormwater Fund........................

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Fire Sales Tax Fund ................... .

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Park Fund.................

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Capital lmprovement Sales Tax Fund .....

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Major Grant Fund ...................... ...........

4

8

.......25

.......26

.......28

22

,..,59

16

18

20

60

61

........_.29

..........31

....52

....64

.. 65

..65

..67

58

69

70

2

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

126

Item 8.



Other Reporting Requirements

lndependent Auditors' Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Stondords ..

Schedule of Findings and Responses

72

74

3
127

Item 8.



Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Republic
Repu blic, Missouri

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and

each major fund of the City of Republic, Missouri, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes

to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

ln our opinion, the financlal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial

position of the govern menta I activities, the business-type activitiet and each major fu nd of the City of Republic, Missouri,

as of December 31 ,2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for

the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Bosis lot Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the

City of Republic and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements

relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinions.

chonge ln Accounting Pinciple

As described in Note 1to the financial statements, in 2022, the City adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement

No. 87 - teoses. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilfties ol Mondgement Ior the Finonciol stotements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve

4

lndependent Auditors' Report

128

Item 8.



months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.

Auditots' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finonciol Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whoie are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 6overnment Auditing Stonddrds will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on

the financial statements.

ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standatdsand Government Auditing stondards,we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financialstatements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Required 5u pplementary lnformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and
Analysis, budgetary comparison, and pension informatlon be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such informatlon is the responsibility of management and, althouBh not a part of the basic fina ncial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of fina ncial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. we do not

5
129

Item 8.



express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Stondards, we have also issued our

consideratlon of the City of Republic, Missouri's internal control over financial

with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in with
considering the City of Republic, Missouri's internal control over reporting

KPM CPAs, PC

Springfield, Missouri
June 5, 2023

provide us with

5, 2023, on our
on its compliance

matters. The ofthat report
and results of

control over or on

Auditing in

6

130

Item 8.



Management's Discussion and Analysis

131

Item 8.



City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2022

The management's discussion and analysis of the City of Republic's financial performance provides an overview of the

City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial

statements-

Financial Highlights

The net position of the City's governmental activities increased bV 513,727,027 for the year as a result of current year

activities. The net position of the City's business-type activities increased by S2,477,864 for the year.

The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows as of December 3L,2022, by

579.7 million (net position). Of this amount S21 million was unrestricted and may be used to meet future obligations of
the City.

Non-pension-related long-term liabilities of the City increased by S46,010,163. This is mainly due to the issuance of the
series 2022 bonds and the MTFC Loan. The city's net pension liability increased by $793,957.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's

finances. Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide

statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is, "ls the City as a whole better off or worse off as a

result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report information about the

City as a whole and about lts activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets,

deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting

used by most private-sector companies. All of the cu rrent year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless

of when cash is received or paid. These two statements report the City's net position and changes in it. The City's net

position - the difference between assets, net deferred outflows/inf lows of resources, and liabilities - is one way to
measure the City's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are

one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

ln the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of activities

Governmental Actiyit,es: Most of the City's basic services are reported here. Taxes are the primary source of financing

for these activities.

Business-Type Activit es: The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain services

it provides. The City's water and sewer services are provided here.

132

Item 8.



City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 31,2022

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City's funds and not the City as a whole. Some funds
are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. However, the City Council establishes many other
funds to help it control and manage money for a particular purpose or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for
using certain taxes and grants.

Governmentol Funds: Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all

other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance the City's programs. The differences between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and the governmental funds are shown in reconciliations
following the fund financial statements.

Proprietory Funds: When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside customers or
to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported
in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

9
133

Item 8.



Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net Position

The following table presents the condensed Statement of Net Position for the City as of Decembet 3L,2022 and 2O2l:

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities
Assets

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Net pension lia bility

Deferred lnflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

U nrestricted

s 20,8s6,44s
38,581,s44

5 46,392,720
37,OO8,902

5 67 ,249,16s
75,590,446

s 19,900,397

58,238,058

59,437 ,9a9 83,40L,622 l4z,A39,6lt 78,L38,465

647 ,559 5A3,284 1,,230,843 7,027 ,590

1,, 089,709

8,753,774 53,599,985 62,453,759 t4,O27,717

372,336 1,,532,425 1,,904,761, 1,625,295

3,252,547

4,471,578
3,236,686

49,304,302
1,758,997

6,4a9,233
53,715,820
2,248 706

58,297,O74

121,095

2t,293,825

4,867,1,23

7 ,705,845
1,,454,7 49

25,469,575

3,282,927

S za, 752,496 j__t2t]183!_ _g__qiErp€-

Total net position of the City increased by S16,198,891 for the yea r due to current year activity. Total liabilities for the City

have increased by $48,750,094. The change in total liabilities is mainly due to the issuance of the Series 2022 bonds and

the MTFC loan during the current year. The City's long-term liabilities increased by 546,010,163. Restricted net position

ofthe City totaled S121,095 as of December 31, 2022.

32,827 ,439
Lzt,095

18,010,904

48,640,989
4aL,O77

14,390,983

10

City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2022

Total Total

December 31, December 31,

2022 202L

s s0,9s9,438

134

Item 8.



City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2022

Changes in Net Position

Revenues and Transfers

Program Revenues

Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General Revenues

Sales taxes

Ad valorem taxes

Motor vehicle and gas taxes

Other taxes
Franchise fees

County reimbursements
lnterest

Other revenue
Transfers

Special ltem
(Loss) on asset disposal

Total Revenues, Transfe6

and Special ltem

Expenses

Administrative
lnformation technology

Human resources

lvlunicipal court
Economic development
Police

Fire

Emergency management
Animal control
Street
Stormwater
Parks and recreation

Debt service

Water
Sewer

Total Expenses

lncreose in Net Position

29,1,24,377 10,073,989

2,478,930

608,244

2,795,M0
s,400,68s

7,596,t25

39,198,366 28,066,824

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities

Total
Year Ended

December 31,
2022

Total
Year Ended

December 31,

202t

s 2,2s2,232

9,388

7,865,768

L4,672,898

L,683,242

723,389

96,102

9s8,501
151,098
737,952

282,616

351,191

S 6,943,618

2,616,451

S 9,19s,8s0

9,388
10,482,225

74,672,898

L,683,242

723,389

96,702

958,501
151,098

57 4,577

711,096

7,685,31s
237,740

5,846,1,82

10,435,109

t,400,57L
637 ,849
81,181

164,579

L40,604

5L,577

805,716

(19,s33 )

5

L27 ,767
744,1,66

?,957 ,977
2,378,185

20,82Q

287 ,430
2,O78,897

7,750

3,s83,91s

729,329

127,767

744,L66
2,957,971

2,378,78s

20,820
287,430

2,078,897

7,750

3,s83,915

L29,329
2,L95,440

s,400,68s

22,999,475

2,478,930

608,244

1,181,913

294,686

241-,692

t44,335
430,019

2,192,327

1,909,9s8

20,820
t97,443

1,680,893

9s,826
3,642,740

116,141

2,232,370

2,7L4,497
15,403,350 17,089,000

5 13,72L,027 5 2,477,864 S 15,198,891 5 10,977,824

11

435,625

428,480
(3s 1,191)

135

Item 8.



City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2022

Net Cost of the City of Republic's Governmental Activities

Total Cost

of Services

Net Cost

of Services

Administrative
lnformation technology
Municipal court
Economic development
Police

Fire

EmerBency manaBement
Animal control
Street

Stormwater
Parks and recreation

Debt Service

s 2,478,930
608,244

L27 ,767
744,166

2,957 ,917
2,378,785

20,820
287 ,430

2,078,897
7,750

3,583,915

r29,329

s

15 0 3,350

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City's net position by 52,477,864. This is down from the increase of the City's

business-type activities of S3,231,960 in the prior year.

Financial Analysis of the Ciq/s Funds

The combined fund balances of the City's governmental funds as of December 31, 2022, are 518,259,257. The General

Fund increased by S3,546,921. The Street Fund increased by S682,871. The Stormwater Fund decreased by 52,002. The

Fire Sales Tax Fund increased S116,378. The Parks and Recreation Fund decreased 5235,540. The Capital lmprovement
Sales Tax Fund decreased 94,011. The Major Grants Fund increased by 51,798,096. The Capital Project Fund increased

54,137. The Debt Service Fund decreased S138,850.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original, the final amended budget, and the actual results can be summarized as follows

The City's General Fund budget was amended in December 2022.

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the net position ofthe City by 513,721,027. Tax revenues forthe City were S18,O74,L32,

which is an increase of 54,754,903 from the prior year. Program revenues for the functions totaled S10,127,388, which is

an increase of 94,795,281 from the prior year. The following table shows the cost of the City's programs as well as each

program's net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that was

placed on the taxpayers by each of these functions.

(s76,087)

608,244

167,7rrl
155,582

2,903,948
2,370,9L7

20,420
287 ,430

12,783,969)
7,750

2,2t9,709
t29,329

j____:,27:262

12
136

Item 8.



City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 31,2022

Debt

Total debt of the governmental activities as of December 31, 2022, was 56,295,100, which is a net increase of 5655,955
from the prior year. The increase is due to the issuance of the Series 2022 special obligation bonds in the amount of
S1,833,333 and the MTFC loan in the amount of 5685,692. Retirements of principal and amortization of premiums totaled
$2,000,537 during the year.

Total debt of business-type activities as of December 31, 2022, was 550,998,164, which is a net increase of 546,542,410
from the prior year. During the y€ar, the City issued 543,511,557 in Series 2022 special obligation bonds and received
premiums of 53,422,527, which will be amortized over the life of the bonds. Retirements of principal and amortization of
premiums totaled S524,739 during the year.

Economic Factors and Next Yea/s Budget

Next Year's Budget

The City of Republic continues to challenge the status quo as we enter FY 2023. During the FY 2023 the City will continue
making Breat strides in wastewater improvements and public safety funding. We are also grateful for the voter approved
renewal of two (2) Parks Sales Tax initiatives in August 2022. The sa les tax growth is a direct result of the City's continual
efforts in fostering partnerships within the economic development community.

The proposed 563,7 L4,99L budget (both operating and capital) Iot FY 2023 addresses funding for core operations and
capital projects & investment needs of the City. This budget was adopted by the City Council on December 6, 2022 and
establishes a plan for FY 2023 which is detailed in two documents:

. The operating budget; and

. fhe 2023-2027 Five-Year Capital lmprovement Program (ClP)

. The City's original budgeted revenues and transfers in for the General Fund were S11,519,416 and budgeted
expenditures and transfers out were S11,085,466, for the year ended December 31, 2022.

. The City's amended budgeted revenues and transfers in for the General Fund were 516,256,858, and amended

budgeted expenditures and transfers out were S14,499,893, for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

CapitalAssets

Capital assets of the governmental activities were 938,581,544 (net of accumulated depreciation) as of December 31,

2022. fhis represents a S6,611,007 increase from the prior year. Net capital assets for business-type activities were

537,008,902, as of December 31,2022. This represents an increase of $Lo,74L,371frcmthe prior year. Theincreasesare
mainly due to infrastructure upgrades and a new facility being constructed.

13
137

Item 8.



City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 3L, 2022

The budget contains L4 individual departmental budgets across four (4) funds:

o General Fund,
. Enterprise Fund,
. Capital Projects Fund, and
. Special Revenue Fund.

The CtP identifies all capital and infrastructure needs the City over the next five (5) years, including improvements to the

American's Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990.

ln accordance with the Missouri State Statute Section 67.010, the budget is to be balanced and the total proposed

expenditures are not to exceed the estimated revenues and any unencumbered fund balance, less any deficit estimated

for the beginning of the budget year. Each budget will outline a multi-year presentation of planned and actual resources

to allow for the comparative analysis of the financial conditions of the City, as required.

The FY 2023 revenues are anticipated to be 537,213,975. The FY 2023 budgeted expenditures are anticipated to be

563,i14,991,, resulting in a 526,011,093 deficit, which will be funded by bond proceeds received in 2022 and

unrestricted/unencu m bered funds accumulated from prior years. Contacting the City's tinancial Management

Water & Wastewater Rates

FY 2023 brings rate increases for both water a nd wastewater rates necessary to fund ongoing investment and annual debt

service associated with the Series 2022 Debt lssuance secured to fund the wastewater treatment plant and ongoing capital

improvement proiects. Those increases are as follows:

1. Water
a. lnside City Limits

i. Monthly Base Charge will increase from 57.55 to 58.09 for 1,500 gallons.

ii. Surcharge will increase from 53.55 to 53.81 per 1,000 gallons.

Outside City Limits

i. Monthly Base charge will increase from S11.34 to S12.13 for 1,500 gallons.

ii. Surcharge will increase from S5.34 to S5.71 per 1,000 gallons.

2. Wastewater
a. lnside City Limits

i. Monthly Base Charge will increase from S18.80 to S25.57 for 1,500 gallons.

ii. Surcharge will increase from S11.17 to S15.19 per 1,000 gallons.

b. Outside City Limits
i. Monthly Base charge will increase from $28.20 to 538.35 for 1,500 gallons.

ii. Surcharge will increase from 516 .77 to 522.87 per 1,000 gallons.

Capital

Capital expenditures are budgeted at S31,355,526 for FY 2023 and comprise approximately 50% ofthe City's FY 2023 total

expenditures. When resources are tight, capital spendingisoften prioritized and/or deferred if possible. However, capital

improvements have long-term effects on City operations, as well as impacting both current and future operating budgets.

b

\4
138

Item 8.



City of Republic

Management's Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2022

Debt

The City continues to make great strides in securing funds for the Wastewater Treatment Plant upgrades through Special
Obligation Funds (issued 548.5 million in FY 20221and State grant funds. The Parks & Recreation Department retired the
debt on the Republic Aquatic Center in 2022 and anticipates borrowinB an additional estimated S10 million during FY 2023
to fund further expansion ofthe City's parks and pool.

Personnel

The FY 2023 budget:
o lncludes wages and personnel benefits budgeted at 515,353,149 for a total of LTL full-time employees, which is

approximately 24 % of the overall budget.
. lncludes a 5% COLA for all staff, effective January 7, 2023 to remain competitive relative to employment

opportunities in the surrounding communities and entities.

The City participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS), which is a defined benefit
pension plan providing retirement, disability and death benefits to members and beneficiaries.

ln 2014, the City Council approved a change in the City's LAGERS program from the L-1 level to the L-3 level,
increasing the employees' pension from a 1.0% multiplier to a t.25% multiplier. The ensuing change resulted in
an approximate 5.5% increase in LAGERS pension contributions on behalf of the employees.
ln 2019, the City assumed the employee's contribution rcle of 4y" and the employees no longer are required to
contribute.
No changes to the LAGERS benefit have been budgeted tor 2023.

Effective April L, 2022, lhe City further enhanced its retirement program by adding a 9% ICMA Deferred Compensation
program provided by the City on behalf of each full-time employee. The City has budgeted S908,035 to fund the same
ICMA Deferred Compensation benefit for FY 2023.

For additional information or questions, please contact:

City of Republic
213 North Main Street
Republic, MO 55738
(417]'732-31.OO

BFord@ republicmo.com

Bob Ford, Finance Director
David Cameron, City Administrator
Jared Keeling, Assistant City Administrator
Lisa Addington, Chief of Staff

15
139

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Net Position

December 31-,2022

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

Assets

Current
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Ad valorem taxes receivable, net

Sales taxes receivable

Franchise taxes receivable

Utilities receivable, net

lntergovernmenta I receiva ble

Leases receivable

Other receivables

Prepaid insurance

Noncurrent
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital Assets

Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred pension outf lows

5 12,970,573 S

1,393,592

2,702,O52

173,809

L,257,557

403,191

155,615

2,398,866

9,L35,266
29,446,278

59,437,989

647,559

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

L6

83,40t,622 L42,839,6tL

583,284 L,230,843

L,696,t2L s

1.,467,L34

7,252,592

4L,856

41,935,017

8,878,800

1.30,ro2

14,666,694
L,383,682
2,LOz,052

173,809

t,467,134
t,257,657
L,252,592

403,191

208,471.

44,333,883

18,0L4,066

57,576,380

140

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Net Position

December 37,2022

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total
Liabilities

Current
Accounts payable

Retainage payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest payable

Police evidence payable

Deposits payable

Current maturities of long-term debt

Noncurrent

Bonds payable, net
Financed purchases

Compensated absences payable

Net pension liability

Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources

Deferred pension inf lows

Leases

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

U nrestricted
Total Net Position

372,336

32,827,439
121,095

18,010,904

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

!7

372,336 \,532,425 1.,904,761.

25,469,575 58,297,O1,4

121.,095

2L,293,8253,282,921.

s 50,959,438 5 28,752,496 5 79,711.,934

744,386
334,051

238,5L2
7,989

44,027

1,883,582

81.5,902

43,4t7
139,483

544,022
L,693,862

1,550,288

334,051

28L,929
L47,472

44,027

544,O22

3,577,444
3,252,547

2,136,469
1.,734,054

540,995

1,089,709

3,236,696

45,629,01.3

3,589,109

86,180

1,159,997

50,463,299

6,499,233

47,765,482
5,323,L63

627,L75
2,248,706

5,501,,227 55,964,526

9,753,774 53,699,985

290,984

1.,241,,447

62,453,759

663,320
L,241.,441

141

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 37,2022

Program Revenues
Charges Operating Capital

Net (Expenses), Revenues, and Changes in Net

Position
Primary Government

Business-Type
Activities Total

for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Services Contributions Contributions Activities

Functions/Programs
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Administrative
I nformation tech nology
Municipal court
Economic development
Police
Fire
Emergency management
Animal control
Street
Stormwater
Parks and recreation
Debt Service

Total Governmental Activities

$ !4,562 5 L,922 S 3,038,533 S5 (2,478,9301
(608,244)
(L27,767)

{.744,1.661
(2,957,917l'
(2,378,185)

(20,820)
(287,430)

(2,078,8971
(7,7501

(3,583,915)
(L29,329\

\95,478
558,799
45,653
7,tt8

65,416

7,364,206

29,785

4,797,450

s76,087 s
(608,2441

67,71.1
(155,582)

(2,903,948)
(2,370,917l,

(20,820)
(287,430]'

2,783,969
(7,750],

12,219,709\
(1.29,3291

576,087
(608,2441

67,7L1.
( 155,582)

(2,903,948)
(2,370,9L1l|

(20,820)
(287,430)

2,783,969
(7,750]|

(2,219,7091
(129,329)

s

7,3L6
150

(15,403,350) 2,252,232 9,388 7,865,768 (5,275,9621

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

18

(5,275,962)

Expenses

142

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses), Revenues, and Changes in Net
Position

Expenses

Chartes
tor

services
Governmental

Activlties

Primary Government
Business-Type

Activities Total
Busi ness-Type Activities

Water
Sewer

Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

12,Lss,4401
(s,400,685)

2,537 ,O11,
4,406,607

6,943,618

1,329,892
1,286,s6s

1,,671,,463

292,487
1,67L,463

292,487

1,963,950(7,s96,1.2s], 516 45? 1,963,9s0

5122,999,47s) s 9,19s,8s0 s 9,388 5L0,482,22s ls,27s,e62l 1,e63,es0 ,3,37a012)

General Revenues and Transfers
Sales taxes
Ad valorem taxes
Motor vehicle and gas taxes
Other taxes
Franchise fees
County reimbu rsements
lnterest
Other revenue

Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Chonges in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of year
Net Position, End of year

74,672,898
7,683,242

723,389
96,r02

958,501
151,098
737 ,952
282,616

436,625
428,480

1,4,61,2,898

1,,683,242
723,389
96,102

958,501
151,098
57 4,577
71,1,,096

3 51,191 (3 s 1,191)
18,996,989 s13,914

t3,727,027 2,477,864

37,238,41,1, 26,274,632
s s0.9s9.438 s 28.752.496

19,510,903

16,198,891

63,513,043
s 79.71.7.934

5ee accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

19

Operatint Capital
Grants and Grants and

Contributions Contributions

143

Item 8.



City of Republic

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

December 3L,2022

Special Revenue Funds

General

Fund

Street

Fund

Stormwater

lmprovement

Fund

Fire

Sales Tax

Fund

Parks and

Recreation

Capital

lmprovement
Sales Tax

Fund

Capital Proiect

Fund

Debt Service

Fund

Total

Governmental

Funds

Major
Grant

Fund

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents -

u n restricted
Ad valorem taxes receivable, net

Sales taxes receivable

Franchise taxes receivable

Other receivables

lntergovernmental receivable

Prepaid insurance
Restricted cash and cash

eq u ivalents

Total Assets

s 1,626,833 s 606,733 s
138,842

336,504

S sgz,az7 S 570,s04 5 2,ot9,21,2 S

268,676

336,504 t68,252

s 6,81s,313

976,t64
1,L76,666

173,809

367,096

57,657

111,578

733,540

84,L26

5,611 s 5 72,97O,s73

1,383,682

2,102,O52

173,809

403,191

1,257,657

166,615

36,095

1,200,000

16,002

236,477 1,565,084

s e,e 74,704 5 4,919,360 s 606,733 s 817,666 5 L,277,o42 5 738,7s6 5 2,OL9,272

-:

39,035

196,038

48,351

12 1,095 2,398,866

5 441,,817 s 121,oes s 20,8s6,44s

I
Iiabilities

Accounts payable

Retainage payable

Accrued expenses

Police evidence payable

Total [iabilities

s 4s,602 5 so2,746 5

334,051

27,453

s s s s s S5 744,386

334,051

238,512

44,027
762,708

44,O27

2s2,337 864250 244,389

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

20

1,360,976

144

Item 8.



City of Republic

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

December 3L,2022

Special Revenue Funds

General

Fund

Street

Fund

Stormwater

lmprovement
Fund

Fire

Sales Tax

Fund

Parks and

Recreation

Fund

Capital

lmprovement
Sales Tax

Fund

Capital Project

Fund

Debt service

Fund

Total

Governmental

Funds

Major
Grant

Fund

Deferred lnflows of Resources

Deferred taxes

Unavailable revenue

Total Deferred lnflows of
Resources

Fund Balances

Nonspendable

Prepaid items

Restricted for

Debt service

Assigned to

General purposes

Street

Stormwater

Fire

Parks and recreation

Capital improvements

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities,

Deferred lnflows of
Resources, and Fund

25,447 1,203,913

7r1,578 16,002

2,835,195

25,447 3,913

1,200,000

6,852

6,852

39,03s

985,766

7,236,2L2

166,615

12 1,095 r21,O95

2,OLg,272 2,019,212

2,835,195

606,733

817,666

986,766

1,180,533

9,525,342

606,733

877,666

738,756 441.,877

9,525,342

36,21.2

1,200,000

9,636,920 2,857,797 606,733 817,666 1,025,801 738,756 2,OL9,2t2 44t,877 121,09s t8,259,257

5 g,gtqJoq S 4,919,360 S 6os,zss S arz,e6e 5 L,277,o42 S 738,7s6 5 z,or9,2t2 5 441,877 S 121,09s 5

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

2L 145

Item 8.



City of Republic

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022

Fund balance - total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Governmental capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation

The net pension liability and deferred costs are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and, therefore, not reported in the funds. The following

is the detail of the net effect of these differences in the treatment of the net

pension liability and related deferred items:

Net pension liability
Deferred outflows due to pensions

Deferred inflows due to pensions

Deferred tax revenues that are collected in subsequent periods are not
available for current year's operations. However, on a full accrual basis of
accounting, they are reported as revenues.

Deferred revenues collected in subsequent years are not available to pay

for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable

revenue in the governmental funds' balance sheet.

lnterest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather

is recognized as an expenditures when due

5 L8,2s9,2s7

38,587,544

(1,089,709)

647 ,559

1372,3361
(814,486)

36,272

1,200,000

(7,989)

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

22

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds
Net position of govemmental activities

53,O28,081

lt4,446,s37)

(6,29s,100)

s s0,9s9,438

146

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2022

SpecialRevenue Funds

General
Fund

Street
Fund

Stormwater

Fund

Fire
Sales Tax

Fund

Parks and
Recreation

Fund

Capltal
lmprcvement
Sales Tax Fund

Major
Grant
Fund

CapitalProject
Fund

Debt service
Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds

Revenues
Taxes

licenses and permits

lntergovernmental revenues

Charges for services

fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

TotalRevenues

S 10,s22,30s S 2,634,191 S S s20,408
535,255 5s,619

7,315 451,098
45,324

2i9,942
121 1q1 SS q47 \ 1AR 7 AnF,

7r,673344 3,196,855 5,744 527,4L4

5 3,355,635 S

4,153.116 1,080,299

4,t32,375
1,084,310

4,137 1,508
4,137 1,508

s 18,074,132
590,88s

3,496,947
1,409,533

239,942
464,296

24,21s.735

2,631,412

490,062

182,343
153,547

2,612,993
2,395,004

222,589
8,141,145

7,750
4,132,315
1,991,833

7,041,512 1,113,098

1,040,593

]^7,436

s5 s

1,364,205

32,336 22,210

3,021,097

11,753

Expenditurct
Current

Administrative
lnformation technoloBY

Municipalcourt
Economic development
Police
Fire
Animal control
Street
stormwater
Parks and recreation

Capitalimprovements
Debt Service

Principaland interest
TotalExpendlturcs

Excess (Delicit ) of Reve nues

over Expenditures

2,631,472

490,062

\82,143
153,547

2,612,993
2,012,823

222,589
8,141,345

65,586

323,181

3,032,850

907,s23

1,150

8,965,829 8,206,931 I,150 323,181 4,132,375

620,801

1,084,310 907 523 1,047,512

(1,046,004)

24,615,417

2,707,519 15,010,076) {2,002) 204,633 (4,011) 2,12s,327 4,131 (r99,676)

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

23
147

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Year Ended December 3L,2022

Special Revenue Funds

General

Fund

Street

Fund

Stormwater

lmprovement

Fund

Fire

Sales Tax

Fund

Parks and

Recreation

Fund

Capltal

lmplovement
Sales Tax

Fund

Major

Grant

Fund

Capital Project Debt Service

Fund Fund

Total

Governmental

Funds

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Developer donated
i nfrastructu re
Proceeds from new debt
issuances

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers (out)

Total Other Financint
Sources (Uses)

5,579,438

3,297,450

2,5L9,O75

(123,s28l, (88,2ss)
120,240

(976,s81)

907,1.44

2,579,475

6,606,822

(6,2ss,631)(4, 740,0361 (327,2311

1,297,450

839,402 5,692,947

Net Chonge in Fund Bolonces 3,546,921 6B2,B7L

(88,2ss) (8s6,341) (327,2371 907,r44 6,167,666

(2,002)

608,735

776,378 (235,540) (4,011)

742,767

7,798,O96

221.,776

4,737

7.740

(138,860)

259,955

5,767,990

Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

6,089,999 2,768,326 707,288 7,267,341

s 9,636,920 s 2,8s1,197 s 606,733 s 817,666 s 1,025,801 s 738,756 5 2,OL9,2t2 5 441,877 S 121,09s 5 78,2s9,2s7

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

24

12,491,267

148

Item 8.



City of Republic

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Net change in fund balances - totalgovernmentalfunds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in

the Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives on a straight line basis and reported as depreciation
expense. The following is the net effect of these differences:

Expenditures for capital assets

Current year depreciation
(Loss) on disposal of capital assets

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds. The repayment ofthe principal on long-term debt
is a use of current financial resources of governmental funds. ln the
Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding debt whereas,
in the governmental funds, an interest expenditures is reported when

due. The following is the detail ofthe net effect of theses differences:
Repayment of principal on debt
Premium on bonds

Proceeds from the issuance of debt

Some expenditures reported in the governmental funds represent the use

of current financial resources and were recognized in the Statement of
Activities when incurred.

Change in pension related costs

change in compensated absences

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

25

5 s,767,99O

8,020,666
(1,38s,07s)

124,s841
6,611,,OO7

1,200,000

1,981 ,984
12,553

(2,s19,02s)
(s 18,488)

798,985
(138,467)

j___EtLs_

Governmentalfunds defer revenues that do not provide current financial resources.

However, the Statement of Activities recognizes such revenues at their net realizable

value when earned, regardless of when received.

650,518

149

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund

December 37,2022

Enterprise Funds

Water
Fund

Sewer
Fund Tota!

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Utilities receivable, net

Leases receivable

Prepaid insurance

Total Current Assets

Restricted Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Property, Plant and Equipment

Non-depreciable
Depreciable

Accumulated depreciation
Total Property, Plant, and Equipment

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred pension outf lows

s S S677,100
406,887

1,252,592

22,355

L,Otg,O21

t,060,247

'1,,696,r2L

L,467,134

7,252,592
4L,85619,501

2,358,934 2,O98,769 4,457,703

40,44t,O89 41,,935,O!7

1,,278,209

t2,363,189
(4,392,303)

7,600,591_

32,599,608

3e2l
9,249,095 27,759,807 37 902

73,101.,957 70,299,665 83,40L,622

317,256 583,284

8,878,800

44,962,797

(16,832,695)

266,O28

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

26

1,493,928

150

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund

December 31,2022

Enterprise Funds

Water
Fund

Sewer
Fund Total

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest payable

Utility deposits
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Bonds payable, net

Financed purchases

Compensated absences payable

Net pension liability
Total tong-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources

Deferred pension i nflows
Leases

Total Deferred !nflows of Resources

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

U nrestricted
TotalNet Position

135,881

L,241,44L
L,37'l ,322

6,080,278

t,010,264

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

27

4,056,951 46,396,448 50,453,299
4,900,727 48,799,864 53,699,985

155,L03 290,984
1,,24L,441,

155,103 1.,532,425

23,288
2L,303
7,699

544,022
235,968

792,61.4

22,1L4
13L,794

1,456,894

815,902

43,417

1_39,483

544,022
1,,693,862

833,270

1_,794,733

t,723,694
30,309

528,115

2,403,41.6

43,844,280

L,965,415
55,87L

630,882

3,236,586

45,629,01.3

3,5gg,l_og

86,1-80

1.,1.58,997

L9,389,297

2,272,657

25,469,575

3,282,921.

5 7,090,542 s__2L,55L,954_ _5 28J52,496_

151

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Enterprise Funds

Water
Fund

Sewer
Fund Total

Operating Revenues

Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Total Operatint Revenues

Operatint Expenses

Wages and benefits
Professional services

Telephone and utilities
lnsurance

Supplies

Travel, meetings and dues

Vehicle expense

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
General and administrative
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Expenses

Operoting lncome

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

lnterest income

lnterest expense

lmpact fees

Rental income

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expensesl

lncome BeIore Contributions ond Transferc

Capital Contributions
Developer donated inf rastructure

Operating Transfers in

Operating Transfers (out)

Change in Net Position

Net Position, January 1

Net Position, December 31

2,203,O70

333,941
s

2,537,O1.L

2,O38,21,L

498.800

40,760
(ts7,2291

98,525
77 ,305
59,3 61

558,151

1,329,892

182,9 50
(297 ,6431

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

28

5 7,O90,s42 5 27,667,9s4 j___281:2429_

5 4,337,O55

69,552
6,540,t25

403,493
s

4,406,607

L,362,067

231,408

4t7 ,688
49,380

150,867

t,489
26,327

5t8,771
691,801

to,76a
711,558

6,943,6L8

2,?O4,572

237 ,261
666,240
74,t68

237,427

18,397

78,587
785,347

978,269
24,9t4

810,153

4,t7 t,524

235,083

395,865

17,229,16t1
252,650

73 3,883

436,625
(1,386,390)

35t,775
77 ,305

(34s,563)

1,,286,565

t44,281,

l38O,77 9)

lszr,28sl

272,598

2,61,6,457

327 ,237
(678,4221.

704,504

20,957,450

2,477 ,864

26,274,632

942,505
5,853

248,552
24,788
80,950
16,908

52,260
267,776

286,468
L4,146
98,595

6,209,735

(s80,645)

t,773,360

5,3L7,182

152

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Enterprise Funds

Water
Fund

Sewer
Fund Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers

Cash paid to employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Net op€rating transfers (out)

Nonoperating revenues

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing

Activities

cash Flows from capital and Related Financing Activitles
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Proceeds from bond issue

Payment of bond principal

Payment of other debt principal

Payment of interest expense

Lease receipts

Net Cash Provided (Usedl by Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities
lnterest received on investments

Net Cash Provided by lnvesting Activities

Net lncredse in cash ond Cdsh Equivdlents

cash and cash Equivalents, Beginning of year

cash and Cash Equivalents, End of year

Less Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

i'77,4631 36,342,894 36,27r,431

24,305 395,856 420,t7t

s 2,506,492
(806,s49)

(816,ss7)

5 4,199,927 5

(1,s7 4,6491

11-,O7 L,6221

6,706,419
(2,381,198)

(1,888,179)

883,386

(114,693)

104,839

1,553,656

(235,498)

252,650

2,437 ,O42

(3s 1,191)

357 ,489

1e,8s4)

$,642,2061.
1,833,333

(s,800)

(180,929)

(152,156)

76,295

1,6,1,52

(7,460,e781

45,200,861

(194,508)

(7,2O2,381)

6,298

19,103,184)
47 ,O34,t94

(s,800)

(37s,s37]|

(1,354,537)

75,295

395,866 4ZO,L7L

826,37 4

1.,3M,654

38,308,568 39,1.34,942

4,496,196

2,L71,O28

1,,493,928

4r,460,1lO 43,631,138

40,441,Oag 4L,935,OL7

5 677,LO0 s 1,019,021 s 1,696,121

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

29

24,305

3,L57,542

153

Item 8.



City of Republic

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund

Year Ended December 37,2022

Reconciliation of Operating lncome to Net Cash Provided

by Operating Activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
(lncrease) decrease in

Utilities receivable

Prepaid expense

Deferred pension outflows
lncrease (decrease) in

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Utility deposits payable

Deferred pension inflows

Net pension liability

Compensated absences

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Enterprise Funds

Water Fund Sewer Fund Total

s 498,800 s 235,083 s 733,883

286,468 591,801 978,269

174,7t4l,
(3,7571

(142,3231

6,446
(13,e08)

44,L95

(16,045)

339,29L
(41,067l.

s 883,386

(206,190)

2,264

(194,138)

(280,904)

(1,493)

(336,461)

547,L89
(3,20e)

43,705
(37,931)

802,L06
(8,L121

540,743
10,699

(4eo)

(21,886)

462,81.5

32,955

S 1,553,656 S ,o42

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

30

154

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31", 2022

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The city of Republic, Missouri, (the City) was incorporated in 1871, under the provisions ofthe State of Missouri. The city
operates under a Mayor-City Council form of government. The City provides the following services as authorized by its

charter: public safety (police and fire), streets, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning, and general

administrative services. Other services include water and sewer operations.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accou ntlng principles generally accepted in the U nited States of America as

applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City is organized under the laws of the State of Missouri and is a primary government, which is governed by an elected
City Council. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the City has

evaluated the criteria to determine whether any other entity meets the definition of a component unit and must be
included in these financial statements. The City has determined that no other outside entity meets the above criteria and
therefore, no other entity has been included as a component unit in the financial statements. ln addition, the City is not
aware of any entity for which the City would be considered as a component unit of that entity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both the government-wide (the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and fund financial statements.

Gove rnme nt-Wid e Fin a nciol Statements

The government-wide statements display information about the government as a whole. lnterfund activity has been
eliminated from these statements to minimize the duplication of internal activities. Governmental activities, which are

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely on
fees and charges for services for support.

ln the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities are consolidated
and presented on the full accrual, economic resources basis of accounting. The consolidated presentation incorporates
long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations, and it provides information to improve analysis

and comparability.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for

each function of the City's governmental and business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically

associated with a program or a function. Program revenues include charges for goods or services offered by the programs

and grants and contributions that are restricted to meet operating and capital expenses of a particular program. Revenues

that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Finonciol Stotements

Separate fund financial statements report information on the City's Sovernmental and proprietary funds. The emphasis of

fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column'

31
155

Item 8.



Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual

basis of accounting. Consequently, the emphasis on near-term inflows and outfiows of resources do not present the long-

term impact of transactions. Conversely, the proprietary fund statements incorporate the accrual basis of accounting and

focus on the change in total economic resources. This presentation records long-term assets and liabilities, and recognizes

revenues and expenses when transactions occur, regardless of their impact on the flow of cash. Since the accounting

differs significantly between the governmental funds and the proprietary funds, it is necessary to convert the
governmental fund data to arrive at the government-wide financial statements. Therefore, reconciliations have been

provided following the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance identifying categories that required conversion from the fund statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund ofthe City. lt is used to account for all financial

resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Street Fund: The Street Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for resources restricted, committed or assigned

for street maintenance, improvements and indebtedness.

Stormwoter Fund:The Stormwater Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for resources restricted, committed

or assigned for stormwater maintenance, improvements and indebtedness.

Fire Sales Tox Fundi The Fire Sales Tax Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for resources restricted,

committed or assigned for the purpose of funding fire d€partment operations.

Pork Fund:Ihe Park Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for resources restricted, committed or assigned

for the operations of the city parks.

Copitol lmprovement Soles Tax Fund: The Capital lmprovement Sales Tax Fund is a special revenue fund used to

account for resources restricted, committed or assiSned for capital improvements to the City.

Copital Project Fund: The Capital Pro.iect Fund is used to account for acquisition or construction of major capital assets

and other capital outlay.

Debt Service Fund: The Oebt Service Fund accounts for resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned for the
retirement of principal, interest, and related costs.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds

Woter Fund. The Water Fund accou nts for the activities and capital improvements of the City's water operations.

Sewer Fund:fheSewer Fund accounts for the activities and capital improvements ofthe City's sewer operations.

32

City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Mojor Gront Fund: fhe Maior Grant Fund is used to account for resources received and expensed through major

grants.

156

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 3L, 2022

CapitalAssets

Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.9., roads, bridges, storm
sewers, and similar items) and are included in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets, excluding land, are defined by the City as assets with a cost of
55,000 or greater and an estimated useful life of at least one year. All land purchases are capitalized regardless of cost. All
purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where
no historical records exist. Donated fix€d assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized.

Distribution systems

Buildings and improvements
lnfrastructu re

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

20-50 years

40 years

20-40 years

5-10 years

5 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense; renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. Cash applicable to a

particular fund is readily identifiable. The balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating
req uirements. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as deposits available on demand
or with an original maturity of less than three months at the time of purchase.

Fair Value

The fair value measurement and disclosure framework provides for a fair value hierarchy that gives highest priority to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level L measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value

hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. There have been no

significant changes from the prior year in the methodologies used to measure fair value. The levels of the fair value

hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: lnputs using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: lnputs using significant other observable inputs including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

Level 3: lnputs are significant unobservable inputs

33

Historically, governmental infrastructure assets have not been capitalized and reported in the financial statements. ln
conformity with GASB 34, infrastructure, such as streets and storm sewers, has been capitalized. Additionally, the City
elected to depreciate its infrastructure assets. Depreciation is provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the
depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives on the straight-line basis. The service lives by type of
asset are as follows:

157

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Deferred outflows/lnflows of Resources

ln addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position or

fund balance that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)

until then. Currently, the City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts relating to the
pension plan.

ln addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet wlll sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City's

business-type activities reports deferred inflows related to the pension plan and leases. The governmental funds report

deferred inflows from deferred taxes and unavailable revenue from grants. These amounts are deferred and recognized

as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Deferred Taxes

Revenues from receivables not expected to be collected in time to pay current operating expenses are deferred until

received in the governmental funds. These deferred taxes are to be collected over several years.

Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes

Real estate property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on November 1 and

are due and payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied November 1 become delinquent after December 31 of that year.

Compensated Absences

Employees earn vacation time based on the number of years' service to the City. Outstanding vacation leave is payable

upon termination of employment. Upon separation from the Cihy's service, an employee is not entitled to receive payment

for any accrued and unused sick leave. Compensated absences are recorded as a liability in the Statement of Net Position.

Bond Premium

Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method, which

approximates the effective interest method.

Net Position

ln the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is displayed in three components as

follows:

Net lnvestment in CopitorAssets: This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less the outstanding
balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted: fhis consists of net position that is legally restricted by outside parties or by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

34

158

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Unrestricted: fhis consists of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital
assets.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the City
first applies restricted net position.

Fund Balance classifi cation

ln the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five classifications of fund balances
based on constraints imposed on the use of these resources as follows:

Nonspendoble fund bolonce: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either a) not
in spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund bolonce: This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either a) externally by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund bolonce; These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal resolutions of the City Council - the government's highest level of decision making authority. Those committed
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Council removes the specified use by taking the same type
of action imposing the commitment.

Assigned fund bolonce: This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City's "intent" to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts
(except negative balances) that are reported in the governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not
classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed.

Unossigned fund bolonce: This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. lt is also used to report
negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and producing and

delivering goods and services. All other revenues and expenses are considered nonoperatinE.

Program Revenues

ln the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activitY or from parties outside the City's

taxpayers are reported as program revenues. These include 1) charges for city court fines, licenses and permits, planning

and zoning services, parks and recreation services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)

35
159

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

capital Brants and contributions. All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as

general revenues, even if restricted for a specific purpose.

ln circumstances when a disbursement is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund balance

classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Leases

The City is a lessor for several leases of cell phone equipment on the City's water tower. The City recognizes a lease

receivable and a deferred inflow of resources in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease receivable at the present value of payments

expected to be received durinB the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of

lease payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease

receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred

inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

During the current year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 87 - teoses. As a result, the Water Fund now includes

receivables for the present value of payments expected to be received and paid and deferred inflows of resources that
will be recogn ized as reve n ue over the term of the lease. The fina ncia I statements for the yea r ended Decem ber 31, 202I'

were not restated in order to adopt this new pronouncement

During the current year, the City began contributing to a deferred compensation, 457 Plan, and therefore adopted GASB

Statement No. 97 - Certoin Component Unit Criterio ond Accountinq and Finonciol Reporting for lnternol Revenue Code

Section 457 Deferred Compensotion Plans. There was no impact to amounts reported in the financial statements,

however, additional notes to the financial statements have been added.

2. Cash & Cash Equivalents

State statutes require that the City's deposits be insured or collateralized in the name of the City by the trust department
of a bank that does not hold the collateralized deposits. As of December 31, 2022, all bank balances on deposit are entirely
insured or collateralized.

36

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System ([AGERS) pension and pension expense,

information about the fiduciary net position of LAGERS and additions to/deductions from LAGERS fiduciary net position

have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by I-AGERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including

refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

lnvestments are reported at fair value.

160

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 3L,2022

3. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts as follows

Accounts
Receivable Allowance

Net Accounts
Receivable

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

General Fund

Street Fund

Parks and Recreation Fund

General Fund

Police equipment reserves

Fire equipment reserves

Court bonds

Police evidence

lmpact fees

Operating reserves

Street Fund

STP match funds

Developer escrow

Unspent bond proceeds

Other

Parks and Recreation Fund

Capital replacement reserves

Capital Projects Fund

Developer escrow

Debt Service Fund

Debt service

s s98s,988
74L,486
270,187

(9,824) s
(2,6441

(1,s11)

976,t64
1.38,842

268,676

5 1,,391,66L S (13,979) $ i,,383,682

4. Restricted Assets

Governmental Activities

Cash and cash equivalents and fund balance/net position have been restricted as follows

S

Restricted Cash

and Cash

Equivalents

Restricted Fund

Balance / Net
Position

20,000

20,000

5,591

44,O27

25,124

Lzt,679
236,421

890,432
54,61.4

576,235
803

1,565,084

40,000

436,266

121,O95 L2 095

s

31

S z,sgs ,866 s t27,O95

161

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31,2022

Business-Type Activities

Cash and cash equivalents and net position have been restricted as follows

Water Fund

Capital replacement

lmpact fees

Unspent bond proceeds

Customer Deposits

Sewer Fund

Capital replacement
lmpact fees

Unspent bond proceeds

Restricted
Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Restricted
Net Position

s 76,285
297,O43

576,578
544,022

s

1_,493,928

816,285

828,725

38,796,O79

40,441,O89

s 41,93 5,O17 S

38

162

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 3L,2022

5. CapitalAssets

Capltal asset activity for the year ended December 3L,2022, was as follows

Balance

December 31,

2027 Additions
Governmental Activities

Non-depreciable Capital Assets

Land

Construction in progress

Total Non-Depreciable Capital
Assets

S

2,605,969

6,529,297 s 2,505,969 s

Deletions

Balance

December 31,

2022

5 s,zsz,tgt
176,900

s s 6,352,397

2,792,969

Depreciable Capital Assets

Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

I nfrastructure
Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

I nfrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital

Assets, net
Total Capital Assets -

Governmental Activities, net

38,558,659 5 5,4t4,597 S 80,541 43,892,815

L8,42O,260

2,204,256
4,378,169

13,555,974

439,741

524,91.r

4,450,045

43,770
36,831

9,L35,266

L8,420,260

2,600,287

4,966,249
18,005,019

5 S

7,049,365

L,4gO,1g5

2,452,669
2,t25,LgO

468,1.47

L70,229

337,339
409,360

29,868
26,089

7,5r7,512
1,530,556

2,763,919
2,534,55O

s S

t3,717,4t9 s 1,385,075 s 55,957 1.4,446,537

25,44L,240 29,446,278

5 31.,970,537 s 38,s81,s44

39

163

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 37,2022

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows

Admlnistrative
Police
Fire

Court
Streets and Stormwater
Planning
Parks

Emergency Management
Animal Control

Balance

December 31,

2021 Additions
Business-Type Activities

Water
Non-depreciable Capital Assets

Construction in progress

Total Non-depreciable Capital

Assets

5 t,278,209 s

S 1,, 278,209 s

S 4s,s73
781,27L
286,O27

7,783
447,259

LL,847
356,804

20,820
27,69L

s 1,38s,07s

Deletions

Balance

December 31,

2022

S 5 L,z78,zo9

Depreciable Capital Assets
Water plant
Buildings and improvements
Major moveable equipment
Vehicles

Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Water plant
Buildings and improvements
Major moveable equipment
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Depreciable Capital

Assets, net

L0,669,300 S t,ogs,asg I

S 9,526,590
363,121
385,057
394,532

3,493,320
54,467

187,L78
370,870

4,105,835

5 7,522,242 S

t,278,2O9

S 11,048,832
363,72L
540,307
410,929

155,250
L6,397

s t96,723
9,805

64,L38
1,6,802

l_ 28rcE_

S

12,363,L89

3,690,043
63,272

257,31,6
387 672

s 4,392,303

6,563,465 7,970,886

40

164

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Balance

Oecember 31,

202L Additions Deletions

Ba lance

December 31,

2022
Sewer

Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Land
Construction in progress

Total Non-depreciable Capital
Assets

Deprecia ble Capital Assets
Sewer plant
Major moveable eq uipment
Vehicles

Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Sewer plant
Major moveable eq uipment
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Depreciable Capital

Assets, net
Total Capital Assets -
Business-Type Activities, net

270,670
1,108,638

1,379,308

7 ,265,958
270,670

7 ,329,92L
s

1 o44 675

S 7,26s,9s8 $ t,o44,675 7 ,600,s9L

28,115,557
9t4,280
479 836

70,911,791
4t1,,O29
462 095

t7,784,9t5

1,8,324,758

30,10e,673 j___2,5258_

5 2,33t,247
L25,6t4
69,404

S s96,ss3
79,603
15,645

691,801

31,046,798
L,O39,894

572,9L6
32,599,608

5

s

36 324
36 324

L1-,508,3M
490,632

36 324 441, 41,6

s 36.324 72.440.392

?0,L59,2L6

s

S 26.267.s31 s 37,008,902

6. Long-Term Liabilities - Governmental Activities

The governmental activities long-term liabilities at December 37, 2022, consist of bonds, certificates of participation,
loans, financed purchases, and compensated absences.

Series 2017 Special Obligation Refunding Bonds

On October 19, 2017, the City issued 54,080,000 in Special Obligation Refunding Bonds for the purpose of refunding the
Series 2010 and a portion of the Series 2011 Special Obligation Bonds. 97,68% of the Special Obligation Bonds was

recorded as long-term debt within the governmental activities and 2.32% was recorded as long-term debt within the
business-type activities. The principal amount recorded within the business-type activities has matured as of December

37, 2022. fhe bonds bear interest ranging from 2.lyo lo 3.0% with principal payments due May L and interest payments

due November 1 and May 1 each year. The bond purchase agreement calls for all bonds to be purchased by a sole

purchaser who will then offer them for sale to the public. The bonds may not be called for redemption u nder the provisions

outlined in the bond ordinance. ln the event of default, Bond Owners of not less than 10% may take such actions as may

be necessary, such as seeking mandamus or specific performance, to cause the City to comply with its obligations under

the agreement.

41,

165

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

The annual debt service requirements for these bonds at December 31, 2022, are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31, Principal lnterest Total

2023
2024
2025

s 130,000

135,000

200,000

12,000

8,025

3,000

1,42,OOO

1,43,O25

203,000

s s

465 000 s 23.02s s 488,02s

Series 2022 Special Obligation Bonds

On February 16, 2022, the City issued 545,445,000 in Series 2022 Special Obligation Bonds for the purpose of construction

of a new public works facility, for approximately 54,965,000 and improvements to the City's sewerage system for

approximately S4O,48O,OOO. The amount attributable to the public works facility is recorded in the governmental activities

and the amount for the sewerage system improvements is recorded in the enterprise funds and business-type activities.

The bonds bear interest ranging from 3.OO% lo 4.00%, with principal payments due May 1 and interest payments due May

1 and November 1 each year. The City has not pledged its fullfaith and credit and is not obligated to levy taxes or resort

to any other moneys or property of the city to pay the principal and interest'

The annual debt service requirements for these bonds at December 31, 2022, are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31, Principal lnterest Total

2023

2024
2025
2026
zo27

2028-2032

2033-2037

zo38-2042
2043-2047

s 1,21s,000

1,265,000

1,320,000

1,375,000

1,430,000

8,070,000
9,850,000

9,595,000

11,315,000

7,659,700
1,610,100

1,558,400

1,504,500

1,448,400
6,318,000

4,530,200

2,593,825
858,875

5

s 4s,44s,000 5 22,O92,O0O s 67,s37,000

Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

s 1,833,333

43,6t7,661

l___3!4r999_

Capital Financed Purchase - 2006 MAMU

ln February 2007, the City entered into a financing agreement with Missouri Association of Municipal Utilities to finance
the construction of the addition and renovation of Fire Station No. 1 and the acquisition of related furnishings and
equipment in the amount of 5992,000. The agreement requires various monthly payments with interest at 4.0%. ln the

42

5 2,874,700
2,a75,tOO

2,874,400
2,879,500
2,878,400

14,388,000

14,390,200

12,L88,825
72,783,475

166

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

event of default, the lender may terminate the agreement, retake possession of the property, lease or sublease the
property with the City remaining liable for the remaining payments, declare all payments immediately due and payable

for the remainder of the current fiscal year, or take whatever action at law or in equity deemed necessary.

The following is a schedule offuture minimum payments under this agreement (assuming noncancellation)i

Direct BorrowingYear Ending

December 31, Principal lnterest Total
2023
2024
2025
2026

2027

2028
2029
2030

2031

2032

Year Ending

December 31,

ss5 19,350

77 ,440
15,520

13,600

1),,587

9,220
6,820
4,420
1,,970

60

l_____199p99_ 99 997 s 605 997

Series 2007 Certificates of Particapation

ln March 2007, the City issued 51,800,000 in Certificates of Participation for the purpose of acquiring, constructing,
furnishing, and equipping Fire Station No. 2. The Certificates of Participation bear interest at 3.25% with monthly payments

of 59,201 due on the first of each month. ln the event of default, the lender may terminate the agreement, retake
possession of the property, lease or sublease the property with the City remaining liable for the remaining lease payments,

or take whatever action at law or in equity deemed necessary.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments under this agreement (assuming noncancellation):

Direct Borrowing
Principal Total

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
203L
2032

s 80,942
82,777
84,758
86,734
88,756
90,796
92,942
95,108
97 ,326
99,590

19,900
18,065
16,083
1,4,LO7

12,085
10,046

7,900
5,733
3,516
1,252 100 842

S $ r.00,842
LOO,842

100,841
100,841
100,841
1oo,a42
too,842
100,841
100,842

s_--8e9lE-

43

s 108.687 s 1,008,416

48,000
48,000
48,000
48,000
56,000

60,000

60,000

60,000

66,000

12,000

67 ,360
65,440
63,520
61,600
67,587

69,220
66,820
64,420
67 ,970
1,2,060

lnterest

167

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31,2022

Financed Purchase -Aerial Fire Truck

ln June 2017, the City entered into an agreement to finance the purchase of a 2Ol7 Rosenbauer Firetruck in the amount

of 5713,000. The agreement req uires semi-annual payments of 544,728 with interest at 2.29%. ln the event of default,

the lender may declare all payments immediately due and payable, retake possession of the property, lease or sublease

the property with the City remaining liable for the remaining payments, or take whatever action at law or in equity deemed

necessary.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments under the lease agreement (assuming noncancellation):

Direct BorrowingYear Ending

December 31, lnterest Total

2023
2024
2025
2026

Year Ending
December 31,

Principal

S 8t,soo
83,367

85,276

44,857

S 6,756
4,889

2,980
1,,027

88,256

88,256

88,256
45,884

S

s 295,000 s 1,5,652 s 310,652

Financed Purchase - Komatsu Dozer & Excavator

ln April 2021, the City entered into an agreement to finance the purchase of a 2015 Komatsu Dozer and a 2018 Komatsu

Excavator in the amount of 5203,530. The debt was recorded as long-term debt within both the governmental activities

and the business-type activities based on the activity that was to utilize the equipment. The usage was estimated to be

33.33% for governmental activities and 66.67% for business-type activities. The agreement requires monthly payments

of 54,357 with interest at L.4%.ln the event of default, the lender may declare all payments immediately due and payable,

retake possession of the property, lease or sublease the property with the City remaining liable for the remaining

payments, or take whatever action at law or in equity deemed necessary.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments under the agreement (assuming noncancellation):

Direct Borrowing

Principal lnterest Total

2023
2024
2025

1,374
648
52

S

Govern menta I Activities
Business-Type Activities

_5 2e_

s 40,063

80 1.25

_S 120,188_

44

S s1,024
51,750
17,414

-S 12!Jg!-

5 52,398
52,398
17,466

5 122.262

168

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31,,2022

Financed Purchase - Sawyer Park Land

ln September 202L, the City entered into an agreement to finance the purchase of land in the amount of 52,000,000. The
agreement requires annual payments of S1,000,000, with no interest. ln the event of default, the lender may declare all
payments immediately due and payable.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments under the agreement (assuming noncancellation)

Year Ending

December 31,

Direct Borrowing
Principal Interest Total

2023 S 1,ooo,ooo S S 1,ooo,ooo

Direct Loan Agreement-2022 MTFC Loan

On June L,2022, the City entered into a direct loan agreement and promissory note with the Missouri Transportation
Finance Corporation (MTFC) for the purpose of a cost share program with the Missouri Highways and Transportation
Commission. The loan shall be specifically used for the widening of Route MM to four lanes plus a center turn lane from
Route 360 to lnterstate 44. The total amount of the direct loan is 54,200,000, however, the proceeds will be issued to the
CityinfourdisbursementswiththefirstloandisbursementoccurringinJune2022,intheamountof the5585,692. The
second disbursement of 52,007,533 will be provided to the City in calendar year 2023 and the third and fourth
disbursements of 51,506,775 will be provided to the City in calendar year 2024. The loan bears interest at 1.4% and
principal and interest payments are due annuallyon April 15 of each year.

The following is a schedule of future payments under the agreement:

Direct Borrowing
Principal lnterest Total

Year Ending

December 31,

2023

2024
s 430,964

254,728

L5,294

6,248
446,258
260,976

S 5

S oas,ogz 5 21,,s42 5 707,234

45
169

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31., 2022

The following table is a summary of the changes in the Long-Term Liabilities - Governmental Activities for the year ended

December 31, 2022:

Balance

December 31,

202L Additions Retirements

Balance

December 31,

2022

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

Direct Borrowings
Capital Borrowings

2006 MAMU
2007 Certificates of Participation

202L Land Note

Aerial Fire Truck

Equipment
2022 MTFC Loan

Bonds

Series 20u Special Obligation

Refunding Bonds

Series 2022 Special Obligation Bonds

Premium on Series 2017 Bond

Compensated Absences

3,964,576 685,692 1,223,784 3,426,484

S ss3,ooo
978,445

2,000,000

376,300

56,831

5 47,000
78,716

1,000,000

81,300

16,768

s 506,000
899,729

1,000,000

295,000

40,063
685,692

$ 48,ooo
40,942

1,000,000

81,500
5L,O24

430,964
1,,692,430

s

L,229,200
1,833,333

12,5 5 3

!,27L,047 1,833,333 776,753 2,327,621 191,152

402,528 t38,467 s40,995

s s,638,14s 5 2,6s7,492 s 2,OOO,s37 s 6,29s,100 s 1,883,s82

764,200 465,000

1,833,333

29,288

7. Long-Term Liabilitaes - Business-Type Activities

The business-type activities long-term liabilities at December 31, 2022 consists of the following debt issuances as well as

compensated absences payable:

Financed Purchase - 2006 MAMU

ln December 2006, the City entered into an agreement with Missouri Association of Municipal Utilities to finance the
extension of the water and sanitary sewer system lines and the construction of a new well and elevated water storage

ta nk in the amount of 57,865,000. The agreement requires various monthly payments with interest at 3.975%. ln the event
of default, the lender may terminate the agreement, retake possession of the property, lease or sublease the property
with the city remaining liable for the remaining payments, declare all payments immediately due and payable for the
remainder of the current fiscal year, or take whatever action at law or in equity deemed necessary.

46

685,692

41,,847

130,000

48,600
t2,552

170

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31,2022

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements (assuming noncancellation):

Year Ending
December 31,

Direct
Pr!ncjpgl lnterest Total

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031

S 357,000
376,000
392,000
412,OOO

430,000
450,000
472,OOO

494,O00
517,000

l_3]900.009_
L,g72,OOO

2,o2g,ooo

s 3,9o0,ooo

5 lsz,ozl, 5 4,652,o2t

S S148,555
r34,O37
118,800
102,853

86,158
68,698
50,426
31.,273

1,1,210

505,566
510,037
5L0,800
514,853
515,158
518,698
522,426
525,273
528,2LO

Water Fund

Sewer Fund

s

Financed Purchase - Komatsu Dozer & Excavator

See Note 6.

Series 2022 Special Obligation Bonds

See Note 5.

47

171

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

The following table is a summary of the changes in the Long-Term Liabilities - Business-Type Activities for the year ended

December 31, 2o22:

Balance

December 31,
202t

Balance
December 31,

2022

s 1,872,000
40 062

t,972,062

Amounts
Due Within
One YearAdditions Retirements

Water Fund
Direct Borrowings

2OO5 MAMU
Equipment

5 2,036,160
56,831

S 164.160
t6,759

74O,929

5,800

S 171,3G0
17,008

188,358

5

Bonds
Series 2017 Refunding
Series 2022 Special Obligation

compensated Absences

2,092,99r

5,800

5,800
17,376

1,83 3,333 5,800
47,061

1,83 3,3 33 1,833,333
1,833,333

30,309

48,600
48,600

Sewer Fund

Direct Borrowings
2006 MAMU
Equipment

Bonds
Series 2022 Special Obli8ation
Premium on series 2022 Bond

Compensated Absences

Tax Rate Per S10O of Assessed Valuation
General Fund

Park Fund

Street Fund

2,170,167

2,205,A40
56,831

2,262,677

22,976

1,833,333 227,796

777,a40
75,164

194,608

41,778,334
102,335
102,335

3 22 521

3,775,704 236,968

2,O2a,OOO

40,063
2,068,063

47,77a,334
3,120,792

45,098,525
s5,87 |

185,640
17,008

202,644

1,117,800
t36,446

2,285,581

45,200,861
32,955

45,233,816

|,254,246

296,943 47,222,460 t,456,494

5 280,222,448
1,938,879

_$__A!zrE_ _5__47.067-1!9_ _5____s2!f39_ -9-l!.99&1!! -9--tE9-?.902-

8. Assessed Valuation, Tax Levy, & Legal Debt Margin

The assessed valuation of the tangible property and the tax levy per 5100 assessed valuation of that property were as

follows:

2022

Assessed Valuation
Real estate
Personal property

Total

.4326

.1156

.0556

48

s

j__28219152_

S .orss

172

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

The legal debt mar8in at December 31, 2022, was computed as follows

General Obligation Bonds

ordinary (1) Additional (2) Total
Constitutional Debt Limit
General Obligation Bonds Payable

Amount Available in Debt Service Fund

Legal Debt Margin

$ 28,2t6,L33 $ 28,276,L33 5 s6,432,266

t21,,O95 121,095
28 331 228 28 216 133 s s6,ss3,361

(1) Under Article Vl, Section 26(b) and (c), Missouri Constitution, the City, by a vote of its qualified electors voting therein,
may incur an indebtedness for any purposes authorized in the charter of the City or by any generql law of the State of
Missouri. The borrowings authorized by this section shall not exceed ten percent of the value of the taxable tangible
property in the City.

9. Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The City provides benefits to employees through a defined contribution plan established under section 457 of the lnternal
Revenue Code. This defined contribution plan is administered by MissionSquare Retirement, and benefits depend solely
on amounts contributed to the Plan, plus investment earnings. The City contributes 9% per payroll for all employees
starting six months after full-time status date, which are then retroactively paid back to the full-time date. Employeesare
eligible to participate from the date of hire. Employer and employee contributions are fully vested immediately.

During the year ended December 3!, 2022, employer contributions were 5550,871 and employee contributions were

5764,327.

10. Employee Pension Plan

General lnformation about the Pension Plan

plon Description.fhe City's defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and death benefits to plan

members and beneficiaries. The City participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System

(LAGERS). LAGER5 is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established in 1967 and

administered in accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755. As such, it is LAGERS responsibility to administer the law in

accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The plan is qualified under the lnternal Revenue Code

Section 401(a) and is tax exempt. The responsibility for the operations and administration of LAGERS is vested in the

LAGERS Board of Trustees consisting of seven persons. LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes

financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by accessing the LAGERS

website at www.molagers.org.

49

(2) Under Article Vl, Section 25(d) and (e), Missouri Constitution, the City, by a vote of its qualified electors voting therein,
may become ind€bted not exceeding in the aggregate an additional ten percent for the purpose of acquiring rights-of-
way, construction, extending, and improving streets and avenues, and/or sanitary or storm sewer systems; and purchasing

or constructing waterworks, electric or other light plants, provided that the total general obligation indebtedness of the
City does not exceed twenty percent of the va lue of the taxable tangible property in the City.

173

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31,2022

Benefits Provided. LAGERS provides retirement, death and disability benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the employer, within the options available in the state statutes governing tAGERs. All benefits vest

after 5 years of credited service. Employees who retire on or after age 60 (55 for police and fire) with 5 or more years of

service are entitled to an allowance for life based upon the benefit program information provided below. Employees may

retire with an early retirement benefit with a minimum of 5 years of credited service and after attaining age 55 (50 for
police and fire) and receive a reduced allowance.

2022 Valuation
Benefit multiplier
Final average salary

Member contributions

L.z5% fot life
3 years

0%

Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member's retirement allowance subsequent to the

member's retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on the increase in the Consumer Price lndex and is limited to

4Yo Per Yeat-

Employees Covered by Benefit Term' At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

lnactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits

Active employees

Contributions. Fhe City is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as established

by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by

employees during the year. With an additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued liability. Full-time employees of
the City contribute O% of gross pay to the pension plan. The City's contribution 'ates are L3.4yo for General, 15.4% fot
Police, and L2.4% fot Fite ot annual covered payroll.

Net Pension Liobility. The City's net pension liability was measured as of J une 30,2022, and the total pension liability used

to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of February 28, 2022.

Actudrial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the February 28,2022, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

2.75% wage inflalion, 2.25% price inflation
2.75% to 6.75% includlng inflation for the Genera I Division

2.75% lo 6.55% including inflation for the Police Division
2.75% to 7.15% including inflation for the Fire Division
7.00% net of investment and administrative expenseslnvestment rate of return

50

General Police Fire

Division Division Division Total
366446
2a 20 L2 50

75 23 L20

139 49 38 226

lnflation
Salary increase

174

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, used in evaluating allowances to be paid were 115% of
the PubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Table for males and females. The disabled retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement
mortality, used in evaluating allowances to be paid wete 715y" of the PUbNS-2010 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table for
males and females. The pre-retirement mortality tables were 75% of the PubG-2010 Employee Mortality Table for males
and females of General groups and 75% of the PubS-20L0 Employee Mortality Table for males and females of Police, Fire

and Public Safety groups.

Mortality rates for a particular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2020 mortality improvement scale to
the above described tables

The actuarial assumptions used in the February 28, 2022, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period March 1, 2015, through February 28, 2020.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in which the
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expenses and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected

Real Rate of Return

Alp ha

Equity

Fixed lncome
Real Assets

Strategic Assets

Cash/Leverage

1s.00%

3s.00%

37.00%

36.00%

a.oo%

-25.00%

3.67%

4.78%

7.4L%

3.29%

5-25%

-o.29%

Discount Rote.The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon

for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's

fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and

inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all

periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total pension liability.

51

175

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 37,2022

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

General Division
Balance at beginning of year

Changes for the year

Service cost

I nterest
Difference between expected and actual

experiences

Contributions - employer
Net investment income

Benefits paid, including refunds

Administrative expenses

Other (net transfer)

Net Chonges

Balance at end of year

Police Division
Balance at beginning of year

Changes for the year

Service cost

I nterest
Difference between expected and actual

experiences

Contributions - employer
Net investment income

Benefits paid, including refunds

Admi n istrative expenses

Other (net transfer)
Net Changes

Balance at end of year

s 7,6L4,833 s

lncrease (Decrease)

Total Pension

Liability
Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension

Net Pension

Liability
(a)- (b)(a

s L,L16,330

268,652
532,372

!52,792

(288,020)

554,286
6,116

(288,020)

(1s,030)

(s2,737)

268,652

532,372

L52,792
(ss4,286)

(6,116)

15,030

52,737

655,796 204,6L5 46L,tgl
8,280,629

1,,979,458

6,703,1.t8

L,564,693

1,577,51't

4L4 765

80,824

1,39,449

119,301

( 183,171)

(1,8s1)

3,979
5,601

80,824
139,449

119,301

(55,036)

183,171.

1,851

(55,036)

(3,9791

5,601

120,406284,538 L64,132

2,263,996 1,695,099 578,897

52

176

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

lncrease (Decrease)

Total Pension

Liability (Asset)

(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension

(b)

Net Pension

tiability (Asset)

(al - (b)Fire Division
Balance at beginning of year

Changes for the year

Service cost

lnterest
Difference between expected and actual

experiences

Contributions - employer
Net investment income

Benefits paid, including refunds
Administrative expenses

Other (net transfer)
Net Chonges

Balance at end of year

Total Plan Balances at end of year

General Division

Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiducia ry Net Position

Net Pension Liability

Police Division

Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability

Fire Division

Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension LiabilitY

Total Net Pension Liability

595 087 l__19.318!1_ j____?,248195_

1,771,3t3 1,447 ,659 (7 6,346)

87 ,919
126,085

93,224

lz7,o79)

138,955

3,828

127 ,o7el
(3,648)

(ss 1)

87,9t9
126,085

93,224
(138,9ss)

(3,828)

3,548

5s1

280,L49 111,505 1,68,644

t,959,764 92,298
1

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liobility to Chonges in the Discount Rote. The following present the Net Pension Liability of
the City, calculated using the discount rate ot 7.OO%, as well as what the City's Net Pension Liability would be using a

discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6-00%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease

6.OO%

Current Single

Discount Rate

Assumption

7.OO%

1oZ lncrease

a.oook

5 s s9,627,897
6,703,118

I,280,629
6,703,118

7,186,108
6,703,118

2,91,8,719 7,577 ,51,1,

2,263,996
1,68s,099

482,990

1,,917 ,784
1,685,099

2,698,819

1,685,099
1,,Ot3,720 578,897 232,685

L,762,592
1,959,164

2,4t2,477
7,959,164

2,O57,462

t,959,764

453,253 92,298 (t96,s72\

53

S 2,24a,7o6

2,O57,462

s 4.38s.752

-

_$_____11941-

177

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31,2022

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31,,2022, the City recognized a pension expense of 5423,639 in the General Division,

5129,348 in the Police Division, and 55a,427 in the Fire Division. The City reported deferred outflows and inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
outflows of
Resources

Deferred
(lnflows) of
Resources

Net Deferred

Outflows (lnflows)

of Resources

General Division
Differences in experiences

Differences in assumptions

Excess (deficit) investment returns

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date*

s 44t,699
23,582

/]36,287], s
(86,84s)

lL72,s26l

305,412
(63,263)

1t72,9261
328,626

s

Police Division
Differences in experiences

Differences in assumptions

Excess (def icit) investment retu rns

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date*

Total

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

328,626
793,907 (396,0s8)

(7s,501)

(21,6s5)

135,315

4,705

109,542

397 ,849

59,71,4

4,705
(21,6s6)

to9,542
249,562

90,453

13,450

83,4 61

(e7,2s71

(128,386)

(6,379)

(3s,240)

15 2,305

(37 ,923)
7,O7t

(3s,240)

83,467

1,87 ,37 4 (170,005)

1 230

647 ,559
583,284

843 5 653,320) j___:61,s23_

5 5 1372,336) s
(290,984)

275,223
292,300

s 1,230,843 _9_____l9E;?E 5 567,523

*The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be reco8nized in the Net Pension Liability in the year ending December 31, 2023.

54

Fire Division
Differences in experiences

Differences in assumptions

Excess (deficit) investment returns

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date*
17,369

178

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31., 2022

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense
as follows:

General Police Fire Total

Year Ending

June 30,

Net Deferred
Outflows (lnflows)

of Resources

Net Deferred
Outflows (lnflows)

of Resources

Net Deferred
Outflows (lnflows|

of Resources

2023
2024
2025
2026
zo27

Thereafter
Tota I

5 50,658
(1s6)

(104,033)

92,851
26,trs

3,788

t6,3t2
11,893

l.L7 ,3t71
28,424

3,451

(L8,O221 s
(19,966)

(3s,288)

2r,a05
(1,8s9)

1t2,762)

44,948

i'8,229).
(156,638)

143,080

27 ,707
(8,974)

5 S

5 69,223 5 42,763 5 (66,092) 45,894s

Payable to the Pension Plan

At December 3L,2022, the City had S123,311 of contributions payable to the pension plan required for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

11. Leases

The City leases tower space on the water tower to third parties, as a lessor. Payments are fixed and payable monthly
During the year ended October 31, 2022, the City recognized 570,991 in lease revenue.

12. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and

omissions; iniuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has transferred its risk by obtaining coverage from a
public self-insured insurance pool. ln addition, it has effectively managed risk through various employee education and
prevention programs. There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year.

13. Claims & Adjustments

The City participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received from

other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor government. lf
expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulation, the City may be required to reimburse

the grantor government. As of Decembet 37,2022, expenditures have not been audited by grantor governments, but the

City believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on su bsequent audits will not have a material effect on a ny of the

individual government funds or the overall financial position of the City.

Net Deferred
Outflows (lnflows)

of Resources

55

179

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

14. lnterfund Transfers

Transfers between funds of the city for the year ended December 3I,2022, were as follows;

General Fund

Street Fund

Fire Sales Tax Fund

Park Fund

Debt Service Fund

Water Fund

sewer Fund

15. Commitments

At December 31, 2022, the City had the followinB commitments:

Vendor Pro ct

Transfers
ln (Out)

s 839,402

1L21,528)
(88,2ss)

(856,341)

907,1,44

(297,6431

(38o,7791.

s

Transfers are used to (1) move receipts from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to disburse them, and (2) use unrestricted receipts in the Enterprise Funds and General Fund

to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Amount

Burns & McDonnell
Burns & McDonnell
Burns & McDonnell
Burns & McDonnell

Burns & McDonnell
Ross Construction
sapp Design Architects
Olsson Associates

Anderson Engineering, lnc

Wastewater treatment facility expansion project

Wastewater treatment facility blending project

lift station #4 and forcemain improvements project

lower Brookline linear improvement project
McElhaney lift station and forcemain project

BUILDS project

Aquatic Center

Shuyler Creek Trail extension
Hines and Lynn roundabout

s 4,765,229

219,810

2,377 ,825
1,4,250

35,460
t,507 ,41,8

390,225
68,952

60,844

16. Tax Abatements

As of December 3L, 2022, the City provides tax abatements through one program -The Enhanced Enterprise Zones
Program.

The Enhanced Enterprise zones Program is designed to attract new or expanding businesses to the area. Under Sections
135.950- 135.970, RSMo., in order for a manufacturer, distributor, or certain service industries to qualify for the 50% tax
abatement for 10 years, the business must meet certain minimum criteria depending on the type of business facility. The
Clty of Republic, Missouri voted for the qualifying business to include manufacturing, warehousing/distributions and
supply chaln, wholesale trade, processing wholesale material for wholesale trade, professional services, and any other

56

180

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31,2022

business enterprise that creates and maintains 15 or more full time jobs, defined as 35 hours per week or more, excluding
retail, eating and drinking establishments, and gaming operations. New or expanded business facilities must have

5100,000 in new investment. Replacement business facilities must have 51,000,000 in new investment. Both types of
business facilities must also offer health insurance to full time employees in Missouri, of which at least 50% is paid by the
employer. During the year ended December 3L,2022 the total amount abated through the City's Enhanced Enterprise
Zones Program was 5L04,694.

17. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to December 31,2022, the City entered into a contract with Grooms Office Environments to perform furniture
consultation and design support services, including the sales and installation of furniture and furnishings for the City's
BUILDS Department's new facility in an amount not to exceed 5363,999.

On April l!, 2023, Council approved entering into an agreement to lease four dump trucks with an annual cost of
approximately $159,000.

On March 23, 2023, the City issued Series 2023 Special Obligation Bonds in the amount of 59,920,000 for capital
improvements of the aquatic center and construction of a new community event space.

18. Restatement

Certain balances in the Statements of Net Position have been restated for inclusion of leases receivable and the
corresponding deferred inflows of resources due to the implementation of GASB 87 - Leases, during the current year. The

implementation of the new accounting standard had no effect on beginning net position. Changes to these balances are

as follows:

Business-type

Activities
Water Fund

Net Position, as previously stated, December 3L,2021,

Leases receivable

Deferred inflows of resources

Net Position, as restated, January I,2022

5 zo,ztq,azz S

7,3L2,432
(L,3L2,432)

s,317,185

L,312,432
(L,312,432l

5 zs,ztq,ozz S s,3tz,tss

5l
181

Item 8.



Required Supplementary lnformation

182

Item 8.



City of Republic

Schedule of Changes in Net Position Liability and Related Ratios

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (tAGERS)

2021 2021 2020 20L9 2018 2077 2016

Total Pension LiabilitY

Service Cost

lnterest on the Total Pension Liability

Changes of Benefit Terms

Difference between expected and actual

experience
Changes of AssumPtions

Benefit PaYments

Net Chonge in Totol Pension Liobility

Total Pension Liability, Beginning

Total P€nsion Llabillty, Ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

contributions - emPloYer

contributions - emPloYee

Net lnvestment lncome

Benefit Payments

Pension Plan Administrative Expense

Other (Net Transfer)

Net Chonge in Plon Fiduciory Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Beginning

Plan FlduciaiY Net Potition, Endlng

Employ€r Net Penslon Liabillty

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total Pension liability

cov€red payroll

437,395

797 ,906

420,067

711,244

425,565

734,452

409,689

622,7 51.

240,O05

389,419

515,897

354,360

440,338
301,679

34t,126
a7 3,444

$ 5 4o2,3oo

560,802

205,087

2015

5

l.1.1,41.o)

4,635,981

5 s,974,007

365,317

(370,13s)

l'76,44s)

{119,987)

{29s,s23)

12,913

(46,438)

(208,873)

t39,457

309,808

(1s1,ss2

s S s s 5

l.344,81O) 511,093

l2s9 ,849) 124r,73t) (390,372) ) (160,817)

1.338,0261,230,483

11,365,604

761,346

10,604,258

s55,29E

10,048,960

1,541,4O7

8,507,153

662,91A

7,066,4L4

7,O92,4t1

5,974,007

777,817

512,s96,087 s 11,365 ,604 510,604,2s8 S 10,048,950

7,729,336

S 8,s07,1s3 29,336 _t_4!q4s_5 7,7

S 876,412

11,795
(370,13s)

(22,6s7)

(58,889)

5 142,s49
26

2,t47,426

129s,5231

l.1.7 ,57 6)

25,L04

s 725,511

94,547
(259,849)

l'22,7941
20,943

S s80,248

L24,450

398,106

124r,737!
(19,331)

4,O70

S 442,199

185,355

632,274

(390,372)

(12,809)

227,617

L,074,245

4,425,794

s 421,098

787,765

500,611
(208,873)

(12,308)

(65,888)

S 378,32s

179,8ss

18,844

(151,552)

l'71,867],

'14,047],

S 348,612

180,245

74,200
(160,817)

112,77Ol,

12s,77 s

436,526

9,910,855

2,602,006

7,304,449

558,9s8

6,149,a91

845,812

5,904,O79

6,'r 49,89r

821,405

4,004,389

339,558

3,664,831

4,004,389

403,695

3,261,136

3,664,83110,34 7 ,387 7,308,849 5,904,079 4,825,794

S 2,248,i06 5 L,4s4,749 s 3,2ss ,409 -t--r99pg9- 5 2,603,074 S 2,903,s42 S 3,062,029 :_492p_6

82.15%

s 6,107,681

87.20%

5 s,274,968

64.92%

5 s,274,968

61 .77%

s s,334,667

69.40%

5 4,s68,s79

62.43%

5 4,718,669

56.67%

S 4,326,663

6L.35%

s 4,011,930

Employefs net pension liabilitY as a percentage

of covered payroll 36.82Yo 62.47% 62.41% 67.84% 56 98% 67.53v 70.71%

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available

59

57 .56%

9,910,8ss

183

Item 8.



City of Republic

Schedule of Contributions

Year Ended December 31,2022

Actuarially determined
contri bution

Contributions in relation to
the actuarially determined
contribution

Contribution deficiency
(excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a
percentage of

covered payroll

Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (tAGERS)

2022 2021 202r) 2019 2018 20t7 2015 2015 20t4 2013

s 982,68s 5 7s232s 5 768,674 S 703,488 5 467,478 S 4s4,3s4 s 399,7s6 5 367,770 s 289,486 5 27L,747

982,685 752,329 767,679 703,487 467,478 440,229 385,53s 367,771 289,486 27t,748

s 5 ssessl $ t4,L2s 5 t4,22L S (1) ss s (1)

57,22t,38L 5s,s74,78r 5s,s76,4s7 Ss,255,119 S4,855,670 S4,6s0,980 s4,ss3,397 s4,394,1s9 54,4t4,90O 54,488,69L

13.610/o L3.50% !3.77o/o 13.39o/o 9.6L% 9.47o/o 8.47% 8.37% 6.56% 6.05%

60
184

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Schedule of Contributions

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Valuation Date: February 28, 2022

Notes: The roll forward of total pension liability from February 28, 2022, to .June 30,2022, reflects expected service cost
and interest reduced by actual benefit payments.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates

Actuorial Cost Methodi Entry Age Normal and Modified Terminal Funding

Amortizotion Method: A level percentage of payroll amortization method is used to amortize the UAAL over a closed
period of years. lf the UAAL (excluding the UAAL associated with benefit changes) is negative, then this amount is

amortized over the greater of, (i) the remaining initial amortization period, or (ii) 15 years.

Remdining Amortizotion Period: Multiple bases from 10 to 24 years

Asset Voluotion Method;s-Year smoothed markeU 20% corridor

lnflotion: 2.75% wage inflation; 2.25% prlce inflation

Sdlory lncreoses: 2.75% lo 6.75% including inflation for the General Division

2.75% lo 655% including inflation for the Police Division

2.75% to 7 .1-5% f or the Fire Division

lnvestment Rote of Return:7.Oooy'o, net of investment and administrative expenses

Retirement Age: Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition

Mortolity: The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, used in evaluatinB allowances to be paid

werc 'J,75yo of the PubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Table for males and females. The disabled retiree mortality tables, for
post-retirement mortality, used in evaluating allowances to be paid were 115% of the PubNs-2010 Disabled Retiree

Mortality Table for males and females. The pre-retirement mortality tabies were 75% of the PubG-2010 Employee

Mortality Table for males and females of General groups and 75% of the PubS-2010 Employee Mortality Table for males

and females of Police, Fire, and Public Safety Sroups.

Mortality rates for a particular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2020 mortality improvement scale to

the above described tables.

Other lnformation : None

61
185

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2022

original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget

Revenues

Taxes

Ad valorem taxes

Railroad and utility taxes

Motor vehicle tax

City sales tax

Franchise tax

Financial institution tax

Surtax

Payment in lieu of tax

Licenses and Permits

Occu pational licenses

Permits

lntergovernmental Revenues

Federal and state grants

Charges for Services

Sanitation

Fines and Forfeitures

City court fines

Miscellaneous
lnterest

Donations
Other

Total Revenues

5 952,s94
26,000

342,500

7 ,493,076
887,000

5,800

60,700

3,750
9,77L,420

s 976,594
26,000

308,000

5,380,940

810,000

3,200

28,000

1,800

s 1,1s8,134
24,574

361,694
7,949,034

958,s01
5,839

60,77L

3,758

205,540
(r,4261

t9,L94
455,9s8
7t,50t

39

7l
6

s

8,534,534

100,000

410,850

to,522,30s

96,895

438,37L

750,885

(3,10s)

27 ,521
363,900

9,000

164,400

15,000

6,100

s5,000

510,850

5,000

44,150

233,250

50,900

L,750
50,100

535,266

7 ,3t6

45,328

239,942

s8,501
2,332

262,358

24,476

2,376

t,fia

6,692

7 ,601,

582
202,258

77,700 t72,750 323,tgt
9,t71,L34 10,677,420 L1,673,348

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

52

210,441,

995,928

100,000

263,900

22,200

186

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Year Ended December 3t,2022

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget
Expenditures

Current
Administrative
lnformation technology
Municipal court
Community development
Police

Fire

Animal control
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers (out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Chonge in Fund Bolance

Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

2,354,200
486,9I7
204,820
917,873

2,gt2,3Og
2,459,321,

241,061,

2,876,553
50L,817

L99,L20
975,69L

2,772,808
2,2L7,92L

21.5,96L

2,631,,472

490,062
1.82,343

753,547

2,6L2,993
2,072,823

222,589

245,08L
1.t,755
16,777

222,1.44

159,81s

144,998
(6,628)

9,576,500 9,759,777 g,965,g29 793,942

(405,366) 911,649 2,707,519 1,,789,870

2,348,282 5,579,438
(4,740,7221

5,579,438

{4,740,036)

839,315 839,316 839,402 86

433,950 1,756,965 3,546,92t 1,,799,955

6,089,999 6,089,999 5,ogg,ggg

5 6,523,949 S 7,846,964 5 9,636,920 S 1,789,956

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

86

63

187

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary comparison Schedule - street Fund

Year Ended oecember 31, 2022

Original
Budget Actual

Permits

Street cuts

Street signs

Right of way permits

lntergovernmental Revenues

Grants

County reimbursements

2,225,41t 2,588,299

10,000

ss 125,963

1,783,593

308,000

3,798
4,L17

L42,963
2,o94,92L

342,500
3,798
4,t77

L78,782
2,081,184

361,694

3,781
9,350

35,2L9
(t3,737l.

t9,794
(L7l

5,233

s s

10,000 36,000

2,634,19L 45,892

20,000 46,000 5 5,6 L9

300,000

151,098

9,6L9

300,000
98140,000 151,000

Miscellaneous
lnterest
Other

140,000 151,000

26,864

16,250

451,098

32,352
23,595

300,098

21,,864

557,500

5,488

1 ,345
579,364 43,L14 55,947 12,83 3

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current

Street
Debt Service

Principaland interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Developer donated inf rastructure
Operating transfers (out)
Proceeds from new debt issuances

Total Other Financing Sources (Usesl

Net Chonge in Fund Bolonce

Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

2,964,835 2,828,413 3,196,855

5,395,628 8,199,045 8,74t,345

17 ,466 65,179 65,5 86

368,442

57,700

l4o7)
5,4r3,O94 8,264,224 8,206,937

(2,448,2s91 (s,43s,811) (5,010,076) 425,735

11-23,s28],

1,833,333

3,297,450
(L23,s281

1,833,333

3,297,450
(123,528)

2,519,025 (685,692)

1,709,805 5,OO7,255 5,692,947 (68s,592)

l.738,4s4],

2,t68,326

1428,ss6l

2,768,326

682,87L

2,168,326

12s9,9s7)

5 r,429,872 3 1,739,770 5 2,851.,197 S

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

64

1259,9s7

Final

Budget

Variance
with Final

Budget

Revenues

Taxes

Ad valorem taxes

Street sales taxes

Motor vehicle taxes

Railroad and utility
Surtax

10,000 2,000

77 ,6L9
35,000

(8,000)

17 ,619

57 ,293

188

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Stormwater Fund

Year Ended December 3L,2022

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget
Revenues

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current

Stormwater

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Fund Balance, January 1-

Fund Balance, December 31

s 82s s s,02s
825 5,025

S 5,2+8

5,748
S 723

723

608,735re60

227,500 227,500 219 750

(226,67s) (222,47s) (2,OO2) 220,473

608,735 608,735
5 386,260 S 606,733 5 zzo,qlt

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

65

7,750

189

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Fire Sales Tax Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Original
Budget

Fina I

Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget

Revenues

Fire sales tax
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

5 459,275

700

523,730
6,450

s s s20,408 s
406

{.3,322\
9561,

Expenditures
Cu rrent

Fire

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)

Operating transfers (out)

Net Chonge in Fund Bolonce

Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

459,975 s30,180

364,100

s27 ,874

323,L8L

(2,366)

399,100

60,875

127 ,377)

70\248
5 673,911

166,080 204,633 38,553

(88,2ss)

77,828 11637a 38,550

707,288 707,288

5 779,t1.6

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

66

(88,2s2) (88,2s21

40,919

(3)

190

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Park Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actua I

variance
with Final

Budget

Revenues

Taxes

Ad valorem taxes

Sales taxes

Rallroad and utility
Surtax

Charges for Services

Rental income
Adult and youth programs

Swim lessons

Special events
Concession

Admissions

Miscellaneous
lnterest
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current

Parks and recreation

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfer in

Operating transfer (out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net chonqe in Fund Bolance

Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

2,964,t9L 3,297,36t 3,356,635

s 268,091

2,682,rOO

7,000

7,000

257,O9l
3,016,920

7,O00

16,3s0

3tL,946
3,021,680

6,625
16,384

54,855
4,760

(37s)

34

s 5 S

242,600
304,900

24,OOO

L3L,200
132,500

347,500

380,800
258,885

24,OOO

t21,,200

L77 ,800
406,200

386,825
243,693

23,574
t24,457
L78,513
407 ,t43

\,4 )7i

6,O25

(1s,192)
(4261

3,257

773
943

L,L82,700 1,368,88s 1,,364,205

3,200
1,500

7,550

2,700
8,560

23,776

(4,680)

1,010

2t,o76
4,700 10,250 32,336 22,086

4,151,591 4,676,496 4,753,77 6

3,353,437 4,050,183 4,L32,375

76,680

(82,192J

798,154 626,3L3 620,80L

L20,240
976,581)

(s,s12)

(r.s,370)

1

13 5,610
(976,s82)

135,610
(976,s821

1840,972) (84O,e72) (856,341) (1s,369)

(42,818)

L,267,34L

(2L4,6s9)

t,z6L,34l

(23s,540)

1,261,341.

5 7,2L8,s23 5 L,O46,6a2 s 1,o2s,8o1

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison 5chedules

67

s (20,881)

(20,881)

191

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Capital lmprovement Sales Tax Fund

Year Ended December 31,2022

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget

Revenues

Sales tax
lntergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Capital improvements

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Fund Balance, January 1-

Fund Balance, December 31

s 918,550

856,000

l-6,085

S Loqt,qoo
6,000

21,295

s 1,040,593

17,436
22,270

(6,867)

1,L,436

985

s

l-,900,635 L,O74,745 1-,080,299 5,554

181.,5261,2 65,836 1,084,310

(L77,7o6',)

742,767

(191,091) (4,011) 187,080

742,767

s 738,756 s 187,080S sos,osr

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

68

742,767rer6

1,,978,341.

192

Item 8.



City of Republic

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Major Grant Fund

Year Ended December 37,2022

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget
Revenues

lntergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Special Projects

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)

Operating transfers (out)

Net chonge in Fund Bolonce

Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

$ L,7o8,922 5 1,,12s,394

12,700
5 3,ozL,ogl

1.1.,753

5 1,29s,7r3
(e47l,

'J,,294,7661.,708,922 L,738,084 3,032,850

3,175,969 7,403,431 907 523 495,908

334,653 2,L25,327 'l..,790,674(1-,467,047]|

(327,23 1) (327,231)

1L,457,047\

22L,L76 221,,Lr6

l_]J24s83!_ _S sss,?6e_

1,798,096 1.,463,443

221,11.6

5 z,ol9,2t2 S 1,463,443

334,553

See accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

69

193

Item 8.



City of Republic

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules

Year Ended December 3L,2022

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements

7. Prior to January, Administration submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year

commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditure plans for all fund types

and the proposed means of financing them.

2. One public hearing is conducted by the City Council in late November or early December to obtain taxpayers'

comments on the proposed budget and tax levy.

3. Prior to January 1, ordinances are passed by the Council, which provide for legally adopted budgets for all funds

of the City.

4. The City operates on a program performance budget system, with legally adopted budgets prepared by fund,

program and department. The level of budgetary control is at the department level. The City's department heads

may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations betwedn departments

require the approval of City Council.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for all funds of the City

6. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Budgeted

amounts may be amended during the year by the City Council on approved budget adjustment forms.

70

194

Item 8.



Other Reporting Requirements

195

Item 8.



lndependent Auditors'Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standords

Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Republic
Republic, Missouri

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standods, issued by the Comptroller General

of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund

of the City of Republic, Missouri, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the City of Republic, Missouri's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon, dated lune 5, 2023.

Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Republic, Missouri's internal

control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis of designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the city of Republic, Missouri's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internol control exisls when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or em ployees,

in the normal course of performing thelr assi8ned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A moteriol weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A signilicdnt deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe that a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not desiSned to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
We identified a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompany schedule of findings and responses as
item 2022-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

72

196

Item 8.



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Republic, Missouri's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,

we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Stondards.

City of Republic, Missouri's Response to the Finding

Government Auditing Standords requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City's response to the finding
identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The City's response was not
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results

of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This

report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stondards in considering the
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

KPM CPAs, PC

Springfield, Missouri
June 5, 2023

73

197

Item 8.



City of Republic

Schedule of Findings and Responses

Year Ended December 31,2022

Significant Deficiency

2O22-OOL Segregationofduties

Condition: Because of a limited number of available personnel, it is not always possible to adequately segregate certain

incompatible duties so that no one employee has access to both physical assets and the related accounting records, or to
all phases of a transaction.

Criterio: Duties should be segregated so that no one employee has access to both physical assets and the related

accounting records, or to all phases of a transaction.

Effect: Risk is present that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be material to the basic financial statements may

occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned

functions.

Recommendation: We realize that because of limited resources and personnel, management may not be able to achieve

a proper segregation of duties; however, our professional standards require that we bring this lack of segregation of duties

to your attention in this report.

Response: The limited number of available personnel prohibits segregation of incompatible duties.

74

198

Item 8.



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Republic
Republic, Missouri

ln pla nn ing and perform ing ou r audit of the basic financia I statements of the City of Repu blic, M issou ri, for the yea r ended
December 31., 2022, we considered the City's internal control to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be

significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed in the Report on lnternal Control over Financial

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Stondards, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.

1. Periodic lnternal Control Review

As the City evolves and personnel turnover occurs and policies and procedures change, the City should periodically

conduct a review of its internal control procedures to determine if any changes are necessary in order to protect the

City's assets.

we Continue to Recommend:

The City conduct periodic reviews of internal control procedures to determine opportunities for strengthening

safeguards over the City's assets.

2. New Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following pronouncements that may affect the

City in future years:

GASB Statement No. 96 - Subsc,pt ion-Bosed lnformotion Technology Arrangements (58/IAsJ - defines sBlTAs and

provides accounting and financial reporting for sBlTAs by governments, including requiring a government to

recognize a subscription liability and an intangible right-to-use subscription asset for sBlTAs' To the extent relevant'

the siandards for SBlTAs are based on the standards established in statement No. 87 - Leoses ' The effective date of

this new standard is for the City's year ending December 31,2023'

ln addition to the significant deficiency discussed in the Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance wilh Government

Auditing Stondords, we became aware of additional matters to bring to your attention. The following paragraphs

summarize our comments and recommendations regarding these matters.

199

Item 8.



GASB Statement No. 1OO - Accounting Chonges ond Error Corrections, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62 -
defines accounting changes and prescribes the accounting and financial reporting for each type of accounting chan8e

and error corrections. This statement is effective for the City's year ending December 3L, 2024, with earlier

application encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 101 - Compensdted Absences - updates the recognition and measurement guidance for

compensated absences and amends certain previously required disclosures. This statement is effective for the City's

year ending December 31, 2024; with earlier application encouraged.

we Recommend

Management examine the new pronouncements to determine the effect these will have on future financial reporting

and to ensure successful implementation on the effective dates

3. Budgetary Compliance

The City was not in compliance with budgetary statutes, Chapter 67 RSMO in the current year as a negative fund

balance was budgeted in the Major Grants Fund, Additionally, the City was not in compliance due to expenditures

exceeding budgeted amounts in the Street and Park Funds. Budgetary statute prohibits budgeting a negative fund

balance as well as expenditures exceeding authorized and approved budgeted amounts.

We Recommend:

The City review budgets to ensure that ending fund balances are not negative and to review and compare actual

expenditures to the approved budgets to ensure that expenditures do not exceed budgeted authorizations.

4. cybersecurity and lnformation Technology Controls

Cyberattacks are on the rise across the globe, and the cost of these attacks is ever increasing. Because of these
attacks, municipalities stand to lose their reputation and proprietary information or assets, as well as the ability to
operate efficiently. Communities potentially can also be subject to financial and legal liabilities. Managing this issue

is especially challenging because even a municipality with a highly mature cybersecurity risk management program

still has a residual risk that a material cybersecurity breach could occur and not be detected in a timely manner.

We Recommend:

The City continue to monitor and evaluate this risk, which are critical best practices. Additionally, periodic
assessments of the system in order to verify that the control environment is working as intended are key parts of
measuring associated business risk.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed these
comments and suggestions with the City's administrative personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss them in further
detail at your convenience, to perform any additional studies of this matter or to assist you in implementing the
recommendation.

200

Item 8.



We appreciate this opportunity to serve as the City of Republic's independent auditors and the courtesies and assistance
extended to us by the City's employees.

Respectfu lly submitted,

KPM CPAs, PC

Springfield, Missouri
June 5, 2023

201

Item 8.



Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Republic

Republic, Missouri

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund

of the City of Republic, Missouri, for the year ended December 31-,2022. Professional standards require that we provide

you w1h information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing

Stondords, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated

such information in our letter to you dated November 1,2022. Professional standards also require that we communicate

to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Quolitotive Aspects of Accounting Proctices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies

used by the City of Republic, Missouri, are described in Note 1to the financial statements. During the current year, the

City adopted GASB Statement Nos. 87 - Leoses and 95 -Certoin Component lJnit Criterio ond Accounting ond Finoncial

Reporting for lnternal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensotion Plans. Certain beginning balances were restated,

but there was no effect on beginning net position or fund balances. We noted no transactions entered into by the
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant

transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on

management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain

accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s)
affecting the City's governmental activities financial statements was management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful
accounts, which was based on historical property tax revenues, historical loss levels, and an analysis of the collectability
of individual accounts. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining that
it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

202

Item 8.



corrected and Uncorrected Misstotements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected
all such misstatements. The following areas identified for adjustments relating to the year-end accruals as a result of audit
procedures were corrected by management:

. Long-term debt activity . Accounts payable

. Capital asset activity . Net pension liability and pension activity

. Accounts receivable . Leases

. Deferred Outflows and lnflows of Resources

Disag ree me nts with Ma no gement

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors' report.
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

M o n d g e m e nt Re p r e se ntati o ns

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter
dated June 5, 2023.

Manogement Consultotions with Other lndependent Accountonts

ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar
to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. lf a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to
the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors' opinion that may be expressed

on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

other Audit Findings or lssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with
management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management's Discussion and Analysis, pension information and budgetary
comparison information, which are required supplementary information (RSl) that supplements the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with manaBement's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained du ring our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI

and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the Rsl.

203

Item 8.



Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and

Missouri, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these parties.

Sincerely,

KPM CPAs, PC

Springfield, Missouri
June 5, 2023

City of Republic,

204

Item 8.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-38 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to 
Enter into an Agreement with Midwest Public Risk for Property and Liability 
Insurance for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 

Submitted By: Bob Ford, Finance Director  

Date: June 20, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

Authorization for City Administrator, David Cameron to enter into an agreement with Midwest Public Risk for Property and 

Liability Insurance for the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Midwest Public Risk (“’MPR”) is the current underwriter for the City of Republic’s (the “City”) property and liability 

insurance coverage, brokered through Higginbotham Insurance.  MPR is: 

 Not an insurance company under the traditional definition, but rather a State authorized insurance pool for 

municipalities. 

 Authorized under Missouri State Statute Section 537.620 which allows for political subdivisions to jointly create an 

entity to provide insurance, where the entity created is not deemed an insurance company or insurer and where 

such entities are exempted from competitive bidding as per the Statute. 

The City received a renewal invoice for continued coverage for the term July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, which included 

a premium increase of $58,248 or 21.6%.  A Coverage/Cost Comparison of FY 2022 versus FY 2023 is provided below. 

Property FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2023 vs FY 2022 

Property Description Coverage Cost Coverage Cost 
Incremental 

Coverage 

Incremental 
Cost 

% 

Buildings $49,032,671  $103,976  $59,935,939  $140,919  $10,903,268  $36,943  63% 

Contents $3,310,140  $7,019  $4,310,140  $10,134  $1,000,000  $3,115  5% 

Electronics $630,628  $1,337  $642,227  $1,510  $11,599  $173  0% 

Vehicles $6,215,350  $13,180  $6,691,139  $15,732  $475,789  $2,552  4% 

Equipment  $3,597,730  $7,629  $3,979,776  $9,357  $382,046  $1,728  3% 

Other Property $1,815,430  $3,850  $1,815,430  $4,268  $0  $418  1% 

TOTAL | Property $64,601,949  $136,991  $77,374,651  $181,920  $12,772,702  $44,929  77% 

        

Payroll        

Liability        

TOTAL | Payroll $8,718,166  $133,193  $8,754,520  $146,512  $36,354  $13,319  23% 

        

GRAND TOTAL  $270,184   $328,432   $58,248   

205

Item 9.



 

 

 

Premium increase highlights – FY22 vs FY23: 

 63% due to buildings.  

o 10% increase in the insured value of existing buildings, which represents 53% of the increase in this 

category. 

o Addition of the BUILDS building to our building portfolio, which represents 47% of the increase in this 

category. 

o Note – MPR, at their cost, will perform appraisals on all the City’s buildings over the next 9 months to 

solidify insured values. 

 23% due to payroll.  A diminimus increase in payroll cost but a 10% increase in premium cost associated with that 

payroll cost. 

FY23 Budget vs. FY23 MPR Invoiced Variance Analysis 

 When compared to FY 2023 Budget, the MPR premium increase represents an unbudgeted shortfall of $25,569.  

 Expense savings in other budgeted categories will offset this incremental premium expense. 

 The shortfall will be updated in our upcoming Budget Amendment. 
 

 

Annual Premium Comparison 

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 

$222,641  $239,339  $255,529  $270,184  $328,432 

 
In addition, the City earns a 2% Loss Control Credit on its policy. 
 

Recommended Action 

During last year’s insurance renewal discussion, City staff recommended that our property/liability insurance coverage be 
re-bid in early 2023.  Furthermore, a 21.6% premium increase supports a relook at our insurance coverage.  However, with 
City staffing vacancies existing during late 2022 and early 2023, coupled with MPR ‘s termination clause that requires a 90-
day notice of intent to withdraw or incur a 25% fee on the total premium amount, we’ve missed the opportunity for this 
renewal cycle.  Given that, the City staff recommends renewing with MPR as the property and liability underwriter for this 
renewal period but bid the insurance coverage for FY 2024 (July 1, 2024 through June 30 2025). City staff will begin that 
process in January 2024.  

Department Account Number FY 2023 Budget FY 2023 MPR  
MPR Better 

(Worse) than 
Budget 

Admin 100-150-62010 $32,300  $30,599  $1,701  

Animal Control 100-150-63010 $2,658  $2,194  $464  

Community Development 100-710-63010 $9,472  $10,185  ($713) 

Fire 100-350-63010 $44,191  $44,791  ($600) 

Police 100-320-63010 $38,037  $37,940  $97  

Municipal Court 100-210-63010 $9,260  $10,005  ($745) 

Parks & Recreation 210-510-63010 $60,548  $66,653  ($6,105) 

Streets 220-422-63010 $22,562  $28,875  ($6,313) 

Water 510-442-63010 $31,462  $36,275  ($4,813) 

Wastewater 520-430-63010 $52,373  $60,914  ($8,541) 

 
  $302,863  $328,432  ($25,569) 

206

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-38 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-38 1  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO 
AN AGREEMENT WITH MIDWEST PUBLIC RISK FOR PROPERTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has the authority to obtain property and liability insurance coverage for and 
on behalf of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City currently utilizes Midwest Public Risk (“MPR”), a public entity risk pool that 

assists the various public entities across the state of Missouri (and Kansas), with obtaining the most 
comprehensive coverage necessary for public entities such as the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from MPR for the renewal of the City’s Property and 

Liability Insurance plan for fiscal year 2023-2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is in agreement with the premiums, deductibles, and coverage under MPR’s 
proposal; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it is in the best interest of the City to renew the City’s property and 

casualty insurance policy through MPR for the fiscal year 2023-2024. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The Council hereby authorizes the City Administrator and/or his designee, on 

behalf of the City, to enter into an agreement with Midwest Public Risk for 
renewal of the City’s Property and Liability Insurance coverage plan in the amount 
of $328,432. 

 
Section 2.    The City Administrator, or his designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

the necessary steps to implement this Resolution.  
 

Section 3.  The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this day of _____ day of ______________________, 2023. 
 
 
   
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

207

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-38 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-38 2  
 

 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

208

Item 9.



 

 

       
 
 
 
  
Andrew Nelson 
Republic, City of 
213 N Main St 
Republic, MO 65738 
 

 
 
 
 

FY 23-24 PROPERTY AND LIABILITY CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

Effective Date 7/1/2023 
Expiration Date 7/1/2024 

 
Republic, City of 

 (MPR 140) 
 
 

FY 23-24 Contributions Summary (detail on next page) 
Property Contributions $181,920.00 
Liability Contributions  $146,512.00 
Total Property and Liability Contributions $328,432.00 

 
Notes:  

• Property pricing was determined using property values as of May 3, 2023 
• Fleet Auto ID cards, Coverage Summaries, Coverage Documents and Certificates 

      will be emailed out prior to July 1, 2023 
 
 
 

 
              
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Midwest Public Risk 
19400 E Valley View Parkway 
Independence, MO 64055 
816.292.7500 
www.mprisk.org 

Invoice No. 
Invoice Date: 
Due Date:  
 

PL20230512.84 
5/12/2023 
June 30, 2023 
 

 

   

For ACH PAYMENTS: 
Bank: Security Bank of Kansas City 
Routing Number: 101000925 
Account Number: 110102302540 
Send remittance email notification to: 
acctrec@mprisk.org 
 

For Check payments -- Remit to 
Midwest Public Risk of Missouri 
19400 E Valley View Parkway 
Independence, MO 64055 
 
 

209

Item 9.



 

 

 
 
 

FY 23-24 Property and Liability Contributions Detail 
 (MPR 140) 

 
 

FY 23-24 Property Contributions Detail 

 
Property Description 

 
Total Insured Values 

 
Member Contribution 

Buildings $59,935,938.63 $140,919.00 

Contents $4,310,140.00 $10,134.00 

Electronics-EDP $642,226.51 $1,510.00 

Vehicles-APD $6,691,139.39 $15,732.00 

Boats $   0.00 $   0.00 

Equipment - Inland Marine $3,979,775.56 $9,357.00 

Other Property $1,815,430.00 $4,268.00 

Total -  Property $77,374,650.09 $181,920.00 

 

FY 23-24 Liability Contributions Detail 

Coverage Description Liability Payroll Member Contributions 

Total Payroll $8,754,520.00  

Total – Liability  $146,512.00 

   

Total Property and Liability Contributions $328,432.00 

210

Item 9.


	Top
	Item 1.	minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes_20230606_final

	Item 2.	workshop
	City Council Work Session Minutes 6-6-23

	Item 3.	2nd reading of Hankins Dev Agreement Amendment
	SR- Ordinance for Amendment to Hankins Developer agreement
	23-ORD-17 - Authorizing First Amendment to DA for Hankins Farm_MEM FINAL
	AMENDMENT 1 - Hankins DEVELOPER AGREEMENT_ ATTACHMENT 1 to Ordinance

	Item 4.	2nd reading of ORD authorizing IGA with school for AARC cost share
	IGA with school for EOP
	23-ORD-18 - Authorizing Execution of IGA with School for cost sharing EOP services from AARC_MEM FINAL
	INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT_ City and School District_AARC EOP Services Cost Sharing_City Attorney Draft

	Item 5.	REZN 23-002 3020 N York Ave
	REZN 23-002 CC Staff Report
	23-ORD-XX - Rezone of 3020 N York Ave to M-2_MEM FINAL
	REZN 23-002 Vicinity Map
	REZN 23-002 Zoning Map
	Findings of Facts completed

	Item 6.	stone creek falls PDD final plat ph 1
	SUBD-FNL 23-001 Staff Report
	23-ORD - Approving Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls PDD Ph 1_MEM FINAL
	SUBD-FNL 23-001 Vicinity Map
	Stone Creek Falls Final Plat Final Submittal

	Item 7.	health insurance broker
	Exhibit sheet - heath insurance broker - 6.2023
	23-R-XX - Authorizing Health Insurance Broker Agreement_MEM FINAL
	RFQ - Insurance for brokers 2023
	City of Republic RFQ 23 02 Insurance Brokerage & Advisory Services Response - Final

	Item 8.	audit
	FY22 Audit Exhibit 06.20.2023
	Res-23-XX - Approving Audit YE 12-31-2022_MEM FINAL
	12.31.2022 City of Republic Examination DRAFT
	Draft audit report_ NEEDS TO BE LABELED EXHIBIT A AND ATTACHED TO THE RESOLUTION

	Item 9.	MPR Renewal
	Property and Liability Insurance Costs for FY 2023
	23-R-XX - Authorizing Renewal of MPR Coverage for 2023-24_MEM FINAL
	FY 23-24 PL Invoice

	Bottom

